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Financial Highlights
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Year ended 31 March 2025

2025 2024 Change

EXERE(EKTT) RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS (HK$'000)
W &= Revenue 2,594,735 2,009,545 29%
B 5 A Profit before tax 189,625 125,142 52%
AARIERFEEA Profit attributable to equity holders of

JEAL 42 F) the Company 154,386 100,853 53%
BERE Total assets 4,358,964 4,143,750 5%
% 5 4 2 Shareholders’ funds 3,081,570 3,057,530 1%
BEITIRAK Issued share capital 63,053 63,053 0%
mEEEFE Net current assets 1,997,648 1,985,180 1%
SRBE PER SHARE DATA
FREXRBR CEM) Basic earnings per share (HK cents) 24.5 16.0 53%
SRBESRE CEM) Cash dividends per share (HK cents) 11.8 8.0 48%
SREEFEET) Net assets per share (HK$) 4.9 49 0%
TEHHLLE KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
YRR AEE @R (%) Return on average shareholders’ funds (%) 5.0 33 52%
& EMEERSRE (%) Return on average total assets (%) 3.6 2.4 50%
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Annual General Meeting (AGM)
28 August 2025 (Thu)

Register of Members

© 202548 H25 HZE 28 H
EH—Z=28m)

T 20259 H4H%E8H
(EHH=28—)

For Final Dividend

Dividend (per Share)

DB 3.8 Interim Dividend
© 20251 A14B (EBHD) Paid on
D BHE8.01W Final Dividend

© 2025F9H22H (EH—)

Payable on or about

Closure of Register (both days inclusive)
For attending AGM

. 25-28 August 2025

(Mon — Thu)

: 4-8 September 2025

(Thu — Mon)

. HK3.8 cents

: 14 January 2025 (Tue)

: HK8.0 cents

: 22 September 2025 (Mon)
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN (retired with effect from 26 August 2024)
Mr. Harry Chi HUI

Mr. Clement King Man KWOK (appointed with effect from 1 December 2024)
Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN (Chairman)

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN (ceased with effect from 26 August 2024)
Mr. Harry Chi HUI

Mr. Clement King Man KWOK (appointed with effect from 1 December 2024)
Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Anish LALVANI (Chairman)

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN (ceased with effect from 26 August 2024)
Mr. Harry Chi HUI (appointed with effect from 1 December 2024)

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chairman) (appointed with effect from 26 August 2024)
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN (ceased with effect from 26 August 2024)
Mr. Clement King Man KWOK (appointed with effect from 1 December 2024)
Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE (Chairman)

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN (ceased with effect from 26 August 2024)
Mr. Harry Chi HUI

Mr. Clement King Man KWOK (appointed with effect from 1 December 2024)
Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chi Ngai CHAN
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG
Mr. Chi Ngai CHAN
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Appleby Global Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street
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AUDITOR

Ernst & Young
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Appleby Global Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street

PO Box HM 1179, Hamilton HM EX

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2810 8185

Email: is-enquiries@vistra.com

REGISTERED OFFICE

Victoria Place

5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE & PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Unit 2001, 20th Floor
Citicorp Centre

18 Whitfield Road
Hong Kong

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS & INVESTOR RELATIONS

Company Secretary

Tel: (852) 2665 3888

Fax: (852) 2664 8202

E-mail: comm@chenhsong.com
Website: www.chenhsong.com

STOCK CODE

00057
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Business Review

For the financial year ended 31 March 2025, the Group registered
a total turnover of HK$2.595 billion (2024: HK$2.01 billion),
representing an increase of 29% over the previous year. Profit
attributable to equity holders increased by 53% to HK$154 million
(2024: HK$101 million).

This financial year has been characterised by a major shift in
international trade landscape, together with intensifying geopolitical
tension and frequent regional conflicts that disrupted global supply
chains amidst mounting policy uncertainties, threatening economic
growth worldwide.

The Mainland Chinese Government implemented proactive policies to
promote economic development, which included monetary easing and
manufacturing support measures to stabilise the domestic economy.
Data from the Chinese National Bureau of Statistics indicated GDP
growth rate expectations approaching 5% in 2025, which proved
the relative effectiveness of these policies. Industries such as
EV's and advanced robotics, sectors key to the Group’s business,
benefited greatly from the national strategies for upgrading and green
manufacturing.

On the other hand, even though the world has officially entered an
interest rate cut cycle, the extent of cuts remained below expectations.
Among the developed economies, the USA economy exhibited
much greater strength and resilience than other regions, such as
the Eurozone where economic growth remained sluggish. Many
enterprises, however, started paying heed to “China + 1” initiatives,
with Chinese manufacturing companies increasingly opting to invest in
production facilities in Southeast Asia and India. Owing to the Group’s
long-term strategic investments into international markets, especially
in key emerging markets such as Brazil, India, Indonesia and Vietnam,
early signs of success were apparent with increased market share,
leading to a significant boost in the Group’s international market
performance.

As the domestic economy in Mainland China continued to be
lackluster and global uncertainties abound, “transformation” has
become the focus of many enterprises in order to achieve sustainable
development. During the course of this financial year, the Group has
further invested in its Centre for Innovation and Advanced Research
in Shenzhen, bringing in professional talents to boost the research
and development team. The Group will also step up investments into
product innovation and intelligent manufacturing in order to accelerate
product research and development and technological innovation.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25
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In the face of intense market competition, in addition to constantly
upgrading its product lines, the Group also established the “Intelligent
Manufacturing Division,” which launched the “iChen Smart Family”,
an intelligent manufacturing system, including “iChen Cloud”,
“iChen Smart Factory” and “iChen Al Molder.” These innovative
technologies have already been well-deployed in client facilities on
large-scale intelligent production lines with big data management
solutions. Among them, the “iChen Al Molder” marries advanced Al
algorithms with decades of real-life applications experience to form an
innovative automatic solution which uniquely addresses the difficulties
the Group’s clients currently face in recruiting skilled moulding
technicians.

Future Prospects

The Group anticipates Sino-USA trade tensions and geopolitical risks to
continue well into the coming year. The Group will continue to adhere
to prudent financial practices, accelerate its investments into global
emerging markets, step up investment in research and development
to promote industrial upgrading. Furthermore, the Group will continue
to optimise its supply chain management, control costs and enhance
operating efficiency in order to face the challenges ahead caused by
rapid changes in international business environment.

Gratitude

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | extend my heartfelt thanks to all
shareholders, customers, suppliers, business partners, and bankers
for their long-term support and trust, and to our management team
and employees for their efforts and dedication over the years which
have been the key to the Group’s achievement today.

Lai Yuen CHIANG
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 20 June 2025

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25
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Business Performance

For the financial year ended 31 March 2025, the Group’s total
turnover increased by 29% to HK$2,595 million (2024: HK$2,010
million). Profit attributable to equity holders increased by 53% to
HK$154 million (2024: HK$101 million) while basic earnings per
share amounted to HK24.5 cents (2024: HK16.0 cents). The Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK8.0 cents (2024:
HK5.0 cents) per share for this financial year.

During the course of this financial year, amidst general overall growth,
the global economy was fraught with hidden surprises and unexpected
speed-bumps. Geopolitical tensions escalated, with protectionism
and “decoupling” becoming mainstream values, and led to increasing
uncertainties and volatility in international trade. The latest USA
administration, after taking office during the last quarter of this fiscal
year, promptly implemented a range of pre-announced protectionism
policies, initiating a global trade war of which the scale had been
unprecedented in modern history.

Worldwide economic sentiments started positive in 2024 with inflation
moderating in most countries after a long period of high interest rates,
prompting central banks to start easing monetary policies. When the
Federal Reserve finally initiated its interest rate-cut cycle in September
with a larger-than-anticipated cut, it was almost as if the worst were
behind us after years of active financial interventions. The COVID-19
pandemic from 2020 to 2024 remained the slowest period of global
economic growth since the end of the Cold War, and subsequent
recoveries across countries and regions varied greatly. For instance,
amongst the developed economies, only the USA exhibited robust
growth throughout while the Eurozone and Japan remained lacklustre
while the position of the developing countries was even worse. In fact,
Europe’s recent poor economic indicators at the beginning of this
financial year had raised serious market concerns, leading to deeper
and stronger easing policies which to an extent stimulated consumer
spending across Europe, a trend that the Group benefited from.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25
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During the first half of this fiscal year, global economies continued to
recover with increasing trade activities, which in turn intensified supply
chain conflicts. While total global trade volume registered an increase
and market demand remained robust, but simultaneously faced with
the challenges of unbalanced development and considerable risks and
uncertainties. The final outcome was a new USA administration taking
office in the second half of the financial year, adopting broad anti-
globalisation policies hostile to the multilateral trade practices that the
world had for decades become accustomed to. Since then, the world
economy has been clouded with significant uncertainty.

As the world factory, China played a central role in ever-changing
international trade relations. Not only did China help sustain global
economic activity with domestic demand, its stranglehold on global
supply chains became tighter than ever, raising serious concerns in
Western developed countries. Previous Sino-USA trade disputes soon
escalated into a full trade war under the new President of the USA,
eventually evolving into a global trade war.

Trade wars shake market confidence, which is critical in any well-
functioning business environment. During the second half of this
financial year, worldwide markets were plagued with uncertainties.
Although market demand appeared to continue growing as compared
with the first half, the Group’s view is that it was primarily due to frantic
stockpiling before the new round of tariffs in the USA took effect. Such
market strength is unlikely to last, and the world will soon be forced to
accept an evolving new reality in global trade.

Recent economic environment has always been characterised by
“opportunities within crisis”. This financial year also confirmed the
applicability of the opposite: “crisis within opportunities”. When
multilateral relationships could drift from close allies to being far apart
merely at the whims of the President of the USA alone, global supply
chains are facing some strong headwinds, with rising protectionism,
intensifying geopolitical conflicts and anti-globalisation under the
forces of localisation, nationalism and multipolarism. The Group
will continue to adopt a pragmatic, cautious but proactive approach
towards managing the financial and market risks that may arise as a
result.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25
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Market Analysis

Breakdown of turnover, based on the location of customers, for the
year ended 31 March 2025 is as follows:
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2025 2024
(B¥gEr) (B¥EErT) #8)
B ithig Customer Location (HK$ million) (HK$ million) Change
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=0 Taiwan 39 38 +3%
H Mg Other overseas countries 716 522 +37%
2,595 2,010 +29%
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During this financial year, the Mainland China economy faced complex
conditions, including pressure from outside and growing domestic
difficulties from within amid a generally smooth-running economy with
GDP growing an expectations-meeting 5% to surpass RMB130 trillion
for the first time in history. Faced with the complex and severe external
environment, the structure of the China economy was notably evolving
towards the high-end, with high-tech industries faring significantly
better than traditional and remarkable growth in new sectors such as
IT services, EV, IC and advanced robotics. The group continued to
provide its strategic EV partner BYD with large numbers of high-end
injection moulding machines, including large-tonnage two-platens and
high-precision all-electrics, assisting BYD in their rapid EV capacity
expansion while also contributing to the rapid growth of China’s EV
sector in general.

“Crisis within opportunities” fully held for Mainland China due to
intensified Sino-USA trade conflicts. Presidential election in the USA
during the second half of this financial year already foretold the
resurgence of localism and protectionism. Many international buyers
started to hoard inventory ahead of the oncoming troubles, pushing
Mainland China’s export trade volume to record height, with trade
volume in December 2024 alone growing 6.8% to exceed RMB4
trillion. Similarly, market demand for injection moulding machines
was also red-hot. Market sentiments further ignited as the new USA
administration was sworn in during the last quarter of this financial
year. The threat of high tariffs caused frantic stockpiling in a race
against time. The Group successfully leveraged this opportunity and its
capacity advantages to capture market share with new product lines,
leading to strong Mainland China turnover growth to HK$1.84 billion
(2024: HK$1.45 billion), an increase of 27%.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25
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Taiwanese customers traditionally rely on exports to the USA and
Europe and registered good growth during the first half of this financial
year. However, as the Eurozone economies stagnated, many customers
started adopting a “wait-and-see” approach, delaying the purchases of
capital equipment, which resulted in a sharp deterioration of business
sentiment during the second half. Overall, the Group’s Taiwan turnover
remained essentially flat with previous year at HK$39 million (2024
HK$38 million).

Internationally, the global employment rates remained resilient with the
International Labour Organisation forecasting global unemployment
dropping to only 4.9% in 2024. Nevertheless, the data hid substantial
polarisation among countries, as labour markets in developed countries
stayed robust but developing countries continued to be plagued with
high unemployment. The same polarisation was also observed in
inflation.

A direct consequence was the developed countries as a whole, mainly
North America, driving global consumption demand in the first half. As
political landscape in the USA evolved in the second half, and with the
new administration clearly hostile towards Sino-USA trade relations, in
order to diversify the risk of having most eggs in a single basket, many
multinational brands began adopting “China + 1” and actively pursued
new supply sources from other countries. Southeast Asia, along with
developing countries like Brazil and Turkey, benefited greatly from
such strategic risk-diversifying initiatives during the second half of this
financial year, leading to increased demand for injection moulding
machines.

Due to the Group’s foresight of making long-term strategic investments
into key developing markets, e.g., expanding subsidiaries in Europe,
Brazil and India, as well as new subsidiaries in Mexico and Indonesia
providing local inventory, the Group was able to capture this wave of
transfer demand to register an impressive 37% growth in international
market turnover to HK$716 million (2024: HK$522 million).
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Development of New Technologies and New Products

During this financial year, the Group launched a number of product
line extensions including new models of large-tonnage two-platen
machines, all electric machines, hybrid hydraulic-electric machines
and multi-material machines. In addition, the Group introduced
a new line of vertical injection moulding machines to augment its
existing product portfolio, which helped serve high-end segments
such as EV, 3C electronics and medical more professionally. At the
same time, the Group also added specialised offerings into its linage,
including multi-material with micro-foaming, switchable injection units
for optical applications in EV, a new series for producing pales, the
next generation SUPER-PACK series for thin-walled packaging, and
a new series for PET preforms. Most notably, a 4,500-ton two-platen
machine with an industry-leading 280kg shot-pot-type injection unit
was successfully delivered to overseas customer during this financial
year. Another 3,600-ton two-platen machine, which also achieved
the industry-leading ultra-large shot-weight of 200kg, was awarded
the prestigious “New Technology and New Product” Certificate by the
Plastics Machinery Industry Association of China.

The Group’s investments and efforts into advanced research and
development earned it accreditation by the Department of Science
and Technology, Guangdong Province, in 2023 as the “Chen Hsong
Technology Centre for Precision Injection Moulding in Guangdong”.
To accelerate transformation into digital-enabled manufacturing, the
Group made the first major step in establishing the Digital Technology
Department focusing on building state-of-the-art unified data platforms
and process control technology. By streamlining and optimising core
business processes together with unified data analytics, the Group was
able to support quick and intelligent decision-making through accurate
and timely information, greatly enhancing production efficiency and
visual management.

SUPER PACK fm] R 56 #) )T 22 1%

SUPER PACK Servo Drive Injection Moulding Machine
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The Group also officially launched its ambitious program for “Industrial
Empowerment” by providing end-to-end comprehensive solutions to
clients in various sectors such as automotive, consumer electronics
and food packaging. This program provides consultation to clients
in target industries, starting from status snapshot, solution proposal,
system integration to subsequent fine-tuning and optimisation. It
enables clients to markedly improve their manufacturing flexibility and
control, as well as make better-informed decisions, through real-time
management of production equipment and advanced features, such
as smart scheduling. With customised dashboards providing clear
visualisation of key process statuses, the Group’s clients and partners
are more able to surge ahead of competition in the new race for digital
supremacy.

Last but not least, the Group established a new business unit for “Smart
Manufacturing Services” to further accelerate upgrade of the industry
into the digital age. Through the “iChen Smart Family” platform which
includes the “iChen Cloud”, “iChen Smart Factory” and “iChen Al
Molder”, the Group successfully provided clients with a full range of
services from one-top turn-key factory projects to cloud-based big-data
systems to advanced mold setting services utilising advanced deep-Al
models. Among these, the “iChen Al Molder” service, which employs
advanced Al models to tackle the difficult but critical task of mold
setting, stands to revolutionise the industry by digitalising decades of
manual-tuning expertise, alleviating the pain of hiring experienced
technicians for many clients.

JETMASTER PET/S2 Servo Drive Injection Moulding Machine
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Production Capacity and Cost Control

During this financial year, under the auspice of lean manufacturing,
the Group continued to pursue its three-level planning system that
aims to provide precise, timely and accurate instructions to every
worker and every machine. In addition, the Group implemented an
advanced MES system in its production facility, part of a larger initiative
to digital-enable its production processes. The Group also continued
to actively control costs through optimising steps in manufacturing,
employing more efficient tools and riggings and automating machining
equipment as a networked managed whole, which led to material
improvements in production efficiency and cost effectiveness.

The Group sought to integrate its supply chain resources, pursuing
cooperation with strategic suppliers to build nearby facilities, in order to
reduce overall delivery lead time and procurement costs. In addition,
design standardisation would also help shorten lead time and improve
supply chain resilience.

Finally, the Group established its “Smart Manufacturing” division which
included internal research and development efforts and collaboration
with external parties to develop the industry-leading “iChen Cloud”,
MES and QMS systems, leveraging deep Al for its core innovative
features. These systems would help the Group increase equipment
utilization and shorten production cycle time.

Financial Review
Liquidity and Financial Conditions

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had net current assets of HK$1,998
million (2024: HK$1,985 million). Cash and bank balances (including
pledged deposits) amounted to HK$667 million (2024: HK$874
million), representing a decrease of HK$207 million as compared to
last year. As at 31 March 2025, the Group had no bank borrowings
(2024: Nil). The Group recorded a net cash position of HK$667 million
(2024: HK$874 million), representing a decrease of HK$207 million as
compared to last year.

The gearing ratio of the Group is measured as total borrowings net of
cash and bank balances divided by total assets. The Group had a net
cash position as at 31 March 2025. As a result, no gearing ratio was
presented.

It is the policy of the Group to adopt a consistently prudent financial
management strategy, sufficient liquidity is maintained to meet
the funding requirements of the Group’s capital investments and
operations.
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Charge on Assets

As at 31 March 2025, bank deposits of certain subsidiaries of the
Group in the amount of HK$139 million (2024: HK$45 million) were
pledged for securing the issuance of bank acceptance notes, recorded
in the trade and bills payables, to suppliers. As at 31 March 2024,
a bank deposit of a subsidiary of the Group in the amount of HK$3
million was pledged for securing a bank loan granted by a bank in
Mainland China to a customer to purchase the Group’s products. In
addition, as at 31 March 2025, bills receivable of a subsidiary of the
Group in the amount of HK$149 million (2024: HK$73 million) was
pledged for securing the issuance of bank acceptance notes, included
in the trade and bills payables, to suppliers.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had capital commitments of HK$22
million (2024: HK$6 million), mainly in respect of the construction
and upgrading of industrial facilities, the purchases of production
equipment in Mainland China, as well as the purchase of warehouse in
Europe which are to be funded by internal resources of the Group.

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposals

The Group did not make any significant investments, acquisitions
or disposals in relation to its subsidiaries and associated companies
during the year ended 31 March 2025.

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had no specific plan for material
investments or capital assets.

Financial Assistance and Guarantees to Affiliated Companies
by the Company

As at 31 March 2025, the Company had not provided any financial
assistance and guarantees to affiliated companies which is subject to
disclosure requirement under Rule 13.22 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25
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Advance to an Entity Provided by the Company

As at 31 March 2025, the Company had not provided any advance to
an entity which is subject to disclosure requirement under Rule 13.20
of the Listing Rules.

Treasury and Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group adopts a prudent approach in managing its funding.
Funds, primarily denominated in the Hong Kong Dollar, the Renminbi,
the New Taiwanese Dollar, the United States Dollar and the Euro, are
generally placed with banks as short or medium term deposits for
working capital of the Group.

The Group, from time to time, assesses the risk exposure on certain
volatile foreign currencies and manages it in appropriate manner to
minimize the risk.

The Group has substantial investments in Mainland China and is
aware that any fluctuation of the Renminbi would have an impact on
the net profits of the Group. However, since most of the transactions of
the Group are conducted with the Renminbi, the exchange differences
have no direct impact on the Group’s actual operations and cash flows.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2025, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities. As at 31 March 2024, the Group provided
guarantee to a bank amounted to HK$1 million for a bank loan granted
to a customer to purchase the Group’s products.

Relationship with Customers and Suppliers

It has long been the Group’s motto to “Our Customer’s Need is Our
Command” and to the maximum extent possible the Group puts the
interests and needs of our customers as its primary reason of being.
This includes providing the Group’s customers with the best designed
products, and timely and appropriate pre/after-sales services. Similarly,
the Group strictly selects high-quality suppliers and views its suppliers
not as mere vendors but as strategic partners and important links in
its supply chain. It is the Group’s procurement policy to maintain good
relationship and communications with suppliers based on the principle
of mutual trust.

In the end, the ultimate goal of the Group with regards to customers
and suppliers is “Win-Win".
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Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to enhancing environmental protection,
minimizing the impact of its activities on the environment, and
complying with applicable environmental laws. The Group has
implemented effective Environmental Protection Policy (the “Policy”)
that enables the Group to making progress in environmental protection.

Under the Policy, the Group focuses on promoting clean production,
and strives to making the most efficient use of resources in its
operations, and minimizing waste and emission. The Group achieves
this aim through actively re-designing its activities and production
methods that encourage and promote recycling of resources, using
environmentally-friendly raw materials and reviewing production
operations constantly to ensure that the processes are effective and
efficient.

The Group enlists its support by engaging and promoting
environmental protection among its suppliers and customers and
implementing training programmes that raise environmental protection
awareness among its employees. Through realistic and achievable key
performance targets, the Group measures the impact of its activities
on the local environment continuously, and conducts research and
explores potential innovative green alternatives that support a green
environment.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Taiwan, while the
Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group accordingly
shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in Mainland China,
Hong Kong, Taiwan and the respective places of incorporation of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the Board was
unaware of any non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had approximately 2,700 full-
time employees (2024: 2,400 employees). The Group offers good
remuneration and welfare packages to its employees and maintains
market-competitive pay levels. Employees are rewarded based on
individual as well as the financial performance of the Group.
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The Group conducted regular programmes, including comprehensive
educational and professional training, and social counselling activities,
to its employees to enhance staff quality, standards of professional
knowledge and teamwork spirit.

Prospects for the Coming Year

Looking ahead, the new USA administration officially took office in
January 2025 and, almost immediately, started implementing a series
of earth-shattering policies that brought great uncertainties to world
markets, global business sentiment and Sino-USA trade relations.

To begin with, extreme localism recently from the USA will inevitably
force many countries to increase defence budgets while border
conflicts and immigration issues will also become commonplace. The
rise of protectionism and uncertainties brought about by high tariffs
is already severely impacting international market sentiments. The
IMF substantially revised down its growth forecast for the USA for
the coming year, the largest such adjustment among all developed
economies, with a warning that sharp tariff increases may lead to a
significant global slowdown. Concerns over inflationary effects of the
new tariffs also forced the Federal Reserve to pause its rate-cutting
cycle, after a sizable drop in September, to adopt a more cautious
position, thereby abruptly ending the market’s anticipation for further
rate reductions in the near term.

The Group believes multilateral tension to intensify, geopolitical
situation to become more complex and global supply chain
restructuring to accelerate. As developed countries increasingly seek
to bring back manufacturing, the USA, driven by rising protectionism,
together with other European countries, will likely increase government
intervention upon key industrial sectors and start introducing more
measures and policies to this effect.

Under such volatile economic, market and political conditions, the
Group will continue to be prudent and adopt strict and proactive
measures towards managing risks while continue to invest into
advanced research and development, international market expansions
and brand awareness enhancement. The Group believes that it is well
positioned to face any on-coming challenges while maintaining an
acceptable risk profile, regardless of what the future may hold in terms
of uncertain business environment, unpredictable interest rates and
uncertain tariffs.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lai Yuen CHIANG B4, JP

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Chiang joined the Group in 1988 and has been appointed as an
Executive Director and the Chairman of the board of the Company
since September 2000 and April 2018 respectively. She is also
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company responsible for the
management and business development of the Group. She is also
appointed as the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Ms. Chiang
holds directorships in various subsidiaries of the Company and is a
Director of Chen Hsong Investments Limited and Chiangs’ Industrial
Holdings Limited, substantial shareholders of the Company. She is the
sole Director and shareholder of Proficient City Investments Limited
(deemed to be a substantial shareholder of the Company by virtue of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance). She holds a bachelor degree
of Arts from Wellesley College, U.S.A. and has extensive experience
in production management, sales and marketing. Ms. Chiang is an
Independent Non-executive Director of Wharf Real Estate Investment
Company Limited (stock code: 01997) (a company listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”)). She is also a member of Guangdong Provincial
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
Vice-President of China Plastics Machinery Industry Association,
Vice-Chairman of the Federation of Shenzhen Industries and Vice-
President of China Shenzhen Machinery Association. She had served
as a standing committee member of the Shenzhen Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference during 2000 to
2021. She was formerly an Independent Non-executive Director of
Hang Seng Bank Limited (stock code: 00011) (a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange). Ms. Chiang was awarded the
“Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong” by the Federation of Hong
Kong Industries in 2004. Ms. Chiang, aged 59, is a daughter of the
late Dr. Chen CHIANG.
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Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG Bsc, MBA

Mr. Chung joined the Group in 2001 and has been appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company since April 2003. He also holds
the position of Group Chief Officer — Strategy, Sales and Marketing.
Mr. Chung holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Chung, aged 58, holds a bachelor degree of Science in Electrical
Engineering & Computer Science from the University of California,
Berkeley. He also holds an MBA degree in Finance from Columbia
University, New York City, U.S.A. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Chung had more than 14 years’ experience in sales and marketing,
management consultancy, financial analysis and information
technology.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Harry Chi HUI Bsc, MBA

Mr. Hui, aged 61, has been appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since July 2023. He is also a
member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Corporate Governance Committee of the Company. He has
approximately 21 years of experience in marketing and business
management. He is a managing director of ClearVue Partners
(Shanghai) Limited, which is principally engaged in private equity
investment, since 31 October 2012, and he is responsible for the
overall business development and investment strategies. He was a
president of Universal Music International Limited, which is principally
engaged in music production, from 2002 to 2006, and he was
responsible for managing overall business in Asia (except Japan). From
December 2006 to 2010, he was a vice president of China beverages
business unit of Pepsico Investment (China) Limited in the PRC,
which is principally engaged in sale and distribution of beverages, and
he was responsible for customer service relation strategies. Mr. Hui
was formerly an Independent Non-executive Director of K W Nelson
Interior Design and Contracting Group Limited (stock code: 08411) (a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange). Mr. Hui obtained
a Bachelor of Science in Economics and Business Degree from
University at Albany-SUNY in the United States in May 1985 and a
Master of Business Administration Degree from University of Southern
California in the United States in December 1992.
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Clement King Man KWOK Bsc, FcA

Mr. Kwok, Chevalier de I'Ordre National de la Légion d’Honneur, aged
65, has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company since December 2024. He is also a member of the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. Mr. Kwok has over two
decades of hospitality and real estate experience, as well as board
and committee experience for other listed entities. Mr. Kwok’s prior
experience was in accounting, investment banking, and corporate and
financial management. After qualifying as a chartered accountant with
Price Waterhouse London in 1983, he had over 10 years of investment
banking experience with Barclays de Zoete Wedd in London and
Schroders Asia in Hong Kong, where he was appointed as Head of
Corporate Finance in 1991. Mr. Kwok then served as Finance Director
of MTR Corporation Limited from 1996 to 2002. Mr. Kwok served as
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of The Hongkong and
Shanghai Hotels, Limited (stock code: 00045) (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange), which is the owner and operator of
the Peninsula Hotels Group from 2002 to 31 October 2024, remaining
thereafter on the Board as an Executive Director until May 2025.

Mr. Kwok's knowledge of international markets, accounting, corporate
risk management and compliance is enhanced by his experience
serving on prominent regulatory bodies such as the Listing Committee
of the Stock Exchange, the Takeovers and Mergers Panel of the
Securities and Futures Commission and the Interpretations Committee
of the International Accounting Standards Board. He was previously
an Independent Non-executive Director of Swire Pacific Limited (stock
codes: ‘A’ Shares 00019 and ‘B’ Shares 00087) and Orient Overseas
(International) Limited (stock code: 00316) (both of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange).

Mr. Kwok is also currently an Independent Non-executive Director
and the Chairman of Audit Committee of Hang Seng Bank Limited
(stock code: 00011) (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange), and an Independent Non-executive Director and a
member of the Audit and Risk Committee and the Strategy Committee
of Shui On Land Limited (stock code: 00272) (a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange). He is also a council
member of the World Travel & Tourism Council, a member of the
International Advisory Council of Faculty of Business and Economics
of The University of Hong Kong and the Chairperson of the Advisory
Committee on Hotel and Tourism Management of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Kwok holds a Bachelor of Science in Economics from the London
School of Economics. He is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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Anish LALVANI Bsc, MBA

Mr. Lalvani has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since August 2002. He is also the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company and a member of
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. He is the Chairman of Euro
Suisse International Limited which has business interests in Hong
Kong, Europe, Africa and the Middle East. He has lived and worked
in the U.K., U.S.A., India and Hong Kong and holds an MBA degree
from the University of San Diego. Mr. Lalvani has extensive marketing
experience in the emerging markets and an in-depth knowledge of
electrical appliances manufacturers in China — many of whom have
in-house moulding facilities. He was the former Chairman for both
the North Asia Region and the Hong Kong Chapter of the Young
Presidents’ Organization. Mr. Lalvani, aged 59, is currently a member
of the Hong Kong Friends’ Committee of Asian Cultural Council,
a member of the HKUST Business School Advisory Council and a
member of the Business Advisory Council of Shah Family Enterprise.
He resigned as a Trustee/Member of Kew Foundation/Council and a
Director of Harvard Business School Association of Hong Kong Limited
on 11 March 2020 and 17 August 2017, respectively.

Michael Tze Hau LEE B4, MBA

Mr. Lee has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since May 2008. He is also the Chairman
of the Corporate Governance Committee of the Company and a
member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company. He is a Director
of Oxer Limited, a private investment company. Mr. Lee started
his career in the investment industry in 1987 and has since held
senior management positions in multinational investment companies
including Indosuez Asia Investment Services Limited and Lloyd
George Management. He also co-founded Asia Strategic Investment
Management Limited in 1995. Mr. Lee, aged 64, was educated in the
U.S.A. and holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree from Bowdoin College and
a Master of Business Administration Degree from Boston University.
Mr. Lee is a Non-executive Director of Hysan Development Company
Limited (stock code: 00014) (a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange) and the Chairman of the Board of Stewards
of The Hong Kong Jockey Club. He was previously an Independent
Non-executive Director of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
(stock code: 00388) (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange), and an Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman
of OTC Clearing Hong Kong Limited.
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Johnson Chin Kwang TAN B4, BSSc

Mr. Tan has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since September 2001. He is also the
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company and a member of
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Corporate Governance Committee of the Company. He was the Chief
Executive Officer and a Director of Raimon Land Public Company
Limited (listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand) from May 2013 to
June 2016 and from February 2013 to June 2017, respectively. Mr.
Tan has over 20 years’ experience in investment banking based out
of New York, Hong Kong and Singapore. He had held various roles
with leading financial institutions including JP Morgan, UBS Warburg,
Macquarie and BNP Paribas Capital (Singapore) Limited where he was
the Chief Executive Officer and regional head for their South East Asia
corporate finance business. He has advised major corporations and
government authorities across the region. Mr. Tan, aged 64, graduated
from the National University of Singapore and was a recipient of the
Lim Tay Boh gold medal and NUS Economics Society Book Prize.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors (the “Director(s)”) of the Company (the “Board”)
recognizes the importance of good corporate governance practices in
safeguarding the interests of the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholder(s)”) and enhancing the performance of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). The Board is committed to
maintaining and ensuring a high standard of corporate governance
practices. The Board reviews codes of conduct, policies and practices,
corporate governance framework and disclosures of this report,
from time to time, to improve the Company’s corporate governance
practices in respect of the latest developments on all applicable laws,
rules and regulations.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has
complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Part 2 of Appendix C1 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except for
the following deviations:

Code provision B.2.2 provides that every director should be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The Directors
(except the Chairman of the Board) are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years as the Chen Hsong Holdings
Limited Company Act, 1991 of Bermuda provides that the chairman
and the managing director of the Company are not required to retire by
rotation.

Code provision C.2.1 provides that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG is the Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Given the skills
and experience of Ms. CHIANG and her long term of service with the
Group, this structure can be considered appropriate to the Group
and can provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership for
effective and efficient business planning and decisions, as well as
execution of long term business strategies.
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COMPLIANCE WITH ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORTING CODE

During the financial year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has
complied with Rule 13.91 of the Listing Rules and the “comply or
explain” provisions set out in Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules as
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Code, and made
disclosures concerning relevant information in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report 2024/25” of the Company which,
outlines the policies, sustainability strategies, management approach
and initiatives implemented by the Group and the performance of
the Group in environmental, social and governance aspects of its
business, and will be presented in a separate report and published on
the websites of the Company at www.chenhsong.com and the Stock
Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk.

CORPORATE CULTURE

The Group is committed to developing a positive and progressive
culture that is built on its purpose, vision, values and strategy and
aspiring to be the pioneer in the plastic injection moulding machinery
industry through relentless pursuit of technological advancements,
manufacturing innovations, uncompromising service levels and
persistent pursuit for excellence.

The Board assumes responsibility for establishing the Group’s strategy
to align with its purpose, vision and values upon which the Group
would generate value in the long run. The Board established the
following purpose, vision, values and strategy:
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Chen Hsong’s Purpose
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We have been dedicated to the development and perfecting
of plastic injection moulding machinery technology under
our business motto and our late founder’s philosophy:

[RAFEDN  stRHFMEMH -]
[TXER E=ER® -]

“Our Customer’s Need is Our Command.”
“Industry Enriches People’s Livelihood, Leading
to Prosperity which Strengthens the Country.”

RENESR

Chen Hsong'’s Vision

NEEREMAEERMBR/EREFAERSEE - T
BIFT - KEEETBENATT ©

We keep to stand at the forefront of the plastic injection
moulding industry, and create the greatest value for our
global customers, through perfect quality, advanced
technologies and relentless pursuit of innovation.

EHENEER

Chen Hsong’s Values

. mEE - BEAR-
. INERE - BIEEE -
. ABET - BREH -
o  HEMH G BREE -

e EXEEAM HEER-
o RAMLWHH KEHE-

C Quality is of paramount importance, technology is our
core competence.

° Customers come first, always create value.

° Make full use of talents, encourage the pursuit of
excellence.

° Be honest, be aggressive, dare to embrace
responsibility.

° Seek mutual benefits, go for win-win.

° Unity and team-work, ensure sustainable growth.

B R
Chen Hsong’s Strategy

s REMEEBFNHENRIAEDR -
o  FEBHRM - HERMIHES

o ERAERE N MAAIER o

s THREBRE-

s ATRERKAIFHRSR -

o Enhancement of the long-term total return for all its
stakeholders.

° Development of new technologies, new products and
new markets.

° Production capacity and cost control.

° Sustainability development.

o Talents for growth and innovation.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven Directors,
consisting of two executive directors of the Company (the “Executive
Director(s)”) and five independent non-executive directors of the
Company (the “Independent Non-executive Director(s)”):

EER
Board of Directors

-

HTES
Executive Directors
BEOR T (FEFEFLEE)

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chairman &
Chief Executive Officer)

BHRTE
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG
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BYFHTES

Independent Non-executive Directors

AEREE
Mr. Harry Chi HUI

T
Mr. Clement King Man KWOK

Anish LALVANI %&£ 4
Mr. Anish LALVANI

FFELAE
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

The biographical details of all Directors are set out on pages 17 to 21
of this annual report. Each Director brings a wide range and years of
business and/or professional experience to the Board. Their combined
experience, knowledge and expertise are valuable in overseeing the
Group’s business as well as checks and balances to safeguard the
interests of the Shareholders.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The primary responsibilities of the Board are to establish the Group’s
vision, strategic direction, general policies and strategic business plans;
monitor and control the operation and financial performance of the
Group; implement the best corporate governance practices throughout
the Group; and set appropriate policies to assess and manage risks in
pursuit of the strategic objectives of the Group.
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Delegation to Management

The Board has delegated the daily operations of the Company to the
management comprising all Executive Directors, management staff,
and heads of various business units. The main responsibilities of the
management are to implement the strategies and business plans
set by the Board and to manage the Group’s business operations in
accordance with the policies and directives of the Board.

Board Diversity

Appointments of Board members and selection of candidates are
considered objectively based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications and experience, skills,
knowledge, length of service, industry and regional experience, and
other factors that the Board may consider relevant and appropriate
from time to time.

The Board’s composition reflects an appropriate balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives among its members, which
are relevant to the Group’s strategy, governance and business and
contribute to the Board’s effectiveness.

An analysis of the Board’s current composition based on the
measurable objectives is set out in the table below:

EERE #inEsk

2By bk} Number of Approximate
Diversity Perspective Category Directors  Percentage
sl B4 Male 6 85.7%
Gender 2% Female 1 14.3%
BlfE A E£E Chinese 2 28.6%
Nationality JEFR B%5 Non-Chinese 5 71.4%
Fhe Rl 60 7% A £ Over 60 4 57.1%
Age Group 51-6075% / Years 3 42.9%
£ 5 2043k JA £ 20 Years or Over 4 57.1%
Length of Service 10-19 4 / Years 1 14.3%

0-9 & / Years 2 28.6%
&1 #17E F Executive Director 28.6%
Capacity B IE#1TE = Independent Non-executive Director 5 71.4%
REM ETRBRIEEES(AAEE) 1 3 42.9%
Other Listed Company Directorship(s) 0 4 57.1%

(Number of Companies)
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted and revised the Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”)
in November 2022 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board. The Policy is summarized below:

° In reviewing the structure, size and diversity of the Board at least
annually, the Nomination Committee will consider a number of
aspects of diversity, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional qualifications
and experience, skills, knowledge, length of service and industry
and regional experience (the “Board Diversity Criteria”) and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

° In selection and nomination of qualified individuals to become
Board members, the Nomination Committee will consider the
Board Diversity Criteria.

° The Nomination Committee will review the implementation of the
Policy on an annual basis, as appropriate, discuss any revisions
in line with the latest corporate governance standards that may
be required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
review, consideration and approval to ensure the effectiveness of
the Policy.

The Board has reviewed its structure, size and diversity based on
the Board Diversity Criteria and believes that the current Board
composition is diverse, with a well-balanced mix of cultural and
educational backgrounds, professional qualifications, experience, skills
and knowledge. The Board was satisfied with the diversity of the Board
and each Board Committee, and considered that the Board Diversity
Policy has been effectively implemented during the year.

Gender Diversity
Board

The Board emphasizes diversity (including gender diversity) across
all levels of the Group. As at the date of this annual report, the Board
comprises seven Directors, one of whom is female, representing
14.3%. The Board considers that gender diversity on the Board has
been achieved. The Board targets to maintain the current level of its
female representation and this target will be reviewed annually by the
Nomination Committee.
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Workforce

As at 31 March 2025, the gender ratio in the workforce (excluding the
senior management of the Company) of the Group comprised 81.3%
male and 18.7% female. The gender ratio in the senior management of
the Company comprised 50.0% male and 50.0% female. As the Group’s
nature of the business and operation requires significant technicians and
manual labour, the Group believes that the gender ratio of the current
workforce is within a reasonable range. The Group will from time to time
review the effectiveness of the measures and practices according to the
actual circumstances of the Group. In particular, the Group will continue
to monitor the gender ratio aiming at achieving a greater gender diversity
in hiring all positions across the Group. For details of gender diversity
at the workforce level, please refer to the Company’s “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report 2024/25".

Board Expertise and Skills

The skills matrix set out in the table below outlines the skills and
expertise of the Board that are most relevant to the Company’s
strategy, governance, and operations. This matrix enables the Board
to effectively fulfill its duties and responsibilities in achieving the
Company’s strategic objectives and fostering sustainable development
of the Group, particularly in the following areas:

° Strategic Oversight: Guiding the implementation of the
Company’s strategic initiatives to enhance competitiveness and
innovation in industrial manufacturing.

° Risk Management: Overseeing the establishment of a robust
risk management framework and internal controls, ensuring
compliance with industry standards and regulations.

° Market Insight: Providing insights and expertise on market
trends, both globally and in Mainland China, as well as customer
needs, innovation, and technological advancements to drive
product development and enhance market positioning.

° Operational Excellence: Ensuring effective operational
strategies that enhance efficiency, productivity, and quality in
manufacturing processes.

° Financial Strategy: Overseeing financial strategies that support
growth, profitability, and investment in innovation and technology.

° Environmental, Social, and Governance: Ensuring that
the Company’s strategies align with sustainable practices,
demonstrate responsibility toward society, and uphold strong
corporate governance.

The Board is equipped with a diverse range of skills and experiences to

guide the Company toward achieving its long-term vision and success
in the industrial sector.
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TREGRKHR,/ RERLHAT
EREESIRRTUASER B BX(EERER

Executive Leadership & MER A5 HERER HHEREH)

StrategyDirectorshipor  TEREEE  HREAM  RREE  Technology  Environmental,  Professional (Legal and EREE H#&/RE
£ Senior Executive Experience  Industryand ~ Mainland Global and Social and Compliance, Finance Risk  Marketing/
Name of Directors with Other Listed Company(ies) ~ Manufacturing China  Business Innovation Governance and Accounting) ~ Management Branding
HTES
Executive Directors
EBRAL(2EA£TLH) v v v v v v v v v
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chairman

and Chief Executive Officer)
ERREE v v v v v v v v v
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG
BUFHTES
Independent Non-executive Directors
HEREE v v v V v V
Mr. Harry Chi HUI
ks V v v V V V v v
Mr. Clement King Man KWOK™
Anish LALVANI %54 v v v v v v v v v
Mr. Anish LALVANI
MFEEE v v v v v v
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
REXLE v v v v v
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
At (AR) 7 3 6 7 7 6 7 4 5
Total (in number)
At (BRAES ) 100% 43% 86% 100% 100% 86% 100% 57% 71%
Total (in approximate percentage)
Hiat - Note:

(1) SIMXEERBZERBILIFENTES -B=-F (1) Mr. Clement King Man KWOK was appointed as an Independent Non-
ZFE+ZA—HBAER - executive Director with effect from 1 December 2024.

B EEARAT 2024/25 4 CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25 29
s



TEERBRESE
Corporate Governance Report

ESERMNBELH Board Independence
EESBUMBE Board Independence Policy

ARARFHEERNBIUEHRIFEEEAZM  The Company recognises that the Board independence is critical for
EE - AERESHENESEYNEZIMER ©  good corporate governance. To ensure that the independent views
EEREMTESHBYERE ZHEEER  and inputs are available to the Board, the Board adopted the Board
FTHANEERLEK BB M ERFIZ® - |ndependence Policy which aims to set forth the independence
A T EDERIBIERNE T HMAE] - 22 requirements and standards applicable to the Board and its members,
BNERINE TEZRAETEEBUESBE LR detailing the mechanisms established within the corporate governance
FrEEMAEZ THETTHEESUESWENE  framework. It also specifies the considerations the Board will take
FRLAMETT L AT A o into account when assessing the independence of each Director and
identifies the information that will be collected from each Director for
this assessment.

ABEREERAFBAMNBEILME  LLINABEHITE  Below are the independence mechanisms to ensure a strong

EokhvAl; Xl independent element on the Board:
ERAH B
Areas of Governance Independence Mechanisms
EERNESLZEGRE s EZREFAZEARBIUNNTEST MMEEZTLESNEENE -
Board and Board Committees IBREZSRBRIZHNBLEHL -
Structure The Board maintains a majority of Independent Non-executive Directors with

diversified backgrounds and expertise to ensure a wide spectrum of independent
views are available to the Board.

s ERZEE FHZESROGXEERZESHABIUIINTESELER -
The Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee are chaired by the Independent Non-executive Director.

s MBEFZESHRAZHYBIIFNTESTMEK -
All of the Board committees comprise of a majority of Independent Non-
executive Directors.

ZEBIENTES o IHARHREANSGEUE REZESHMHEREANER  BEEERM
Appointment of Independent WU ARARRARIRBECRMNES RBKE Z T L BUR sl f) A ERE 15 4 -
Non-executive Directors In assessing the suitability of the candidates, the Nomination Committee reviews

the candidates’ profiles, including their qualification and independence, as well
as other selection criteria set out in the Nomination Policy and Board Diversity
Policy of the Company.

e BRBEREREAYENEZEABIUNTEERRALNESHEREE
v
Each potential candidate is required to confirm in writing to the Company his/
her independence upon his/her appointment as an Independent Non-executive
Director.
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ERED

Areas of Governance

BT ESH B
FEma

Annual Review of Independence
of Independent
Non-executive Directors

B RS

Independence Mechanisms

BUFRTESTNBELMEEFHL2E EMRRNEIIIGARNE L IEFEE
EITAME  BREERHEEGEVEMLER -

The independence of Independent Non-executive Directors is assessed annually
by reference to the independence criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules to ensure independent views and input continue to be available to the
Board.

AZEFEUMKREERSPENESUABREZE - MIEESERE AR
BEE -

Directors’ independence is assessed with regard to the full range of relevant
factors concerned rather than focusing exclusively on the length of service of an
individual.

BYIERITEEH M
Independent Non-executive
Directors’ Remuneration

BUNTEERETEZRARESTLZE N EMBRETHSE - Ao
3% R A ] B4R AR A 8 LA IR 19 /5 B e o) B2 R o

The Independent Non-executive Directors receive fixed fees for their roles as
members of the Board and Board committees and their remuneration does not
involve any equity-based rewards with performance related elements.

e B mRE
Robust Communication Channels

TRERERMO UL REBUIIFNTEFTERERBLER LER -
The Chairman promotes a culture of openness to facilitate effective contribution
of independent views and inputs by the Independent Non-executive Directors.

BEXER
Professional Advice

R EERTRE EFRKEAREREEEBRERMHEZER WEAR
FERSIINIBUYEEER ERALRRAEE-

To facilitate proper discharge of their duties, Board members are entitled to
request further information from management and obtain, at the Company’s
expense, external independent professional advice if and when necessary.

EEEBR AR 2024/25F 5

R
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ERAH B 7
Areas of Governance Independence Mechanisms
B IEITEZ R s BRUBVINTEFCEARAIVEZEE ETHATNEBR=F WEAR
Independent Non-executive BARABI BT ARERBEEREEET -
Directors Tenure Each Independent Non-executive Director entered into a letter of appointment

with the Company for a term of not more than three years and is subject
to retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.

e WMEBVFHTEEZEEEZREREBERANT REZEGKERILBRZE

ENRBFRATRTEEBYIUERSEREERER HEQA LM RERS
HARNREEBETAUEBENE N ENEZABYFNTES (BERE
BB IR TEET) NARTEUNBIARAZERNIERBERBA -
Where an Independent Non-executive Director has served on the Board for over
nine years, the Nomination Committee will consider and satisfy itself that the
length of his/her tenure has not affected his/her independence having regard
to his/her actual contributions, continuing impartiality and ability to continue
to demonstrate effective oversight of the Company’s management. Further re-
appointment of an Independent Non-executive Director (including the long-
serving Independent Non-executive Director) is subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by the Shareholders.

I EE IS e MMEEFARREBALZITHAAEEER TN EmFamE - HER
Conflict of Interest NAEIMMEMEEA T (BEEZRE) MREE -

All Directors are required to declare their past or present financial or other
interests in the Group’s business, or their connection with any of the Company’s
connected persons including substantial shareholders.

e FMEBEEFAREBEERBENITHNEATEREEBTEIIFNTESTHRE -
REMEAEENEMEMBESEMESINETREEENTMNEENE®
ERMEEH o
All Directors are subject to ongoing obligations to notify the Board as soon as
practicable of any direct conflict of interest which may arise due to his/her duties as
an Independent Non-executive Director and any other duties or business interests.

e NEEZERCFETEBIZRFXEZFENRER  ZFEEHBE IR

TEETE -HRFEBURENRARRRERERIAE LHENEERS
HEEBVFNTESARKNESZESNEYRAREER -EES (B
BEVIFNTER) FBERRERRERTEREIDBEIREER -
The Independent Non-Executive Directors will take lead in considering matters
which a substantial shareholder or a Director has conflict of interest. Board
committee comprising Independent Non-Executive Directors will be formed to advise
the independent shareholders on connected transaction to be approved by the
independent shareholders at the special general meeting of the Company. External
independent professional advice shall also be available to all Directors (including
Independent Non-Executive Directors) whenever deemed necessary.
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ARREEERBIUIFATESRIE LHRANE
I FRMEREBIULIEMFRER K - FPEE
(BEZERBUIWTEE BT _MOF+_-
A—BRER) TEREZERHZARE LT
FLRISE 3. 13 R M A A AR (1 2 1 FE o8 Ll A FE AR L
BN

BESN - BYERITEF W EA T EETEHT RFN
EERBIELE2EEMARSEREEMES
FEEMEAME EMARBYFRTES
MBEEENGER - MM T2EARFNAEE
BEE - TTESEFEEFLE A TR
BB

REZE-_Z_RAF=-A=1T—HILVMHRFERN "
TEEARZBEERREFTRETFERS - Ut
BB RSN ERNERIE - REZREN
ESBUNBHMER -

REZEBENEFTRASNWEXRFEEROMAE
B IFMITE F KR L AR RIS 3. 13 1R #Y
B MESIRR BB WRHERRBL : (i)R
BRI EXEMBEERER A R EEBL
FRTESOHE  R()VRSFEEREZR

i MR E BRI BE -

ZRIINEGFHEANAERR  ARRRBAAE
BIUFFRITEEFHRIBIL °

EERANEB

EEUFEREHERLRINAE  DRHEH
HEBHMRATHEUNEEREBHNHE -

ARFCEEE SN L RBER (TR LIRS
R)ETTEFERESOBE 2R -t &
EEYFERARBARBEEFERESTNNG - B85
NBPRNRHABEETRUNEE - FHORIEEA
R B A ERASE - WA RIEA (E 8 F B E b
BAAAR -HEZT-_AF=A=+—H0" 1
BEERKETBB A HE LM RABMNESRS -

EEEBR AR 2024/25F 5

R

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each Independent Non-executive Director in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Mr. Clement King Man KWOK, who has
been appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director with effect
from 1 December 2024, has also provided a written confirmation of
his independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules before the date of his appointment.

Moreover, the Independent Non-executive Directors do not hold
any cross-directorships or have significant links with other Directors
through involvement in other companies or entities that could create
conflicts of interest in their roles. They are not involved in the daily
management of the Company and are free from any relationships or
circumstances that could impair their independent judgment.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2025, the Corporate
Governance Committee conducted an annual review on behalf of
the Board to assess the implementation and effectiveness of the
independence mechanisms to ensure that independent views and
inputs were available to the Board.

The Nomination Committee and the Board considered that (i) all
Independent Non-executive Directors who served during the year were
and continued to be independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, (ii) there were no
business or other relationships or circumstances likely to affect the
judgment of any Independent Non-executive Directors, and (iii) they
continued to provide independent perspectives in Board discussions
and strategic oversight.

Considering all circumstances described in this section, the Company
considers all of the Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ Time Commitment

The Directors have demonstrated a strong commitment to the Board
affairs and are well aware of the expectation to dedicate sufficient time
to the Board affairs.

Confirmations have been received from the Directors that they are
able to devote sufficient time as and when required to discharge their
responsibility as a Director. Besides, the Directors have disclosed
their interests semi-annually to the Company, including the number,
identity and nature of offices held in public companies or organizations
and other significant commitment and shall notify the Company on
any subsequent changes in a timely manner. As at 31 March 2025,
none of the Directors concurrently holds more than six listed company
directorships.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25

33



34

TEERBRESE
Corporate Governance Report

REZBECHUBRESRARHEYESERZE
BUETTEE RN R URREZEERET
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BE=RER
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B EEAR AR 2024/25F 4R

The Nomination Committee has undertaken an annual review and
assessment of each Director’s time commitment and contribution
to the Board to ensure that they are effectively discharging their
responsibilities. Following this review, the Nomination Committee has
confirmed that each Director is able to meet the demands of their role
and contribute effectively to the Board.

Board Process

The Board held four meetings throughout the year at approximately
quarterly intervals to review the overall strategies and the operating and
financial performance of the Group. The Company Secretary assists the
Chairman in setting the agenda for Board meetings in consultation with
all Directors. Notice of at least 14 days is given to all Directors for all
regular Board meetings, and all Directors are given the opportunity to
propose matters for discussion on the agenda. Drafts and final versions
of minutes of Board meetings are sent to all Directors for comments and
records. Minutes of Board meetings with details of matters considered
by the Board and decisions reached are kept by the Company Secretary
and are available for inspection by the Directors.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2025, the Chairman has
also held a meeting with the Independent Non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors.

The agendas and accompanying board papers for regular Board
meetings are sent in full package to all Directors at least three days
before the date of each Board meeting. All Directors have access
to board papers and related materials and may, in appropriate
circumstances, seek independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense. All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary, who ensures that Board
procedures and applicable rules and regulations are followed.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction or matter
that involves conflicting interests of a substantial shareholder or a
Director, are dealt with by a duly convened physical Board meeting,
at which Independent Non-executive Directors who have no material
interest in the transaction should be present. Any Directors or their
close associates with material interests in the transaction or matter
shall abstain from voting and will not be counted in the quorum for
meetings approving such transactions.
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HEAD 8% Attendance Record

REE-_ZT-_AF=A=+—BILZMHBEERN - During the financial year ended 31 March 2025, four Board meetings

AR HABITOAEEREZE L —NKEAKXE - and one general meeting were held and the attendance record of each
BRESEZ2HRELSEWT ¢ Director is as follows:
EEREE BRAE

HERE BRRE HERE EFXE
EENA Number of Board Number of General
Name of Directors Meetings Attended/Held Meetings Attended/Held
HTES
Executive Directors
BB T (FEFEEBE) 4/4 11
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
ERR LA 4/4 11
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG
BYEHTES
Independent Non-executive Directors
PRESBILED 2/2 1/1
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN®
PR A 4/4 11
Mr. Harry Chi HUI
SPACF E@ 1/1 i A N/A
Mr. Clement King Man KWOK®
Anish LALVANI % 4= 4/4 1/1
Mr. Anish LALVANI
MFERE 4/4 1/1
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
PR St A 4/4 1/1

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Bt - Notes:

(1) FEEBEEREBIIEHNTES 8- -/M4E (1) Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN retired as an Independent Non-executive
NAZFTRABBITZARTRRAFAGHERE Director with effect from the conclusion of the annual general meeting of
AR e the Company held on 26 August 2024.

(2) FIMXAEEEZEABIFEATEE -B-F (2) Mr. Clement King Man KWOK was appointed as an Independent Non-
ZMF+ZA—HEER - executive Director with effect from 1 December 2024.
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EERRATX
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Bl EEERAR 2024/25FH

Board Performance Evaluation

The Board annually undertakes a formal evaluation of its own
performance and that of its committees and Directors to ensure that
they continue to perform effectively. The evaluation is conducted by
way of Board evaluation questionnaire.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2025, a board evaluation
questionnaire was prepared to collect views and comments from
Board members. The Corporate Governance Committee reviewed the
Board evaluation questionnaire and was satisfied with the Board’s
performance in fulfilling its governance responsibilities.

Board Induction and Development

On appointment to the Board, each Director shall receive a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction package covering
the Company’s constitutional documents, governance policies and
procedures of the Company as well as the general, statutory and
regulatory obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she has a
proper understanding of the Company’s operations and business, and
his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant legal
and regulatory requirements.

The Company has provided Mr. Clement King Man KWOK, being the
Independent Non-executive Director appointed during the year, with
a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction package upon his
appointment. On 22 November 2024, Mr. KWOK has obtained legal
advice from a firm of solicitors qualified to advise on Hong Kong law as
regards the requirements under the Listing Rules that are applicable
to him as a Director and the possible consequences of making a false
declaration or giving false information to the Stock Exchange. Mr.
KWOK confirmed that he understood his obligations as a Director.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates
on the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices, related regulatory
regime and the business development of the Company. To keep
abreast of the responsibilities of the Directors and infuse them with new
knowledge, reading materials (including e-learning materials provided
by the Stock Exchange) had been provided during the financial year
ended 31 March 2025. Apart from what the Company had arranged,
certain Directors also attended external training seminars.
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BEEARANRARRMMIIT28ENE)ZER »  The Directors are required to provide the Company with details of

REE-_ZT-_AF=A=+—BILZFHBEEERN - the training undertaken by them. During the financial year ended 31

BEEAHREILH200/NEFREEH - March 2025, the Directors received an aggregate of about 209 hours
of training.

REE-_ZT-_AF=A=+—BILZBHEEERN -+ The training undertaken by the Directors during the financial year
FrEEELEMNEIBMmT : ended 31 March 2025 is summarized as follows:

B HEER HHE REEEHRE BN
BN e HReg
Types of Training: Reading Materials/Journals and/or Attending Briefings/
Presentations/Webinars/Seminars/Conferences

AFERES MEER S A BEERE
EERE = B B 38 Y& <F
Company’s RE - E Financial Legislative/
EEHE Obligations/ RERER Reporting/ Regulatory
Name of Directors Director’s Duties ESG Practices Risk Management Compliance
HTES
Executive Directors
BB LT (FEFELFEEE) v v v v
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)
BRRTE v v v v/
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG
BIYFHITES
Independent Non-executive Directors
PR RS v v v
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN®
FEREEAE v v v v
Mr. Harry Chi HUI
ST A 4 v v v
Mr. Clement King Man KWOK®
Anish LALVANI 5 & v v v v
Mr. Anish LALVANI
MFEERE v v v v
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
PBREE A4 v v v v
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
Hat Notes:
(1) MREBLEEETBIUIENITESE G-F_MF (1) Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN retired as an Independent Non-executive
NAZTRBRTZARNFRBREAFREERE Director with effect from the conclusion of the annual general meeting of
AR e the Company held on 26 August 2024.
(2) HMXEEEZTEABIFERTESE B-ZF (2) Mr. Clement King Man KWOK was appointed as an Independent Non-
ZMFE+ZA—HBHRER - executive Director with effect from 1 December 2024.
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ARFIEREFERITHABRAEE R M/
ZAREBEEERR - NRAFFERERE PR
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ZE EERRBRES

BB IFRTESRZEZFIOTZN=F -
HWARARRBRRBFARE L nEENRAKRE
BEEEEL-

AN FRRFRREZERZ EARBERRF=
HENEERKENES  ARTESERBESE
TEEREAFAG INFEERRZAG LEE
BEME -

RIFA R A Z AR5 100 16 Ko L 5 AP 8% A1 55
4B R EMBIFRITESR LA (A
“ECMFET-A-BRAR) BREABRITZ
ARABBRRAFRE LRE REGERLER
BREE -

BIFARNT Z MBI 109(A) 1§ - BARRQ B EE K&
BEEAKEI ERBRET =S92 —2Z2EFAR
AARBREEFAG L RETRERET-
Anish LALVANI 2 & R R F B 4 OB FEENTTE
E)BREBRITZARBREFFRE LT
iR AT ° Anish LALVANI5C & 7 & & & 30 8 = 7 Bl
BROTZREREAFAE FERET - FIFERE
BRAARREE I ERNBRITZREAFK
T LrSREREMT  TERIBRITZBRRAF
REBREBRTEIIFRNTES -

Bl EEERAR 2024/25FH

Liability Insurance for Directors

The Company has in force appropriate insurance coverage on
directors’ and officers’ liabilities arising from the Group’s business. The
Company reviews the extent of insurance coverage on an annual basis.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

All the Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a
term of not more than three years, subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election by Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the
Company.

In addition, any Directors appointed by the Board during the year,
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board, shall hold
office until the next annual general meeting, and then shall be eligible
for re-election at that meeting.

According to Bye-law 100 of the Company’s Bye-laws and paragraph
4(2) of Appendix Al to the Listing Rules, Mr. Clement King Man
KWOK, being an Independent Non-executive Director newly appointed
with effect from 1 December 2024, shall retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, has
offered himself for re-election.

In accordance with the Bye-law 109(A) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
other than the Chairman and the managing director of the Company,
one-third of the directors for the time being shall retire by rotation, and
stand for re-election, at the annual general meeting of the Company.
Mr. Anish LALVANI and Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE, the Independent
Non-executive Directors, shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. Mr. Anish LALVANI, being eligible, will offer
himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr.
Michael Tze Hau LEE has informed the Company that he will not be
seeking re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting and
accordingly will retire as an Independent Non-executive Director with
effect from the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct regarding Securities
Transactions by the Directors (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no
less exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) contained in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules. The Company,
after having made specific enquiry of all Directors, confirms that all
Directors have complied with the required standard set out in the Code
of Conduct and the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March
2025.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the financial year ended 31 March 2025, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG
was the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
are defined clearly to ensure the accountability and responsibility with
respect to the management of the Company.

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG, being the Chairman of the Board, focuses on
overall corporate development and high-level strategic directions of the
Group, provides leadership to the Board, and oversees the efficient
functioning of the Board. She is also responsible for managing the
business of the Group, policy making and corporate management and
the implementation of strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board
with the support from the management.

As at the date of this report, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG is the Chairman
of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Pursuant to
code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code of the Listing Rules, the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. However, given the skills
and experience of Ms. CHIANG and her long term of service with the
Group, this structure can be considered appropriate to the Group
and can provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership for
effective and efficient business planning and decisions, as well as
execution of long term business strategies.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Board committees’ Structure

As an integral part of good corporate governance and to enhance
the function of the Board, the Board has established four Board
committees, namely the Audit Committee, the Corporate Governance
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, to assume responsibilities for and to oversee particular
aspects of the Group’s affairs.

BEER

Board of Directors

[ [

) h
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EREES

Audit C itt
udit Lommittee Committee
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Corporate Governance

REZEE

Nomination Committee

FMEES

Remuneration Committee

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1998. As at the date of this
report, the Audit Committee comprises five Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Harry Chi HUI, Mr. Clement King Man KWOK,
Mr. Anish LALVANI, Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE and Mr. Johnson Chin
Kwang TAN. Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN is the Audit Committee
Chairman.

The roles of the Audit Committee are to ensure that the Company has
formal and transparent arrangements for considering matters relating
to the Group’s financial reporting, risk management and internal
control and overseeing the Company’s relationship with the Company’s
external auditor. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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HEAD 8% Attendance Record

REE-Z-RAF=ZA=+—"HILZ2HHBFER - The Audit Committee held three meetings (totalling five sessions)
EREEeYRIT= ez (AHTAE) - EBAX  during the financial year ended 31 March 2025 to review with the
AIIMNEIZ BRI A M IMNEREREMAEE 2 B 75%  Company’s external auditor and external consultant, the Group’s
EMBET NP A EE c §R/KE 2HE  financial results and internal controls and related matters. The

A0EEEH T ¢ attendance record of each member is as follows:
EREEERE HERE EFRH
Members of Audit Committee Number of Meetings Attended/Held
BYFHTES
Independent Non-executive Directors
BRE S EAED 3/3
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN®
PRES B £ @ 11
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN®
B AL 33
Mr. Harry Chi HUI
LA 11
Mr. Clement King Man KWOK®
Anish LALVANI 5t 4 @ 3/3
Mr. Anish LALVANI®
MFERE 3/3

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

Hiat - Notes:

(1) BMEXECERETASZZEZEESEE B5-Z (1) Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN was appointed as the Chairman of the
ZFENAZTARBRTZARFTRREAFRE Audit Committee with effect from the conclusion of the annual general
ERBEM - meeting of the Company held on 26 August 2024.

(2) MREBEETBETEXZEEKE B -ZF (2) Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN ceased to be a member of the Audit
ZHFENAZFTARBREITZARARREAFAE Committee with effect from the conclusion of the annual general meeting
HERBE - of the Company held on 26 August 2024.

(3) FWMXAELEEZEAEREZEEGRE - B-F (3) Mr. Clement King Man KWOK was appointed as a member of the Audit
“FE+ZA—BEBE® - Committee with effect from 1 December 2024.

(4)  Anish LALVANI S ETBEEEZZESEH (4)  Mr. Anish LALVANI ceased to act as the Chairman but remain as a

BHEEETIZEZZESENE BT -_NF/\A member of the Audit Committee with effect from the conclusion of the
ZHARBBTZARARRREAFRSHERBEY - annual general meeting of the Company held on 26 August 2024.
Bl EAR AT 2024/25 F 4 CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25 41
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EREEE2024 25 FH TIEHE
Summary of Work of the Audit Committee in 2024/25

Bk E FTETERE

Areas of Duties Summary of Major Activities

RIS RE s RBRIXEEZFRIHEELAESURZFRPYPITHHRE -

Periodic Financial Results Reviewed the Group’s annual and interim results announcements, and annual

and interim financial statements.

e EHEGHERZET ULFTHHAEBRVBREIZTE
Rewewed the changes in accounting standards and their |mpacts on the Group’s
financial statements.

SNEERZELEm . HH ZERVNESREREEIIEZBAMMEREZER -
External Auditor Reviewed, considered and made recommendation to the Board on the re-

appointment of external auditor and their audit fees.

o ERIMNEZEERE

Reviewed the external auditor’s reports.

o  EMHIINERBERMZ T -_AFEEKAE -

Reviewed the 2025 Audit Plan received from the external auditor.

o MFRESSZEEDEERK o

Met with external auditor twice during the year.

AN BB 2R 1% J e kel 118 = S s S SR 62 A -
Internal Audit Reviewed the 2024/2025 Internal Audit Plan.

J ERIMNENMEIZER 2 NLEZERNEBER -
Reviewed the internal audit findings and recommendations from the external
internal control consultant.

[ Bea B AN A B ES 2 e RIUASBERHE-ZE-_NF=-A=+—HLMBRFERNRREREMA
Risk Management and B RG s BB
Internal Control Reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control

systems for the financial year ended 31 March 2024.
o FHRERIMHRELEREEERECFETE -

Reviewed the risk assessment report and the annual plan on risk management
control.

o REPOHE A2 BAE -

Reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control function.

o RERNESEABPEEENSEAR

Met with external internal control consultant twice during the year.

Hth . ET$ S - NEEZ NP FERBEE D EARERNRRIRE 44
Others NEARARBMEREEANER BEITEELRKER ULKEBIMEXHE

JH%&&EF‘%E%&% TR H o

Reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions, as well as those relating to the Company’s
environmental, social and governance performance and reporting.

42 EHEEEARAT 2024/25F5R CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25
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Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee (the “CG Committee”) was
established in 2012. As at the date of this report, the CG Committee
comprises five Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Harry Chi HUI, Mr. Clement King Man KWOK, Mr. Anish LALVANI, Mr.
Michael Tze Hau LEE and Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN. Mr. Michael
Tze Hau LEE is the CG Committee Chairman.

The CG Committee is responsible for developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
making recommendations to the Board, reviewing and monitoring
the training and continuous professional development of Directors
and management, reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
developing, reviewing and monitoring the Codes of Conduct applicable
to the Directors and employees of the Company, reviewing the
relevance and effectiveness of the Board Independence Policy
and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosures in this report. The Company has established the terms of
reference of the CG Committee.

Attendance Record

The CG Committee held two meetings during the financial year ended

TEECEZESERTMAGH BEKEZ ﬁ 31 March 2025. The attendance record of each member is as follows:
I3 %Eﬁ‘%ﬁ” NN
TtEEREEEHE ERE, 8RB
Members of Corporate Governance Committee Number of Meetings Attended/Held
BYFHTES
Independent Non-executive Directors
MFEERE 2/2
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
Eﬁ =] /u\f‘ﬁi 1/].
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN®
AEEELE 2/2
Mr. Harry Chi HUI
PRSP 38 F N/A
Mr. Clement King Man KWOK®
Anish LALVANI 5t 4 2/2
Mr. Anish LALVANI
PR BE St ST A 2/2
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
Hiat - Notes:
(1) @*” BARETBETCEEARZEEKE A= (1) Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN ceased to be a member of the Corporate
ZMFENAZTARBREITZAQTRREAFK Governance Committee with effect from the conclusion of the annual

@%ﬁﬁﬂéi?& o

2) ;B@ﬁ(Xf‘Ei?%éEﬁm%améééﬁX%'
TET A —HBRAEM -

LIS BE AR AT 2024/25 F5

R

general meeting of the Company held on 26 August 2024.

(2)  Mr. Clement King Man KWOK was appointed as a member of the
Corporate Governance Committee with effect from 1 December 2024.
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TRERESE2024/25 FH TIERHE

Summary of Work of the Corporate Governance Committee in 2024/25

BEHE

Areas of Duties

FEITHERE

Summary of Major Activities

BT EREREERE s RBRNEGEEATANETERNEHNEEEARSEE -

Legal and Regulatory Compliance

Reviewed compliance of Corporate Governance Code and the Corporate

Governance Report.

. R ERBENABEEETESFRSTRINETENR -
Reviewed the compliance with the Codes for Securities Transactions by Directors
and Relevant Employees.

E=RMAMME .

Board Effectiveness

BBBEEERER
Assessed Board’s performance by examining the board evaluation

VR B EESTRMRE

questionnaires completed by the Directors.

e RBRIEBREBABNBEIRSEZEERNE-
Reviewed the training and continuous professional development records of
Directors and management.

H A . B EFRE PR B S 2 B E R
Others Reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the Board independence

mechanisms set out in the Board Independence Policy.

e  BIAREBABKZEMRMAERML -
Reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the Shareholders’
Communication Policy.

REEESE

RELZEBEN_T——FKT - RAREEZAE
REEZEEXERIENAELIFRNITE S MK
JL 4~ Anish LALVANI 4 ~ R FE 54 - RE
TE AR TESEELR T - BBLLT A
RELZECEIRENESTRERE -

RAZEGZBA/MNEZTRENRE  AHK
MK (BREKEE  NMBMERIE)  BBHESS
MEEZRREER  UEMSEAARFDRE
REMEHEZHK BB BIE R
EAREAEERTETESENAL  WIGERS
BRAATHEESIBERESRIELES &7
RBEVIERTEFNB YL ARERTLENE
EUAREBEEIFHENEZRIRLES  FHE
ENHNKELHEERNTRARBEI AR
EHZEERNERE - REZ B ZBEHE
EERNARE R R FT2 A8k E e

Bl EEAER AT 2024/25 4

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 2012. As at the date
of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises four Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Clement King Man KWOK, Mr.
Anish LALVANI, Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE and Mr. Johnson Chin
Kwang TAN, and the Executive Director Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG. Ms.
Lai Yuen CHIANG is the Nomination Committee Chairman and the
Chairman of the Board.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board, assisting the Board in maintaining a board skills matrix,
and making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board members to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships; assessing the independence
of Independent Non-executive Directors; making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors; assessing the time commitment
and contribution of the Directors to the Board; and supporting the
Company’s regular evaluation of the Board’s performance. The
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Nomination Policy

The Board adopted a Nomination Policy in November 2018 which
sets out the criteria and process on the nomination and appointment
of Directors. The Board has delegated the relevant selection and
appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee, which
identifies suitable qualified candidates to become Board members
and recommends them to the Board. In assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate, the Nomination Committee would assess and
evaluate the candidate’s character and integrity, qualifications, skills,
experience, gender and diversity aspects under the Board Diversity
Policy that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate
strategy, devoting adequate time to effectively carry out their duties,
and fulfilment of the independence requirements as set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules (for Independent Non-executive Directors).
After the evaluation, the Nomination Committee nominates the
appropriate candidate to the Board for approval and appointment.
For any person that is nominated by a Shareholder for election as
a director at the general meeting of the Company, the Nomination
Committee should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as
set out above to determine whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship. Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee should
make recommendation to Shareholders in respect of the proposed
election of director at the general meeting.

The Nomination Committee had considered and made recommendations
to the Board on the appointment of Mr. Clement King Man KWOK as
an Independent Non-executive Director and the nomination of the
retiring Director for re-election at the 2024 annual general meeting in
accordance with the nomination criteria and procedures and board
diversity criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy and the Board
Diversity Policy respectively.

The Board had reviewed the criteria and process on the nomination
and appointment of Directors and, considered the Nomination Policy
has been effectively implemented during the year.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25 45



TEERBRESE
Corporate Governance Report

RBE_ZT_AF=A=1T—HIEZVERFERN
REZBECHITMASH -BEREZHEL

Attendance Record

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the financial
year ended 31 March 2025. The attendance record of each member is

BEZINT as follows:

REZEERE HERY EBERE
Members of Nomination Committee Number of Meetings Attended/Held
HITES

Executive Director

BB LLO 11
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG®™

BYFHTES

Independent Non-executive Directors

PREBEED 1/1
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN®

LD AN A N/A
Mr. Clement King Man KWOK®

Anish LALVANI 5 & 2/2
Mr. Anish LALVANI

MFEFRE 2/2
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

PREE S SEAE@ 2/2
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN®

BteE - Notes:

(1) BBt EZEARZLZESTIFE B-F (1) Ms. LaiYuen CHIANG was appointed as the Chairman of the Nomination
ZFNAZTANBETZAQFRRAFAE Committee with effect from the conclusion of the annual general meeting
HEREE - of the Company held on 26 August 2024.

2) EEEBRLAEATHEFRELZEEe/RKE - 8—% (2 Mr Bernard Charnwut CHAN ceased to be a member of the Nomination
“MENA-HFABEAIANTIREREAS Committee with effect from the conclusion of the annual general meeting
4T IB A o of the Company held on 26 August 2024.

(3) SIMIXAHLEETAIRLEZESGRE B - (3)  Mr. Clement King Man KWOK was appointed as a member of the
—E+ - F— B4 - Nomination Committee with effect from 1 December 2024.

(4) FEELEATBEFREgEEeTE  BiErE (4 Mro Johnson Chin Kwang TAN ceased to act as the Chairman but

EREZEEKE BT -_MENA=-TXH
BITZ ARRIRREAFRGERIZRER -

46 EHEEEAR AT 2024/25FE5H

remain as a member of the Nomination Committee with effect from the
conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company held on 26
August 2024.
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BEZEEE202425 FHIERHE
Summary of Work of the Nomination Committee in 2024/25

BiEE FTEIERE
Areas of Duties Summary of Major Activities
EERMNAEAKKRE T . R EERNEE - ABRAER -

Board Composition and Diversity Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board.

. Rl EE BN E ZTTEBER MR RBER N B A L -
Reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy
and Nomination Policy.

EERNBEM o  FMABNIFNITEFZEIIL -

Board Independence Assessed the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.

EEREREE o B EELBHEBEERN _ZT_NMERRAFAC LERTIESFZEE-

Retirement and Re-election Reviewed, considered and made recommendation to the Board on the
of Directors re-election of retiring Director(s) at the 2024 annual general meeting.

s HAEBRMNEZRBEFMEFN_Z_NFRREFAG LRIE-
Noted and reported to the Board the retirement of Director at the 2024 annual
general meeting.

EERBEE e EM BRINEFREZRZEBVIFRNTES -
Change of Directorship Reviewed, considered and made recommendation to the Board on the

appointment of an Independent Non-executive Director.

e EH ZERINEFREZEFTZESEMIEST -
Reviewed, considered and made recommendation to the Board on the change
in the composition of the Board Committees.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005. As at the
date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises four
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Harry Chi HUI,
Mr. Anish LALVANI, Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE and Mr. Johnson Chin
Kwang TAN, and the Executive Director, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG. Mr.
Anish LALVANI is the Remuneration Committee Chairman.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for
the remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a set of formal and transparent procedures for its
remuneration policy. It also reviews and determines the remuneration
packages for Executive Directors and senior management and to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration for Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Group with reference to the corporate
goals and objectives. The Remuneration Committee considers
factors such as duties and responsibilities of the Executive Directors
and senior management and the amount of remuneration paid by
comparable companies. In addition, the Remuneration Committee
is also responsible for reviewing and/or approving matters relating to
the share schemes under the Listing Rules. The terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Remuneration packages of Executive Directors comprises salary,
allowances, performance related bonus and pension scheme
contributions. Information about the emoluments of Directors and
senior management during the financial year ended 31 March 2025 is
set out in note 9 to the financial statements of this annual report.
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Remuneration Policy

The Board adopted a Remuneration Policy which aims to recognize
that appropriate level of remuneration is crucial to attract, retain
and motivate the Directors to run the Company successfully, and to
ensure that the Directors’ remuneration is appropriate and aligns with
the Company’s goals, objectives and performance and to enhance
the value of Shareholders, through a set of formal and transparent
procedures for implementing the Remuneration Policy. Pursuant
to the Remuneration Policy, the following key principles have
been established for determination of the remuneration and other
remuneration related matters of individual Directors:

° Executive Directors’ emoluments shall be reviewed annually by
the Remuneration Committee and the Board.

° Recommendations shall be made by the Remuneration
Committee to the Board for approval of any revision to the
Executive Directors’ emoluments by reference to his/her position,
qualifications, experience, level of responsibilities and the
Group’s performance and profitability.

° Executive Directors may be eligible to receive discretionary
bonus and/or performance bonus and/or guaranteed bonus
taking into consideration factors such as market conditions as
well as corporate and individual performances.

° The Remuneration Committee shall review and if appropriate,
recommend to the Board for approval the grant of share options
and/or the award of shares to the Executive Directors under the
share option scheme and share ownership scheme (if any) of
the Company. Such scheme(s) enables the Executive Directors
to obtain an ownership interest in the Company as incentives
or rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the
Group.

° Non-executive directors’ fees shall be reviewed annually by the
Remuneration Committee and the Board.
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Recommendations shall be made by the Board to the
Shareholders for approval at the Shareholders’ meeting any
revision to the non-executive directors’ fees by reference to his/
her experience, duties, responsibilities and market conditions.

Any change of non-executive directors’ fees shall also be subject
to an annual limit on the aggregate amount of non-executive
directors’ fees payable to all the non-executive directors during
the respective financial year, and any adjustment of such limit
shall require approval by the Shareholders pursuant to the
Company’s Bye-laws.

Attendance Record

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the financial

FTMEESTRIT=ZREH FEAKXKEB ZHEFE4  year ended 31 March 2025. The attendance record of each member is

BHIWT - as follows:

FMZEEEHRE HERE EFRE

Members of Remuneration Committee Number of Meetings Attended/Held
MNEHITESE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Anish LALVANI % 4 @ 3/3

Mr. Anish LALVANI®

PREBILE® 1/1

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN®

FEEEE 1/1

Mr. Harry Chi HUI®

MFEERE 3/3

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

PR BE St ST A 3/3

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

HITESE

Executive Director

BEioit 3/3

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG

BitaE - Notes:

(1) An|sh LALVANI EEEZXTRFMNEESERE (1) Mr. Anish LALVANI was appointed as the Chairman of the Remuneration
Q ZHFENAZFHARBEITZEAR TJ‘&%E Committee with effect from the conclusion of the annual general meeting

@f”%ﬁiféixﬁl of the Company held on 26 August 2024.

2) BEBEETABEFHFMEESEIHFE B_-ZF (2) Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN ceased to act as the Chairman of the
ZMFNAZTANBETZAQFRREAFAE Remuneration Committee with effect from the conclusion of the annual
HERBER - general meeting of the Company held on 26 August 2024.

3) HEEBEAEBRETATMZEESKE - 5=-Z (3) Mr. Harry Chi HUI was appointed as a member of the Remuneration

TE+ A —HREM -
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Committee with effect from 1 December 2024.
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FHES 2202425 FH T ERHE
Summary of Work of the Remuneration Committee in 2024/25

BEEE

Areas of Duties

FTETEFE
Summary of Major Activities

HERTEE (AKREARAGREBAR) RBYFNITTESE ZBEM
BEERERNKRBEUARARRE  KBATEREBEERZEE B
ZRIVMEZREZATES (ARA/RRAIEREEAR) REZIFNTT
EEZHEN -

Reviewed, considered and made recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration packages of Executive Directors (also being senior management
of the Company) and Independent Non-Executive Directors after assessing their
duties and responsibilities and individual performance as well as the corporate
performance and in consultation with the proposals of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer.

AR A .
Remuneration Packages

BT S .
Share Option Scheme

FHH ERVTMEZREZREBRETERESZINGERZ2EALT -
Reviewed, considered and made recommendations to the Board the grant of
share options to eligible participants under the Share Option Scheme.

FTHNZEEeNERRRNEERERIERSS
ZFEANATSNBREBRIEFEREERKZS
HA(EBEANDBLBERE -FMEEEET
ITER:

The Remuneration Committee had also reviewed and made
recommendations to the Board for approval on the grant of share
options on 16 September 2024 to eligible participants (the “Grantees”)
under the Share Option Scheme. The Remuneration Committee had
considered the matters as set out below:

ROZBRELENGRERR - FTHEE S
B BEREENENEEEETRENNAE
RZ2EARLBRE URBREBRESFHA
SEMERZ RSB AIER 2B/ - AR
AEBRPEBGEE -

There was no performance target attached to the share options
granted. The Remuneration Committee noted that the purpose of the
Share Option Scheme was to enable the Board to grant share options
to eligible participants as rewards or incentive for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Group and for achieving the long-term
business objectives of the Group.

REEBRAETBIM B K >0) ZFARARAE

Having considered the purpose of the Share Option Scheme and

BEHzACRER /SAKERBZFE Rk
HEEARBEEXGEANHNERRS S (DZF
ERANBEHASE  BEBERRR AR
RERGEEEARMELMAER  RiZE L
BERERERBEERSIMNAARARETEER
HIRB R A FHEE @R AR L BIRE T &
BA RREBYIFLE BREEFHERR
BIRM BRI A BARET 8B -

EEEBR AR 2024/25F 5

R

(i) those Grantees’ roles and experiences in the Group’s business,
length of services to the Group, and contribution and dedication to
the promotion of the Group’s business; (ii) those Grantees directly
contributed to the overall business performance, sustainable
development and good corporate governance of the Group; and (iii)
such grant of share options being subject to the vesting schedules
which reinforces Grantees’ commitment to long-term services to
the Group, the Remuneration Committee was of the view that, the
performance target was not necessary for the grant of share options
to the Grantees and such grant of share options without performance
target attached was in line with the purpose of the Share Option
Scheme.
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Bl EEERAR 2024/25FH

There was no clawback mechanism attached to the share options
granted. The Remuneration Committee was of the view that clawback
mechanism was not necessary for the grant of share options to the
Grantees as the lapse and cancellation of the share options in various
scenarios had already been provided for under the Share Option
Scheme which could adequately safeguard the Company’s interests.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Board, which is responsible for overseeing the preparation
of annual financial statements, receives monthly updates on the
Group’s performance, financial position and prospects. The Company
publishes its annual and interim results within three months and two
months respectively after the relevant period ends.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial
year ended 31 March 2025 have been audited by the external auditor,
Ernst & Young, and reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group which were prepared in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

A statement by the external auditor regarding the responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2025 is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 90 to 97 of this annual report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Group acknowledges certain aspects of risks (including
environmental, social and governance risks) are inherent in its
businesses and the markets it operates, and in pursuit of its corporate
objectives, undertakes to determine and monitor material risks in
order to enable sustainable growth and long term Shareholder value.
The Group implements a comprehensive Risk Management and
Internal Control System (the “Control System”) which is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that significant risks
are identified and managed, transactions are executed in accordance
with management’s authorization, assets are protected, the financial
statements are accurate and reliable for publication, and the Group'’s
activities are in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
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The risk management and internal control process is embedded in the
Group’s daily businesses and operations, which involves understanding
the context, identifying potential exposures, assessing the likelihood
of consequences, determining the risk level, establishing appropriate
mitigating measures and followed by appropriate reporting.

[ e 72 fie Bl B DT FHh 2 TR BT Wt
Understand Identify Analyze Evaluate Mitigate/ Report
Context Risk Risk Impact Control

ZEERAREE —EABEERE  s#EEMER
EBAOSEMBEST - BREANZRERERE
REER REBLRAEZEERZRNEE &
RERRGHEHMARE  YEEEHERRE
EEEMIPERAREEREFBFENERR  ME
R T EBEANKERAKBRIELAEM
FRENRE EFRERRREERE ST
EREG RREEZEEXERESARAL
BNEEE RREEZESEEERRAANE
i WARRHEEMNREIMIA BREAR
BAMERITE)  MEAC HBRWEREERKN
SH - AREEZB LR EEBEMMEAH
MEEAERMITRERRSR - SEKEMHHR—F
REERMGRERE  HMEREIEXHEM
BVERIE - EIRBAEMIT D WS ERRK - ERIM
B ITHEREMANZENT AN TER
ffI B EREBIETRNITRRNG  YREKE
UEEEHREARMR - BBESEBEMMIE
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WEBE IR A 1 BV B FF 2 X R R s s
WEBRZEZBEHEA °
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The Control System involves an organizational control structure which
emphasizes defined lines of duties and responsibilities, delegation of
authority and segregation of duties. At the top of the risk governance
structure sits the Board who oversees and is responsible for the Control
System and ensures its adequacy and effectiveness and acknowledge
that such system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss. The Board delegates implementation responsibilities of the
Control System to the Risk Management Committee which comprises
senior and experienced members of management. The Risk
Management Committee supervises and facilitates the implementation
of the Control System with appropriate guidelines and tools, tracks
material risks and mitigating activities, and determines significant
control failings or weaknesses that have occurred. The execution of
the Control System is entrusted to the Business Units, and within
the Business Units, the Functional Groups. Each Business Unit is
headed by a General Manager and a Financial Controller whose duties
are to control the activities of the Business Unit, ensure appropriate
and adequate operational policies, standards and procedures are in
place and are properly executed. The heads of the Functional Groups
exercise risk assessment in their daily decision making processes,
escalate and report material risks to the Business Unit heads. Through
discussion with the respective Business and Functional Unit heads,
the Risk Management Committee as supported by an independent
external internal control consultant whom presents and summarizes
a Risk Assessment Report annually for discussion with the Audit
Committee.

The Group is able to call for assistance from outside professionals to
support difficult risk controlling matters.
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Inside Information

The Company complies with the requirements of Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) and the Listing Rules.
The Company discloses inside information to the public as soon
as reasonably practicable after any inside information has come to
its knowledge unless the information falls within any of the “Safe
Harbours” as provided for in the SFO. Before the information is fully
disclosed to the public, the Company ensures the information is kept
strictly confidential. If the Company believes that the necessary degree
of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may
have been breached, the Company would immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Company is committed to ensure that
information contained in announcements are not false or misleading
as to a material fact, or false or misleading through the omission of a
material fact, to provide for equal, timely and effective access by the
public to the inside information disclosed.

To handle and disseminate inside information in accordance with
the SFO and the Listing Rules, the Company has taken various
procedures and measures, including arousing the awareness to
preserve confidentiality of inside information with the Company,
sending blackout period and securities dealing restrictions notification
to the Directors and relevant employees regularly, and disseminating
information to specified persons on a need-to-know basis. The Board
established and revised the Inside Information Guidelines and will
regularly review to ensure its relevance and effectiveness.

EXTERNAL AUDIT

The Board appoints the external auditor, Ernst & Young, to conduct
independent statutory audits of the Group’s financial statements.
The external auditor attends meetings with the Audit Committee to
discuss and report the nature and scope of the audit, any significant
deficiencies in internal control identified during the audit of the
consolidated financial statements, and significant findings from the
audit.

External Auditor’s Services and Fees
External auditor’'s remuneration for the financial year ended 31 March
2025 amounted to a total of HK$3,356,000, of which HK$2,736,000

was incurred for audit services, HK$407,000 for tax-related services
and HK$213,000 for other non-audit services.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

Audit Committee and Internal Audit

The Board appoints the Audit Committee with clear terms of reference,
which comprises Independent Non-executive Directors who are well-
experienced in corporate management. The Audit Committee oversees
and evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the Control System.
It also identifies areas for improvement, reviews the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has delegated the internal
audit function of the Group to an independent professional firm which
was appointed to act as an external internal control consultant, to
conduct semi-annual reviews of the business process and operations
of Business Units and/or operating subsidiaries and report findings,
risk and recommendations on any control issues identified in the
course of their work. The external internal control consultant also
developed a risk-based approach for the internal audit and established
annual internal audit plan and scope of review, covering major
activities and processes of the Group’s operations, businesses and
Business Units. The results of these audit activities are communicated
to the Audit Committee and heads of the Business Units and
the Functional Groups. Audit issues are tracked, followed up for
proper implementation, and their progress are reported to the Audit
Committee periodically. The Company Secretary keeps full minutes of
all Audit Committee meetings. Drafts and final versions of minutes of
the Audit Committee meetings are sent to all committee members for
their comment and records.
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2024/25 Assessment

During the year, the external internal control consultant conducted
the review of internal control and risk management systems for
certain principal subsidiaries’ operation with a view to identifying
any gaps in the Control System and making recommendations for
improvement. The results of such assessments were submitted to the
Audit Committee during the year. In addition to the Control System, a
Whistleblowing Policy has been put in place allowing employees and
others who interact with the Group (e.g., customers, suppliers etc.) to
raise their concerns about any suspected misconduct or malpractice
within the Group. All reported whistleblowing matters were handled
and investigated confidentially and independently.

To adhere to practicing integrity and responsible business ethics, the
Anti-Corruption Policy adopted by the Board provides information
and guidances to all business units and employees of the Group on
how to recognize and deal with corruption and bribery and to handle
corporate donation and sponsorship activities of the Group. The Group
regularly conducts external and in-house anti-bribery training sessions
to enhance the Group’s anti-corruption culture, awareness and
knowledge. More details in relation to the Whistleblowing Policy and
the Anti-Corruption Policy can be found in the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report 2024/25” of the Company. The Whistleblowing
Policy together with the Anti-Corruption Policy are to be updated
periodically to ensure their relevance and compliance with corporate
and regulatory requirements.

Based on the respective assessments, the Board acknowledges that an
adequate and effective risk management and internal control process
was in place for the year ended 31 March 2025. The Board considers
that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
effective and adequate. The resources (internal and external) for
designing, implementing and monitoring the risk management and
internal control systems, including, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions as well as those relating
to the Company’s ESG performance and reporting were adequate. The
Group has complied with the risk management and internal control
code provisions for the year ended 31 March 2025.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and has day-
to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer.
All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed. The Company Secretary had complied
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the year under review.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy in November 2018
to provide Shareholders with sustainable dividends, based on the
underlying financial performance of the business in each financial year
end. The Company aims to distribute a certain portion of distributable
profits to Shareholders, whilst retaining the balance for future business
expansion. The Board may declare and pay dividends from time to
time, subject to the approval of the Shareholders, where applicable.

When considering the payment of dividend, the Board will take
into account, among other matters, distributable profits, cash flow,
liquidity and financial position, current and future operations, capital
requirements and surplus of the Company, as well as dividends
received from the Company’s subsidiaries and associates. The
payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under Bermuda
laws and the Company’s Bye-laws and any other applicable statutory
and regulatory restrictions.

The dividend policy reflects the Company’s approach on the financial
and cash flow requirements of the Group prevailing at the time of its
adoption. The Board may review the policy from time to time and may
adopt changes as necessary.

It is confirmed that the dividend decisions made by the Board during

the year were made in accordance with the Company’s Dividend
Policy.
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RRBERSH Shareholders Communication and Engagement

BEERFPHIBERREAE  FHEME A5 &2AA  The Board recognises the importance of maintaining an ongoing
BAEREFERSUENEZHE - EFBES)  dialogue with the Shareholders and does so through general meetings,
REEBEEER - BEASEMNEE - A% - % press releases, announcements and corporate communications. The
ERREARBANSFTESY RETIHMNALR  Board is committed to the timely disclosure of information. The latest
7] #8945 www.chenhsong.com ° information regarding the Group’s activities, announcements, results
presentations and corporate communications are made available on
the Company’s website at www.chenhsong.com in a timely manner.

ARAREEEERL2EHN A BE The Company’s approach to Shareholders communication and
engagement includes:

BBRE IfE
Communication Channels Activities

T NFRRAFAE e ARARZZEZWFNAZFTABRIBRRAFAS(ZZENFRFAF
2024 AGM Agl) BRRELEFEGRURRERAZRETRERER EFREEARFER
BEULETTTRRE -
An annual general meeting of the Company was held on 26 August 2024 (the
“2024 AGM”) at which Shareholders attended to vote on the resolutions proposed
and asked questions which were addressed by the Board and the Company’s

management.
wERRE e RELARAUNER 2FEEMARBM(BEIBRERASE) -
Reports and Announcements Corporate communications, which include financial reports and announcements,

were published throughout the year as required by the Listing Rules.

REESH o  ARREEBEREMEMREENMRESNMEERSEMNETERSE  UE
Investor Meetings RERERBEREETD THRARNB 2K -

Face-to-face meetings and conference calls with institutional investors and
investment analysts are conducted, upon request, to make sure that Shareholders
and potential investors can obtain a good understanding of the Company’s business.

NGIF S e KR AMhwww.chenhsong.comi& B BN KM —[HEEZR | —H - #HIEE
Company's Website DEEEARRNEHER  HRNMBREARARNCEE AN - UHERZE -

The Company’s website www.chenhsong.com has the “Investor” under “About
Us” section, where the Shareholders can timely access to the Company’s latest
information to the Shareholders, which also includes the corporate governance
documents of the Company for Shareholders’ information.

58 EHEEBEABR AT 2024/25FH CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25
R IIIIIIhhh____—_—_—eS ,ss5Sss5s,s,s,s,e=;s;,s,,;,m;—,;—;_m_—_—~=.



TEERBESE
Corporate Governance Report

BRERE I
Communication Channels Activities
P& R A ALK o  REBABEKSERREAREERRER RKESER B EE2ENELR
Shareholders’ Communication FREFUANBEOBELTITEERERN - WEARRFEHRER -
Policy The Shareholders’ Communication Policy aims to ensure that both individual and

institutional Shareholders are given timely access to accurate, clear and balanced
information to enable them to exercise their rights in an informed manner and to
engage actively with the Company.

s EXREFRIARRBALE  UBREEMRREHE -
The Shareholders” Communication Policy is reviewed by the Board on an annual
basis to ensure its implementation and effectiveness.

e HECTZ-RAF-A=T—HLEFEAN EZRERIABRTBATROEES

MREYN - EERBARNRBREBEZBREATRD AR AEREETER  EEH
RERRBABREER N -
During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Board had reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the Shareholders’ Communication Policy. Having considered
the active engagement by the Company with the Shareholders via the different
means in accordance with the Policy, the Board is satisfied that the Shareholders’
Communication Policy continues to be effective.

e [REBAENECK AT AR R A) 49 4k www.chenhsong.com 3 B o
The Shareholders’ Communication Policy is available on the Company’s website at
www.chenhsong.com.

BRZ2EH e AAREBAEREREASIBEAEZERZEANEAANBEEARA
Enquiries from Shareholders wMER R EEEEME (MU AE B FHIEK B 185 BB F @+ 0 20 2001

= BaEARRMERED - kFHEXEEHZE - comm@chenhsong.com e
Shareholders and interested parties are welcome to send their enquiries in writing to
the Board for the attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office
and principal place of business at the address of Unit 2001, 20th Floor, Citicorp
Centre, 18 Whitfield Road, Hong Kong or by email to comm@chenhsong.com.

s REMHETHBEREBAGEMHEE  BRXRAREEENROBFEEL
DEREL - HBKZEHFINNARERANIAFIER] —4 -
Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings and
entitlements to dividend to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong
whose contact details are set out in the section headed “Corporate Information” of
this annual report.
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Proceedings of General Meetings

The general meetings provide a useful forum for Shareholders to
exchange views with the Board. Shareholders are encouraged to
attend the general meetings. Notice of general meetings together
with other relevant corporate communications will be despatched
to Shareholders (i) not less than 21 days prior to the annual general
meeting and general meeting where a special resolution is proposed
for consideration, or (ii) not less than 14 days for all other general
meetings. Detailed information on each resolution to be proposed will
be provided. To safeguard the interests and rights of the Shareholders,
significant issue is dealt with under separate resolution at general
meeting, including re-election of individual Directors.

Shareholders will be provided opportunities to ask questions for each
of the proposed resolutions at general meetings. The Board, the Chief
Executive Officer and the Chairmen of the Board committees (or in
their absence, other members of the committees) are available to
answer Shareholders’ questions at the general meetings. In addition, a
representative of the Company’s external auditor is requested to attend
the annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence. In the case of any
special business which is required independent shareholders’ approval
(e.g., connected transaction), members of the independent Board
committee will make an effort to attend the general meeting to address
Shareholders’ queries.

All resolutions set out in the notice of general meeting put to vote at
the meeting were by way of a poll. The procedures for conducting a
poll will be explained at the meetings. Independent scrutineer will be
engaged to ensure all votes at general meetings are properly counted.
The poll results will be published on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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2024 Annual General Meeting

The 2024 AGM was held on 26 August 2024. All Directors at that time,
together with the Group’s management and external auditor, attended
the 2024 AGM in person or by electronic means. The poll voting results
are available on the Company’s website at www.chenhsong.com and
the website of the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk. The matters
resolved at the 2024 AGM are summarized below:

Adoption of the audited financial statements and the reports of
the Directors and the auditor for the year ended 31 March 2024;

Declaration of final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2024;

Re-election of Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG as a Director;

Determination of the Directors’ fees for the year ending 31 March
2025 at an aggregate sum of not exceeding HK$2,000,000;

Re-appointment of Ernst & Young as auditor and authorization of
the Board to fix their remuneration;

Granting a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase the
shares of the Company not exceeding 10% of the aggregate
nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company at
the date of the 2024 AGM;

Granting a general mandate to the Directors to allot, issue and
deal with additional shares in the capital of the Company not
exceeding 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued
share capital of the Company at the date of the 2024 AGM; and

Extension of general mandate granted to the Directors to
allot, issue and deal with additional shares in the capital of
the Company by the addition of the total amount of shares
repurchased by the Company.

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will be held
on Thursday, 28 August 2025 (the “2025 AGM”). Further details will
be set out in the Company’s circular to be issued to the Shareholders
for the 2025 AGM.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convening of Special General Meeting on Requisition

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) (the “Bermuda Companies Act”), shareholders holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
(10%) of the paid-up share capital of the Company as at the date of
the deposit which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company have the right to requisite the directors to convene a special
general meeting of the Company. The requisition must state the
purposes of the special general meeting, and must be signed by the
requisitionist and deposited at the registered office of the Company.

If the directors do not convene a special general meeting within 21
days from the date of the deposit of the requisition, the requisitionist,
or any of them representing more than one-half (50%) of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a special general
meeting of the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the provisions of the Bermuda Companies Act,
shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at general meetings of the Company or of at
least 100 shareholders in number of the Company, may put forward
any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be
moved at a general meeting of the Company by sending the requisition
together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect
to the matter referred to in the proposed resolution must be deposited
at the head office and principal place of business of the Company as
below not less than six weeks before the general meeting:

Head Office and Principal Place of Business
Unit 2001, 20th Floor

Citicorp Centre

18 Whitfield Road

Hong Kong
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Pursuant to Bye-law 114 of the Company’s Bye-laws, shareholder(s)
may propose a person other than a retiring director of the Company for
election as a director of the Company at the general meeting by lodging
at the head office of the Company, a written notice of nomination with
the written notice signed by the nominated person of his willingness
to be elected, for a period of at least 7 days which shall commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than 7 days before the
date of such general meeting. Procedures for Shareholders to propose
a person for election as a director are posted on the website of the
Company.

Putting Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders and interested parties are welcome to send their
enquiries in writing to the Board for the attention of the Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office and principal place of business
at the address of Unit 2001, 20th Floor, Citicorp Centre, 18 Whitfield
Road, Hong Kong or by email to comm@chenhsong.com. Questions
about the procedures for convening or putting forward proposals at an
annual general meeting or special general meeting may also be put to
the Company Secretary by the same means.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings
and entitlements to dividend to the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong whose contact details are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Information” of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group believes regular and transparent communication with
stakeholders can not only strengthen mutual trust and respect and
build harmonious relationship, but also help contribute to long term
Company’s success. The Group maintains open, two-way and smooth
communication and exchange with its key stakeholders (including
Shareholders, employees, customers, suppliers, business partners and
bankers) through Shareholders’ meetings, on-site visits and internal
publications.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the financial year ended 31 March 2025.
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The board of Directors (the “Directors”) of the Company (the “Board”)
present its report and the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2025.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and the
provision of management services.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries comprise the manufacture
and sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related products.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

Details of the analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to
results for the year, by operating segments, are set out in note 5 to the
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group as required by Schedule 5 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a fair review of the
Group’s business; a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group; particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year; an indication
of likely future development in the Group’s business; an analysis of
the Group’s performance using financial key performance indicators;
a discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance;
a discussion on the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group; and an
account of the Group’s relationships with its key stakeholders, can
be found in the “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion
& Analysis” and “Financial Highlights” on pages 4 to 5, pages 6 to
16 and the inside cover of this annual report, respectively. The above
sections form part of this report.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group
are set out in note 40 to the financial statements.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 March 2025 and the
financial position of the Group at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 98 to 231 of this annual report.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK8.0
cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2025 (2024:
HK5.0 cents per ordinary share), consistent with Company’s Dividend
Policy.

Subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, the final dividend will be payable on or about 22 September
2025 to Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 8 September 2025, being the record date for
determining the entitlement to the final dividend.

The proposed final dividend together with the interim dividend of
HK3.8 cents per ordinary share paid on 14 January 2025, make a total
dividend of HK11.8 cents per ordinary share for the year.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 235 of this annual report. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements of the Group.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties as at 31 March 2025 were
revalued by an independent firm of professionally qualified valuers.
The revaluation decrease of HK$22,944,000 has been recognized in
the consolidated income statement. Details of the movements in the
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in note
15 to the financial statements. Particulars of the investment properties
held by the Group as at 31 March 2025 are set out on page 236.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of

the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.
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ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL

There is no movement in the Company’s issued share capital during
the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed in this
annual report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Group during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2025, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to HK$59,704,000, of which
HK$50,443,000 has been proposed as the final dividend for the year.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
totalling HK$100,000 (2024: HK$152,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less
than 30% of the Group’s total revenue for the year and sales to the
single largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 3%
of the Group’s total revenue for the year.

Purchases from the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than
5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had any interest
in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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FERBRETHBARZE PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

TRENAEEZREFEZRBIALBATEEEIE  The following table illustrates the current risk management/control
FURE R B MR R E R TG ES activities that are in place to manage or mitigate the major risks of the

Group:
2\ B 2 B [ B i B\ B 4% % 15 e
Risk Category Risk Description Mitigation Controls to the Risk

REBOEH =
Macro-Economic

BB AR E NN B 8 R A R
MARH AR ERNERHES
EETHNZE RmaeEH
FERNTINRTIRET
Unfavourable macro-economic
condition, such as economic
recession, may have a
detrimental impact on company
development and products
supply and demand which may
in result affect the profitability of
the company.

SRAZMNEFHARETEL
BAMEBMN - Bk Was -
MR REEENERA
SAREE RPN LE -

The diverse factors, such as trade
war, may affect the economic
and business conditions. Hence,
revenue, financial performance,
operational results and business
prospects may be adversely
affected.

AEBTEERBRREPEAERIRZ TLE
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The Group adopts a diversification strategy on its
product lines and customer base. The Group’s
product lines cover a broad range of industries
where the customers belong, and the customers
are diversified in terms of geographical locations
which cover 100 countries. When unfavourable
macro-economic factors affect certain
industries or countries, the Group may still
generate revenue from other product lines and
countries, and reduce the impact brought by the
unfavourable macro-economic factors.

AEEREREEY ZBLEBERTNE - P
WMEREERANFELENET L
EREAARERAEETEHR - I K
SEETRABEAR UEREHINEREN

The Group can quickly respond to the change in
macro-economic conditions, such as introducing
new or upgraded products to cope with the
market demand, which are supported by the
Group’s strong research and development
capabilities. In addition, reorganization on the
Group’s structure has been carried out in order
to effectively respond to the change in external
environments.
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Moreover, the Group has established a working
environment that encourages the staff to apply
result-oriented approach on their work. The
staff is allowed flexibility in handling their work
within the authorization limit. The staff are
more capable of adapting and responding to
the market changes which allows the Group
to better cope with the unfavourable macro-
economic conditions.

Factors (Continued)

ANER o  HLAEMB LHREEAARE o  AEEFIEEBRTF IO KRB R

Human Resources EFRKMAS  FERRKNIE SIEEMAATEFREETIUREAEE
B o MEEBETRK  REEBRHRIEHEE T
Difficulty in recruiting suitable BA - /BB TRMETR A BRI (a0
talents in the market to meet the X2 ROBRE) REZEMBHINBIETI (40
company’s operational needs, EHEF) ©

which affects the company’s
normal operations.

The Group has established competitive
remuneration and fringe benefits packages
to attract suitable talents as well as retaining
existing staff to meet the operational needs
of the Group. The Group puts much effort on
staff trainings and welfare. It provides internal
trainings to staff on different aspects such as
occupational safety and psychological health,
and also external trainings on professional
knowledge such as regulatory updates.

REBMEETRFRIFEDR  THERBF
Ea W EMMIHRENTHRE THFR -
The Group also maintains good communication
with staff and collects feedbacks from them
regularly by conducting annual appraisal to
understand their needs.
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Human Resources RE QAR EPGF REEITHEME
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Moreover, the Group regularly organizes team
building activities, e.g., meal gatherings,
company trips, sport day, etc., to facilitate
communications and strengthen bonding
between staff within the same department or
from different divisions.

e S AKEEBBEI(LHESAKEI)
RITEER R TRIYKSEMMEATHR
SBPIIMTIERE BBRAFE)  UEH
BIRE o
In addition, the Group conducts exit meeting
with resigned staff, especially senior level staff to
understand and collect their feedbacks on the
company, such as working environment, reasons
for leaving, etc. for future improvements.

e AEETHEBINNHBEQAAZHREBEAL
VAR B RAR ©
The Group seeks assistance from external
recruiters to search suitable talents regularly for
facilitating the recruitment processes.

JRAT L e o EERHRRBTHRM RS e AEEBBETSHEEEOIE BIK
Supply of Raw HE AREEQRAARFERE METEEARNMRE BREERMEZ
Materials PR EmERES - DEMR A LB FER o
Inability to secure a stable supply The Group actively carries out the supplier
of raw materials and services sourcing work, conducts comprehensive tests
which may affect the company’s and recognition for new samples, and ensures
ability to deliver products to that each material has at least two or more
customers in a timely manner. suppliers.
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ERHEEE R EIEA - LRRDASSE %
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At the same time, the Group has established a
dedicated Supplier Management Department to
strengthen supply chain excellence, responsible
for monthly evaluations of supplier performance
across quality, cost, and delivery (QCD) metrics.
Underperforming suppliers face restricted
usage, ensuring a competitive “survival of
the fittest” approach that drives continuous
improvement.
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Supply of Raw GEWE UWIBRAANRSE N S8R
Materials (Continued) BEMEZRVMEA A SEHE -

For high-value strategic suppliers, the Group
secures long-term partnership agreements to
guarantee cost competitiveness, superior quality,
and reliable supply of critical materials.

o UbAN REEMETERECHTHREEE
RERBUE - FRGFEEREETERS
HEEREER RE-—BHORE  UHRERE
R — BERITEIRTE AR
Bt o
Additionally, the Group enforces standardized
component design and selection, streamlining
procurement efficiency. Through annual
supplier negotiations, it locks in optimal pricing,
maintains consistent quality, and ensures on-
time deliveries — all contributing to a stable,
resilient, and sustainable supply chain.

o REEE T EILIE MY AR A 2R RN i R BK AR DA
BREKERFAREEIEE -
The Group has established a clear organizational
structure and reporting lines to ensure that any
crisis can be reported to the management in a
timely manner.

e fEMEAR AEEREXIABBEINMEE
AN FES NEA RS B - Y/ NEE
BREAMEAERAEVREETANRER
VAW (R fE 82 8 RO I By iR R
When crisis occurs, the Group will set up a
response team consisting of relevant department
heads to cope with the crisis. The response
team creates a “chat room” using messaging
applications to conduct instant communication
and ensures the crisis can be resolved in an
efficient and timely manner.
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Risk Category Risk Description Mitigation Controls to the Risk

f& 1 I8 o SBEMBEIREEH QAR o EEMTAVARA BB MK R A IR S

Crisis Management BN IR H B E A AR R T B BRI NFFRRE -
B e LR R A REY The Group has established a clear organizational
FENALE  BEEEKIBX- structure and reporting lines to ensure that any
There is no mechanism to crisis can be reported to the management in a
respond to the company’s crisis timely manner.

in a timely manner and propose

corresponding solution, resulting o EHMEAR AEBEEKZAMEEIMEE
in failure to respond effectively ANABEREFES NEAEE B - EE/NEE
when crisis occurs, which affects BEMEREREEZNRZH#THRER
the company’s operations and VARER f& 1 B8 B UM R BE R R o

even causes losses. When crisis occurs, the Group will set up a

response team consisting of relevant department
heads to cope with the crisis. The response
team creates a “chat room” using messaging
applications to conduct instant communication
and ensures the crisis can be resolved in an
efficient and timely manner.
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Risk Category

HE .

Production

2R, B i

Risk Description

EXEMAREEREETERXN
RET NAEERWRESEME
ERERE N E R E - B
AR gRE - ERKIFIERF
EERBREE -

Any major disruption at any
of the company’s production
facilities, such as a breakdown
of production lines or a power
shortage or failure at any of the
production facilities may limit,
delay or halt the company’s
production at the production
facilities.

| B 4% % 45 e
Mitigation Controls to the Risk

EIHMERMASRITTIPM (ZEEEEIR)
NBREBEENESEEME  —BHERE
R BIEREFTRAIAREEREEE
BEFPTESTRRIE -

All factories and workshops have fully implemented
TPM (Total Productive Maintenance) work to ensure
that the equipment is in a normal production state.
Once any potential risks are detected, abnormal
situations will be reported immediately to the
equipment maintenance department for handling.

REREBPITEERETRERS - R
BRUWEBRENCNIERNTH  UBRR
T AE s KHEE -

The equipment maintenance department will
also conduct regular equipment inspections to
promptly identify and replace aging or worn-out
components, ensuring that the equipment does
not experience major malfunctions.

REREEERREBSM  BERERA LA
FREEZSGH -WEERE  BESBER
HHEEIW 24/ EERERE o

The warehouse is stocked with common
equipment spare parts. In case of a failure,
relevant parts can be replaced immediately. If
there are no spare parts in the warehouse, an
urgent contact will be made with the equipment
supplier to handle the issue within 24 hours.

EAREENEERBEEEREOIBERLT - 7]
A EEESINGTS ERZHEER o
In circumstances where disruption at the
Group’s production facilities occurs, the
Group can outsource its production processes
immediately, and there are many subcontractors
available in the market.

B EEAR AR 2024/25F 4R
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG*® (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN +*@#
(retired with effect from 26 August 2024)
Mr. Harry Chi HUI**#
Mr. Clement King Man KWOK +@#
Mr. Anish LALVAN|+*@*#
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE**@#
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN**@#

+ Member of the Audit Committee

* Member of the Remuneration Committee

@ Member of the Nomination Committee

# Member of the Corporate Governance Committee

The biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out on
pages 17 to 21 of this annual report. The senior management of the
Company is also the executive directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”).

Mr. Clement King Man KWOK was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company (the “Independent Non-executive
Director(s)”) on 28 November 2024 with his appointment effective
from 1 December 2024. In accordance with Bye-law 100 of the
Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Clement King Man KWOK shall retire and,
being eligible for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

In accordance with Bye-law 109(A) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Anish LALVANI and Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE shall retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Mr.
Anish LALVANI, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE has
informed the Company that he will not be seeking re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. He will therefore retire as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company at the conclusion
of the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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RAFIDWEN BB IIEHITEEREKIEET BB The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive

ERGARAR ([BMZAH])&ESLEMMBRAI(TE  Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to

MBI FE313EMEL BB EMFEEMR Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing

B WADARBEENMBELATLT - Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and still considers them to be independent.

EEERNEE CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
WTHEEBESENEH MR A% Changes in Directors’ information which are required to be disclosed
13.51B() RZBIEIR BB E K} - under Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are set out below:

®H BENEE

Name Details of Changes

FERELAE o FFSHEEHEK W Nelson Interior Design and Contracting Group Limited (A&7 155 -

Mr. Harry Chi HUI 08411) (—EIRNEE X FAGEM E AR BUIFHTEFE BT _HF—H

—HBER -

Mr. Hui resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director of K W Nelson Interior
Design and Contracting Group Limited (stock code: 08411) (a company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange) with effect from 1 January 2025.

e FAEABZERARANCEBARZEGIR ZEABR_ZE_AFNA
:-I—/\EI%%?Z$’AET%%E¢K§%§E&$&
Mr. Hui has been appointed as the Chairman of the Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company which shall take effect from the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 28 August 2025.
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A BEFE

Name Details of Changes

EPA ST A . EB%ELEE“ EEXBEBRAT (BRMHMHE : 00045) (—RARERZFTER L

Mr. Clement King Man KWOK RA)EFRLERTHRAR BT _NE+TA=Z+T—BREEX: KN
T@%E‘E%,%LX@EEBE APTESRTHAHER BT _-_hFHh
AEHRBER-

Mr. Kwok stepped down as the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of The
Hongkong and Shanghai Hotels, Limited (stock code: 00045) (a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) with effect from 31 October 2024. He also
ceased to act as an Executive Director and Advisor to the Chief Executive Officer of
The Hongkong and Shanghai Hotels, Limited with effect from 7 May 2025.

e HNAEBEARBEBFIXABEERKEERSZZRNEZESTR 8=
F—A—HBBER-
Mr. Kwok was appointed as the Chairperson of the Advisory Committee on Hotel and
Tourism Management of The Chinese University of Hong Kong with effect from 1
January 2025.

o EABZERRLEMEBRALAG (RMHMR - 00272) (—AREIRZFTER L
AR BN TER BT _AFtA—HEER-
Mr. Kwok was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of Shui On
Land Limited (stock code: 00272) (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange) with effect from 1 July 2025.

MFEFRE e FEEBRERRABUIFNTES UK ITBEETERRAGEERZESE

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE B UARARFIBEZEZEE FHEZEeRkERZEEeXE BZFT_AFN
RZ+N\BEERITZ2ARRARREAFRGAREER
Mr. Lee will retire as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company and will
cease to be the Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee of the Company
and a member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company, which shall take effect from the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
28 August 2025.

B ECRT#HEE SN 0 BARDF2024/257 EiER 4 Save as disclosed above, there was no substantial change in

BEHUKREHEEAREBHEMEEEER 2EF A Directors’ information since the date of the 2024/25 Interim Report

B EABE FTHRAEIZSIB)EELHEE - of the Company and up to the date of this report which is required

BEE7EAABHENRAATMEIL NI — to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules. The

[REEZR]—H - biographical details of Directors are available in the “Investors” under
“About Us” section on the Company’s website.
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EERBEH

BRABRITZARABRRAEAFAE LEEET
ZEE BEEARAZIARRE-FATH
EATERECEERERIN 2BRTAFURE
LEZRIEEH

EE=H M

FRESHFMAFTRRPBRERME -

EENRZ  ZHAEHNTZERER

BAFHRABEESN  EFARFRELEREHE
HpRESKRESTAMENEBNANGKEER
ERERBREEARDSNERR S  HEAH -

BAEFFNREERXI

BRARFRERZREFNRBMEGRSCREAR
ERFARABREER AR —BEEN - RBEZ
E_RF=ZRA=1T—HLEZUBFEAR AQF
TERARRLREMBARIZEEBEEENTT
BABEERE  AAHEERERTREBEES
AT REE AR BR EIR L R SRR -

EEREROHES ZER
PR 1A 3T B R ) — 5 I B A5 SRR Y R 31 A

BN AR AHEEAIMBER AR FEARNALET] L
ER L BERARAREZAEBEARFNE
MEMEABRBZEOKEFMEDR MEF
RRITBABRBEFZRBIAMT/\RZTX
REABEFERAIRBARNRBEFES 2 TAHERN
TMEATEAE R LSRR -

EENBRER 2ES
R-ZE-_RAF=ZA=+t—H BERTEERE
BRREZEERAEEEEEREFRAEBRHET
M RTSIRA T i

Bl EEAER AT 2024/25 4

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of Directors’ emoluments for the year are set out in note 9 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance in which any Director or any entity connected
with the Director is or was materially interested, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force during the year and at
the time of approval of this report. The Company has also purchased
the Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance to provide adequate
protection against claims arising from the lawful discharge of duties
by the Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries throughout the
financial year ended 31 March 2025.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Options” above
and in note 31 to the financial statements, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate, and none of the Directors, chief executive
or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
right during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2025, none of the Executive Directors had any interest
in a business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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EERRY  HEROGRES ZEZKX  DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
xR SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

RZE_RAF=—A=+—H AREIZEEITE As at 31 March 2025, the number of issued ordinary shares of the
B EH A630,531,6000% : A ARIEE K&e  Company was 630,531,600; and the interests and short positions
THAERARRSETMAEEE (F&FFE  of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
E NSO ([FAHREEEN]) EXVER) 2% underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
7 HERMDRESTEAERBEESFMIEES  corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
FINEBELNARBIEFNERLMAZE  Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the register of the
S AORE SRR ET AR BB EXC3 £ E 1T A Company required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as
BERETEERSGHZESTA([1Z25FR]]) M otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
BITHMEARRNRIRBRIMEZRARINT to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

(@) RAEATRGREBERGZEFE (@) Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company
AEER HARAFE
rHEA R 15 * ERTEBER
ZRER ZBABE D
Interest in Approximate percentage
EEHA 514 ordinary shares/ Ff & of the Company’s
Name of Director Capacity underlying shares* Notes issued ordinary shares
CE=—p ) EmlEA A 9,730,000 (i) 1.54%
Lai Yuen CHIANG Beneficial owner
Htb 399,641,620 (2) 63.38%
Other
ERR EmEA A 2,666,000 (ii) 0.42%
Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG Beneficial owner
PR BE )t EmEA A 484,000 - 0.08%
Johnson Chin Kwang TAN Beneficial owner
Anish LALVANI Htb 652,000 (iii) 0.10%
Other
st - Notes:
() RZEHZRET - 4,730,000 58 REHRTE () Among these interests, 4,730,000 were share options granted by
E(EREEHAAN) 2BRE - the Company to the Director as beneficial owner.
(i) RezEHEzEF 0 2,000,000 5482 FERTE (i) Among these interests, 2,000,000 were share options granted by
E(EREEHAAN) 2BRE - the Company to the Director as beneficial owner.
(i) ZEROERDUEZEETHEZEZEA (i) These interests in shares were held in the capacity as discretionary
iAo beneficiary of a discretionary trust.
* BRARRREERERTHRAERARAA * Details of the interests of the Directors and chief executive of the
BHzBRENHEEROERZ ZFBHEN Company in the underlying shares in respect of the share options
T [FEARRE] —&D - granted by the Company are set out in the section headed “Share

Options” below.
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(b) REBIERGOGZHFE (b) Long positions in shares of associated corporations
)y REHEREBRAG([BHEKRE]D Z () Interests in ordinary shares of Chen Hsong Investments
Tim i Limited (“CH Investments”):
HEERE
ERTEER
BRGZBABED L
NE B IR 2 s Approximate percentage of
EENA 5% Interest in Bt & the issued ordinary
Name of Director Capacity ordinary shares Notes shares of CH Investments
R it 58,220,300 @) 100.00%
Lai Yuen CHIANG Other

AATESREREL L REIERS
TR A B D 2 s -

(i) Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG, a Director of the Company, is
deemed to be interested in the shares of the following

associated corporations:

15 A5 = B H B E A
ERTROZBAE DL
Approximate percentage
of the relevant class

B EEEE Rz Fff = of issued shares of

Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes  associated corporation

Assetwise Holdings Limited D& R e (1), (3 100.00%
1 ordinary share

B (PE)KREFR QA 2R EAR R RIRIEAR () (1), (3 100.00%
Chen Hsong (PRC) Investment 2 non-voting deferred shares

Company Limited

EHHEERAR A A 50,000,000 A% (1), (3) 100.00%
Chen Hsong Machinery Company, B ERELER D
Limited 50,000,000
non-voting deferred shares

Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited 1 A& AT BE |l f 19 (1) 100.00%
1 redeemable share

CHI Dorset Square Limited 4,264,675 [ @A (1), (6) 100.00%

4,264,675 ordinary shares

Bl EEAER AT 2024/25 4
s
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i

HAEBSEE B BER

ERTROZBNE DL

Approximate percentage

of the relevant class

HEEEER RBH 2z e Ff =E of issued shares of

Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes  associated corporation

EIBR AT 1 im (1), (3) 100.00%
Continuous Victory Limited 1 ordinary share

HHTB R AR 2 f i A (1), (4) 100.00%
Desee Limited 2 ordinary shares

EHBRAQT 2 g E AR (1), (4) 100.00%
Desko Limited 2 ordinary shares

H#ERAR QA 1R AR 1), 3) 100.00%
Elegant City Developments Limited 1 ordinary share

Elite Sino Investments Limited 2 f i ), 3 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

BEZEBR AT 2 P i (1), 3) 100.00%
Equaltex Investment Limited 2 ordinary shares

BXERAA 2 f i A (1), (4) 100.00%
Goman Limited 2 ordinary shares

Gondmyne Limited 100,000 f% & 3 i% (1), (3 100.00%
100,000 ordinary shares

Granwich Limited 1 i 1), ) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

BB BB REERE 52,570,000 [i% & 18 iz (1), (3) 75.10%

AR AR

Hong Kong Cad-Cam Services Limited 52,570,000 ordinary shares

Kadom Limited 2 P i A (1), (3) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

ESRIEEBR AR 1 m (1), (5) 100.00%

KCI Investments Limited

1 ordinary share

EEAR AT 2024/25 F5
e
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LB EEERER
ERTROZBANE DL
Approximate percentage
of the relevant class

HEEEER ARGz = B =E of issued shares of
Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes  associated corporation
SHhERAA 2 B i (1), 4) 100.00%
Koyoki Limited 2 ordinary shares
EiEBR A A 2 B i (1), (4) 100.00%
Mikia Limited 2 ordinary shares
R2BRRF 2R E AR (1), (4) 100.00%
Mogin Limited 2 ordinary shares
Pacific Concept Global Limited 6 1% T i A% (1), (3) 60.00%
6 ordinary shares
K B BR A A 2R B (1), (4) 100.00%
Parot Limited 2 ordinary shares
Perfect Choice Global Limited 1 g Em A (1), (3) 100.00%
1 ordinary share
EEMTHBERAR 2 B i (1), (4) 100.00%
Potachi Limited 2 ordinary shares
Pro-Team Pacific Limited 1A% @A 1), 3 100.00%
1 ordinary share
FEBR A A 2B (1), (4) 100.00%
Rikon Limited 2 ordinary shares
hEBH R A A 2 B i (1), (4) 100.00%
Semicity Limited 2 ordinary shares
LB RA A 2 B i (1), (4) 100.00%
Sibeland Limited 2 ordinary shares
SEXBRAA Pl &= g il (1), (4) 100.00%
Sumei Limited 2 ordinary shares
mAEIEEFRAA] 1R E AR 1), 3 100.00%

Value Creation Group Limited

1 ordinary share

B EEAR AR 2024/25F 4R
S
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ffat -

(1)  Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited
155 E 1% & 100% 4 25 © Chiangs’
Industrial Holdings Limited Bl
Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited 2 &4 °
Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited & #& & T
¥z%EEe ([BEES) 22HE
FEZETEA  IRIBFHFRAERKRD -
A A 5 BB o &2 & & % % A Proficient
City Investments Limited 2 100% f&
B RARBEEES ZHENEE
BRmAZER—G BERER
BREARMDFEEER -

(2) It Ty Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited & £
B 2 ¥ %5 M Cititrust (Bahamas)
Limited BEEES ZE5EA  MES
ESHERBEREBIRE 100% #m ©
REFES KGR - BREBBK
+E A Proficient City Investments
Limited 2 100% &5 * 2 AR BES
B HBNEERITHEAZHES —
7 BESRIERBRRGIFEER -

(B HERHEABBRERA -

(4) S mEHRE S EGondmyne
Limited #3548 -

(5)  ZE =B ENEE B B Assetwise
Holdings Limited B A o

(6) ZEHEmmhEHIEE S A Perfect
Choice Global Limited S #4 -

R EXFEBEEIN R-T_HF=
A=1t—B ARAFREFEHRFTH
A BB ERAR AT A AEEEE
(EEREFMHEGROIEXVEL) Z K
- HEROXEFTHEBRERES
K HAE R 352 R A E RN AR A
PEFHE LM A 2 EERTIOAR -
SRBIFEETAUMASITAEARA]
MR 2 e SRR

EEEBEBR AT 2024/25F%

Notes:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(%)

(6)

Save

Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited holds 100% interest
in CH Investments. In turn, Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings
Limited is wholly-owned by Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited.
Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited is the trustee of a discretionary
trust, namely The Chiang Chen Industrial Charity
Foundation (the “Charity Foundation”). By virtue of the
SFO, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG is deemed to be interested in
the relevant shares as she beneficially owns 100% shares
in Proficient City Investments Limited, one of the several
eligible beneficiaries of the Charity Foundation.

This represents the interest indirectly held by Cititrust
(Bahamas) Limited, the trustee of the Charity Foundation,
which holds 100% indirect interest in CH Investments. By
virtue of the SFO, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG is deemed to be
interested in the relevant shares as she beneficially owns
100% shares in Proficient City Investments Limited, one of
the several eligible beneficiaries of the Charity Foundation.

Such interests are held by CH Investments.

Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments
through Gondmyne Limited.

Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments
through Assetwise Holdings Limited.

Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments
through Perfect Choice Global Limited.

as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, none

of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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ARmz B8 ([FERcEst 8 ) M EH N
BERAIFESL -

ARRERMAEERNARRE—FT—NFNA
—t+mA(TRABH) BT ZBRREAFAE it
EZBEBERE BRABHERRTF - BK
BB R —_E_WFAA-+=REN " T
BREOCABRREBREZZL  EREBR
R EE R ERARTENBREREEFR
W AT AR IR B AR M S BIR A 2 FR e T AT AR T

REARBEEREFIEST(Eh BT RER
BRR)MAEEEETREFANBERENEE K
R-F-RAF=ZA=T—BHRTENBREDN
HIEmT

SHARE OPTIONS

A summary of the share option scheme of the Company (the “Share
Option Scheme”) is set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

The Company had adopted the Share Option Scheme approved by
the Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 24 September 2014 (“Adoption Date”) with a term of 10 years
from the Adoption Date. The Share Option Scheme expired on 23
September 2024, under which no further grant of share options shall
be offered. The outstanding share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance
with the rules of the Share Option Scheme.

Details of the movements in the share options held by the Directors (one
of whom is also a substantial Shareholder) and the selected employees
of the Group under the Share Option Scheme during the year and
outstanding as at 31 March 2025 were as follows:

BhRELE
Number of share options
fikE
RZ2-RmE R-8-E% sR(E%)
A-A ZB=t-H Exercise price
SRR AT EH RHAH Asat R BT T 3 Asat  fTEEH Hiak per share
Name or category of participant ~ Date of grant 1 April 2024 Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed 31 March 2025  Exercise period Notes (HKS)
#-5
Category |
gz
Directors
BRI (Mt b)) 2111112020 2,200,000 - - - - 2,200,000 27/11/2022 - 26/11/2030 (5)6) 220
Lai Yuen CHIANG (ofe (6)  21/01/2022 1,900,000 - - - - 1900000 21/01/2024 - 20/01/2032 (o) 249
06/12/2023 630,000 - - - - 630,000  06/12/2025-05/12/2033 (o) 143
BR 211112020 1,200,000 - - - - 1200000 27/11/2022 - 26/11/2030 (o) 220
Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG ~ 21/01/2022 600,000 - - - - 600,000  21/01/2024 - 20/01/2032 (5)61) 249
06/1212023 200,000 - - - - 200000 06/12/2025- 05/12/2033 (o) 143
£28
Category Il
EERE (W) (85) 2111112020 2,640,000 - - - (100,000) 2540000 27/11/2022 - 26/11/2030 (5)(i 220
Selected employees (Note (3)) -~ 21/01/2022 840,000 - - - - 840,000 21/01/2024 - 20/01/2032 (5)(i) 249
(in aggregate) 061212023 2,270,000 - - - (30,000) 2240000  06/12/2025- 05/12/2033 (o)) 143
16/09/2024 - 1,110,000 - - - 1,110,000 16/09/2026 - 15/09/2034 (5)(i 144
#ZK
Category I1I
EERE (W) (83t 2111112020 1,890,000 - - - (600,000) 1290000 27/11/2023 - 26/11/2030 (o)) 220
Selected employees (Nofe (3) ~ 21101/2022 1,180,000 - - - (100,000) 1,080,000  21/01/2025 - 20/01/2032 (5)ii) 249
(in aggregate) 061212023 2,910,000 - - - (670,000 2240000  06/12/2026 - 05/12/2033 (o)) 143
16/09/2024 - 2,240,000 - - (100,000 2,140000  16/09/2027 - 15/09/2034 (o)) 144
it
Total 18460,000 3,350,000 - - (1,600,0000 20,210,000

Bl EEERAR 2024/25FH
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BhEHE
Number of share options
ke
RZ2-QmE RZB-EE BROEB)
A-A =R=1-A Exercise price
SEAEALER RiLAH As at Rt BAk i P Asat  fEH i per share
Name or category of participant Date of grant 1 April 2024 Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed 31 March 2025  Exercise period Notes (HKS)
ERSFMzEEAL (M (10)
Five highest paid individuals
(Note (10)
£-%
Category |
g2
Directors
EER(W06) 271112020 2,200,000 - - - - 2200000 2711112022 - 261112030 (5)(i) 220
Lai Yuen CHIANG (Note (6)) 21/01/2022 1,900,000 - - - - 1,900,000 21/01/2024 - 20/01/2032 (5)(i 249
06/12/2023 630,000 - - - - 630,000 06/12/2025 - 05/12/2033 (5)(i 143
R 271112020 1,200,000 - - - - 1,200,000 27112022 - 26/11/2030 (50 220
Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG 21001/2022 600,000 - - - - 600000  21/01/2024 - 20/01/2032 (5)(i) 249
0611212023 200,000 - - - - 200000 06/12/2025 - 05/12/2033 (o) 1436
2R
Category Il
ErEE (W) (85) 271112020 600,000 - - - - 600,000  27/11/2022 - 26/11/2030 (5)i 220
Selected employees (Note (3)) 2110112022 200,000 - - - - 200000 21/01/2024 - 20/01/2032 (o) 249
(in aggregate) 0611212023 70,000 - - - - 70000 061212025 - 05/12/2033 (o) 143
16/09/2024 - - - - - - 16/09/2026 - 15/09/2034 (5)i 144
%8
Category I11
EREE (WG (B5t) 271112020 - - - - - - 21N12023-2611/2030  (5)iii) 220
Selected employees (Note (3)) 21/01/2022 - - - - - - 2100172025~ 20001/2032  (B)iil 249
(in aggregate) 0611212023 150,000 - - - - 150000 0611212026 - 051212033 (b)) 1436
16/09/2024 - 400000 - - - 400000 16/09/2027 - 15/09/2034  (B)(i) 144
a1t
Total 7,750,000 400,000 - - - 8,150,000
EHEEEABR AR 2024/25 Fik CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25 83
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B e
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fRE8

HERR BEEE2EE - SIEMEMEERE
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LT F—RAZ+—H ZEBZ=F+= HAE
RZZTZMEAARARE A B2 ATHIRR 5 W
MED R ABK222 T - B 2447T - BH1.41
TTRABE1447T -

fERR BB A L B ARG EEEITE A
IR AE R ¢
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50%BERESFNBREARE —AFERE
MEAFE BREEIL AT T6E - MR EER
BRI AR BB AR R W T S RITEE

(i) HMEEWMS  ASARAREZ30% -
30% }40% M B I A B ERE — A
F FNRAFREABAFERLEBLA
T B EB A AT R R A R w
TERTE - F_BMSRBEREZRE
AREZRIFERE -

REZHME  MESARAREZ30% -
30% K 40% B HED RN FEH B ME =
F FRAFERELRAFERLERBILA
TT6E - EBEB A A R R A R W
THERITE - F=FMSREREZ RS
ARESREFAE -

(iii)

BB A
HIHIR

FETIZEMKRERBIER RO S
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Notes:

(1)

(2)

(4)

(5)

All of the above grants of share options (except the grants on 6 December
2023 and 16 September 2024) were made prior to the amendments to
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules taking effect on 1 January 2023.

None of the grants of share options to any participant is in excess of the
1% individual limit.

Such category included employee participants only. No share options
had been granted to any related entity participant or service provider.

The closing prices of the shares immediately before the date on which
the share options were granted on 27 November 2020, 21 January
2022, 6 December 2023 and 16 September 2024 were HK$2.22,
HK$2.44, HK$1.41 and HK$1.44 respectively.

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the
commencement of the relevant exercise period:

(i) In respect of Category |, as to 50% and 50% of the share options
granted to each grantee shall be vested on and are exercisable
from the date falling on the second and fourth anniversary from
the date of grant respectively provided that no share options shall
be exercised after ten years from the date of grant.

(ii) In respect of Category I, as to 30%, 30% and 40% of the share
options granted to each grantee shall be vested on and are
exercisable from the date falling on the second, fourth and sixth
anniversary from the date of grant respectively provided that no
share options shall be exercised after ten years from the date
of grant. Vesting of the share options in respect of Category Il is
subject to the consent of the Chairman of the Board.

(iii)  In respect of Category I, as to 30%, 30% and 40% of the share
options granted to each grantee shall be vested on and are
exercisable from the date falling on the third, fifth and seventh
anniversary from the date of grant respectively provided that no
share options shall be exercised after ten years from the date of
grant. Vesting of the share options in respect of Category Il is
subject to the consent of the Chairman of the Board.

The vesting of the share options is not subject to any performance target
and/or clawback mechanism.
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REBEEHLPE GRS BERLLE (RRAEE -
HITESREBLENTIZERR ANESHS
REESZHENABREHEAEP —L1,2100%
By MEAEESZETAHERBERERE
(%A A48 399,641,620 R A% 1 - M5 AN A RIRA AR
WEEHHAE BTN 2 63.38%) 2 100% HE -
FE UL IR R B BHR AR A AR BN

e g

W o

R-ZT-PFMA—8 - ARGE AR EE R E
A EI% 39,113,160 B i1 - R=—_F_WF N A
+ 758 0 K22 RE A ££3,350,000 88 f% 1 - #E
BEFEH R E-_NFEFNLA-_+=ZBE®m
TR B LR BERE L EIRE Y 24 - R
ST EIE M AT - AT AR MR IR AR AR AT B9 M 2 BB AR
W4 535,763,160 © [EARARIEETRDEE
25.67% ° AR B RIE AR ERT B A T T
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FRBEE)  HARRAREBEE_ZE-_RAF=A
—+—HIEFEANDETRMEE 23.21%
R b Rt BN 2 2 RIS IRIE B D IER A -

BHE-_Z-_RAF=-A=1+—HLEFERN BEX
NEIERETEIR L MEREm ] FREIT R
mEE (BN3,350,000 ) RAKR R BIREEZZF
—hAF=ZA=Zt+—HULEFEZERTZTBERAH
(BRBE-_Z-_AF=ZA=+—HUIEFERAR
R BT EES) - B1630,531,600 B%) By hn
T2 A 0.53% -

HE_Z_AF=ZA=+—HLFEREREEAX
WEBE  ARQRWELREFRD -

REBEE-_T-_RAF=A=1+—HIFE x&£H
Bz At AL BEMEEER=2EE -

EEEBEBR AT 2024/25F%

(6)

(7)

8

9

(10)

By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (the Chairman, an Executive
Director and the Chief Executive Officer and a substantial Shareholder
of the Company) is also deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by CH Investments, a company holding 399,641,620
shares, representing 63.38% of the issued shares of the Company as
at the date of this report, as she beneficially owns 100% shares in one
of the several eligible beneficiaries of the Charity Foundation, where the
trustee thereof indirectly holds 100% interest in CH Investments.

As at 1 April 2024, 39,113,160 share options were available for grant
under the Share Option Scheme. On 16 September 2024, the Company
granted a total of 3,350,000 share options. The Share Option Scheme
expired on 23 September 2024, under which no further grant of share
options shall be offered. Prior to the expiry of the Share Option Scheme,
the total number of shares options available for grant under the Share
Option Scheme were 35,763,160, representing 5.67% of the number of
issued shares of the Company. The total number of shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme were 20,210,000, representing
3.21% of the number of issued shares of the Company during the year
ended 31 March 2025, which were outstanding share options as at the
date of this report. There was no service provider sublimit set under the
Share Option Scheme.

The number of shares that may be issued in respect of share options
granted under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31
March 2025 (i.e., 3,350,000) divided by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2025 (i.e.,
630,531,600, where there has been no movements in the issued shares
of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025) was 0.53%.

The Company does not have any treasury shares during the year ended
31 March 2025 and up to the date of this report.

The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2025 included two Directors and three employees.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25
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FTERRREMATABRO REBKRS SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
ZHEBERRE PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

AZE_RE=ZA=+—8 B AQITEESKHE Asat 31 March 2025, so far as was known to the Directors and chief
BITEABA - BIEFE S R EKAIZE3361  executive of the Company, the interests or short positions of substantial
BEFHNARBECMATREE 2 EZEREREM  Shareholders and other persons in the shares and underlying shares
ATRARRGE 25 RABR G 2 Sk X B0 of the Company as recorded in the register of the Company required to

N be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
RELATRBREBERGZHE Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company
TER HAATE
HHEARR 1D ERTERER
R 2 ZBABE DL
Number of Approximate percentage
BRREB R i8] ordinary shares/  Fft&E of the Company’s
Name of Shareholder Capacity underlying shares*  Notes issued ordinary shares
EHIRE BB A 399,641,620 (1) 63.38%
CH Investments Beneficial owner
Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited A 1R41AE 2 #3S 399,641,620 1) 63.38%
Interest of controlled
corporation
Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited EFTA 399,641,620 (1) 63.38%
Trustee
BE EnHBA 9,730,000 ) 1.54%
Lai Yuen CHIANG Beneficial owner
HA 399,641,620 (3) 63.38%
Other
Proficient City Investments Limited ~ RS H A E 7w 399,641,620 (3) 63.38%
Interest of controlled
corporation
David Michael WEBB REREGEE 2 48,004,000 (4) 7.61%
Interest of controlled
corporation
86 EHEBEABR AT 2024/25FH CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25
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(1) SEEBERAREA 2R —BLR o B Cititrust
(Bahamas) Limited BB ZE & 2555 A+ #1
RIERBRARGOHE#EZ  MZSEBERM D
3% 1B H A % 2 X @ Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings
Limited 7E B B 356 100% S MFHH ©

=103

(2) MZERERD 4,730,000 BKQAF)FTFES (E
BEDHEBAN) ZBRE-

(3 WIHERMREREZR—HRD o B Proficient
City Investments Limited B EEH ¢ 7 &1 & E 1%
T AZHPR A BMWRIERBEARGO I E#E
7 0 MR R 2 % R R S5 L £ & Proficient City
Investments Limited M — B 25 I8 R ©

(4)  1R4%David Michael WEBB AR —ZE - FHF=AH
T HEXCEREERN  ZERHMHERH
Preferable Situation Assets Limited &2 Member One
Limited 58 + %% /A 7/ David Michael WEBB %t
A 100% $2 ] -

* BRAARBEERESTRABRARARHZ
B ARR B B s 2 FHIT I ST RE A

—ff e

Br EXFIEEEIN  RZE-RAF=A=+—8"
BEE R E M A T BB AR R Z D 8D
ZRESBORR MARERIRIEE ST KR EGRHIFE
HEARBIMEFZELMA -

EEEBEBR AT 2024/25F%

Notes:

(1) This represents the same parcel of shares held by CH Investments.
Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited is deemed to have interest in the relevant
shares by virtue of being the trustee of the Charity Foundation,
and the relevant shares are held through its controlled corporation,
Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited, which holds 100% interest in CH
Investments.

(2)  Among these interests, 4,730,000 were share options granted by the
Company to the Director as beneficial owner.

(3)  This represents the same parcel of shares held by CH Investments.
Proficient City Investments Limited is deemed to have interest in the
relevant shares by virtue of being one of the several eligible beneficiaries
of the Charity Foundation and Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG, a Director of the
Company, is the sole beneficial shareholder of Proficient City Investments
Limited.

(4)  Based on the notice of disclosure of interests of Mr. David Michael WEBB
filed on 31 March 2025, these interests in shares are held by Preferable
Situation Assets Limited and Member One Limited, companies 100%
controlled by Mr. David Michael WEBB.

Details of the interests of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company in the underlying shares in respect of the share options
granted by the Company are set out in the section headed “Share
Options” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, no other persons were
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO as having interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance
between any members of the Group and any of the controlling
Shareholders of the Company, or any of their subsidiaries, subsisted
during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existing during the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policy, including the determination of
salaries and bonuses, is in line with the local practices where the
Company and its subsidiaries operate. The Remuneration Committee
of the Company reviews the emolument policy and structure for the
remuneration package for the Directors of the Company (including
Executive Directors who are also senior management of the Company),
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual duties and
performance and comparable market statistics as well as prevailing
market conditions. The Remuneration Policy of the Directors of the
Company is reviewed by the Remuneration Committee.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as rewards or
incentives to Directors of the Company and selected employees of the
Group, details of the scheme are set out in the section headed “Share
Options” above and in note 31 to the financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had no connected transactions that were
subject to the Listing Rules’ reporting requirements for disclosure in
this annual report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as

“Related Parties” under applicable accounting principles. Details are
set out in note 35 to the financial statements.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
sufficient amount of public float of more than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares during the year and up to the date of this report as
required under the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 22 to 63 of this
annual report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2025 have been audited by Ernst & Young who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for re-
appointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lai Yuen CHIANG
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 20 June 2025
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chen
Hsong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 98 to 231, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2025,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2025, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") as issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (continued)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in
that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BEEITEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEEEETFRNAEEKN

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

JEY B 5 BR 50 ) 60 18 A1y

As at 31 March 2025, after netting off with an aggregate
impairment provision of HK$91,633,000, the total net
carrying amount of the Group’s trade receivables was
HK$1,130,754,000. Significant judgements and estimates
are applied by management, based on the lifetime expected
credit loss approach, in assessing whether the trade
receivables are recoverable and if impairment provision is
required. Management considers various factors, including
the ageing of the trade receivables, historical collection
patterns, existence of any disputes, trading history with
each customer, prevailing and expected future market
conditions and other available information concerning the
creditworthiness of customers.

Related disclosures about trade receivables are included in
notes 4 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

R-ZE_AF=ZA=+t—H BEXEENEKEZEX
AEHBR B # 91,633,000 THUR ER 1R - HFH LB
1,130,754,0007T - EE EREHEMEEBER T A EH
BERAE KA AFGEREE SERAES A E &R E
BRERLFMNR EEEZERZEEREREREZEREIXY
Bl - NEERTE  FREAEM REENEFHE
Sk RENERRKRTERANEMBEREFEE
BEEMEM -

EHREESRFNBEFTE  HNEAYBRERME
4521 -

Our audit procedures included evaluating management’s
assessment methodology, and the inputs and assumptions

the credit terms granted by the Group, historical collection

applied by management in performing the impairment
assessment by checking the ageing of trade receivables,

patterns and post year-end settlements, of selected
samples of customers. In addition, we assessed the
published economic indices that management applied
in their assessment of the impairment provision for trade
receivables.

BHANBRAEZEFEBEFHERENFGETE UREB
BHRENBEATPREEZBERNEER - EREET
ZIEEH  BEERREHEARIRENERIEN - AT
BEEEEETRENEBRANERMER - 1
BAFFAEEERARNFEELE SRFREREBHE
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (continued)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (continued)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

REMBRBT G RRAENSZ(E(E) AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

o EEEMRASTERNKEMERED
SRR MARKEN SR -

s HEERARELLSTERNREMLRE
hAEWR - RIBMEDRNESERE  BEL
BHFEEEERFTNERNERNTHEEN -
femA By BEXRENRKELERED
ELEBARE NRUMBB/FEEAT
BEM AU EERBMmREETIRS
FEREIBEBMBWMERTOEMBE-
SEARMEETR  AIRMEEERIE
BREER o RN AR 22T & B &
EHIEMERENESRE - A KREFE
ARIEN LSRR BRETEFELE -

s HESAUBHROEBREIEIA B
MAR BREKE AREEMHE®RERE
ERERRRZFMEIR -

o HFEAWMTT EXENE L EKHE
NERIEGIFINMEEEERTR
EENERSTERE  FREYGAVBRERE
XERAZEM -HMAE BESEFH
HIMAAITHRET TIER TR - BEBEFEE -
BMABTERAERIHEE-

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit
work performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

MBEMEEN RMEFEZXEESEBRTHEIAN  We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

EITHE BELY EAEEIES B matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

PIFEER R AR 38 A1 () 0 2B B 428 9 (F 1A] B8 KBRS © audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (continued)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Ka Wing (practising certificate number:
P07059).

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

20 June 2025
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Consolidated Income Statement

Year ended 31 March 2025

| s

HE_Z-_RAF=-A=+—RHILFE

(B#FT) (HK$°000) K75+ Notes 2025 2024
U &= REVENUE 6 2,594,735 2,009,545
HE KA Cost of sales (1,984,983) (1,532,561)
EF Gross profit 609,752 476,984
H At U A K U 25 5 58 Other income and gains, net 106,880 108,357
SHE Ry HET Selling and distribution expenses (279,851) (219,167)
TEE Administrative expenses (145,401) (153,069)
Hab e bFs Other operating expenses, net (101,605) (86,712)
B & KA Finance costs 8 (1,561) (1,199)
FEAL B2 A Bl m NRUE R Share of profits less losses of associates 1,411 (52)
BRF AR F PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 189,625 125,142
FTigfFi Income tax expense 11 (35,620) (26,283)
REEEF PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 154,005 98,859
BER ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
RARERFTEA Equity holders of the Company 154,386 100,853
IR = Non-controlling interests (381) (1,994)
154,005 98,859
RATER EARNINGS PER SHARE
BHE ARG ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
BRER HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 13
EARCGENM) Basic (HK cents) 24.5 16.0
g CBl) Diluted (HK cents) 24.5 16.0

Bl EEAER AT 2024/25 4
s
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Consoliclated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 March 2025

(B FT) (HK$°000) 2025 2024
REERBR PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 154,005 98,859
Hir2mEmUE(ZH) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSES)
AR A & BRI E #7748 Other comprehensive expenses that may be
Bk AM reclassified to the income statement in
FEHZM subsequent periods:
ME 3 =R - Exchange differences:
BMEFINETE 2 Exchange differences on translation
PE 5 =% of foreign operations (74,574) (84,067)
FEAGEE = A B H A Share of other comprehensive
EEXH expenses of associates (345) (1,004)
REEWNBARZ Release of exchange fluctuation reserve
SRR IE S B upon disposal of subsidiaries (2,062) _
AIREZ R ES »fE Net other comprehensive expenses that
ZE R ZEAM may be reclassified to the income
>HEY HERE statement in subsequent periods (76,981) (85,071)
TEREEBREEN 75 Other comprehensive income/(expenses)
Ehmk s EmEE that will not be reclassified to the income
Weas (FH) - statement in subsequent periods:
BNz BE NS Actuarial gains on a defined benefit plan 462 1,755
W B 2 W (A5 14) Gain on property revaluation (note 14) - 72,112
Frigtic w2 Income tax effect - (18,028)
- 54,084
TR EEARER Net other comprehensive income that
DREEWERZEM will not be reclassified to the income
2HEWEFE statement in subsequent periods 462 55,839
REEHMPEXH - OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES
HIBR 18 FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (76,519) (29,232)
AEEHEEE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
g FOR THE YEAR 77,486 69,627
BER: ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
RABEZEHEEA Equity holders of the Company 78,127 72,129
PR = Non-controlling interests (641) (2,502)
77,486 69,627
Bt EEARA T 2024/25 43 CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25 99
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As at 31 March 2025

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

(BEEFoT) (HK$'000) K75+ Notes 2025 2024
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
WE - WE K& Property, plant and equipment 14 546,815 551,750
wEYE Investment properties 15 358,347 388,071
FHESE Right-of-use assets 16(a) 56,111 58,120
BES Goodwill 17 51,905 51,905
mEEE Intangible assets 18 1,808 2,648
REE QR 2 ®E Investments in associates 19 25,673 24,607
EETIREE Deferred tax assets 29 28,880 31,065
HBEWME BB & Deposits for purchases of items of

BHEA property, plant and equipment 12,953 5,474
FEE 5 R EHERR Trade and bills receivables 21 109,824 86,214
TEREENEE Defined benefit assets 28 5,041 4,764
IERENE ELBET Total non-current assets 1,197,357 1,204,618
REEE CURRENT ASSETS
BE Inventories 20 788,554 694,637
FEWE 5 K ERIR Trade and bills receivables 21 1,463,974 1,232,090
e ENRER Deposits, prepayments and

o FEULBR 5K other receivables 22 242,116 137,119
eI R E A EBR K Finance lease receivables 23 - 1,610
EHRBITIF N Pledged bank deposits 24 138,784 47,899
Re RIR1THER Cash and bank balances 25 528,179 825,777
ME)E EEG Total current assets 3,161,607 2,939,132
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
JERTE 5 R ERRR Trade and bills payables 26 816,347 623,110
HMEMAERR Other payables, accruals and

ErtaERaHNEE contract liabilities 27 302,654 290,667
HEARE Lease liabilities 16(b) 4,274 3,429
FETREIR Tax payable 40,684 36,746
mBaEET Total current liabilities 1,163,959 953,952
REBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,997,648 1,985,180
EEHAER TOTAL ASSETS LESS

REBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,195,005 3,189,798

B EEAR AR 2024/25F 4R
S
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continuea)
As at 31 March 2025

SBEMBRRR @)

WZZE-_hF=A=+—H

(B Fr) (HK$°000) K75F Notes 2025 2024

FRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

HEfENERER R ETAE Other payables and accruals 27 4,431 11,195

HEaE Lease liabilities 16(b) 13,262 13,910

EERIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 29 88,940 90,624

EmBAFEAT Total non-current liabilities 106,633 115,729

EERE NET ASSETS 3,088,372 3,074,069

= EQUITY

EAREREBEEA Equity attributable to equity holders

PE{LRE = of the Company

BEITIR AR Issued share capital 30 63,053 63,053

& Reserves 32 3,018,517 2,994,477
3,081,570 3,057,530

JEIE R Non-controlling interests 6,802 16,539

FEHBE TOTAL EQUITY 3,088,372 3,074,069

#BE%E Lai Yuen CHIANG
T JEFFE[F 4 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

8% R Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG
& 3 Director

LB BR AR 2024/25 %3
R IIIIIIhhh____—_—_—eS ,ss5Sss5s,s,s,s,e=;s;,s,,;,m;—,;—;_m_—_—~=.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 March 2025

2025
AARAEREE AERS
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BEfT Rt EXEE
R RER it
Issued Share Capital BARE LEHE -—REE
M st share  premium redemption Capital  Statutory General
(EEFT) (HK$000) Notes capital  account reserve reserve reserve reserve
RZZE-MEMA—H AtlApril 2024 63,053 509,580 295 58,478 150,702 2,351
KEZHEF,/(BE)  Profit(loss) for the year - - _ _ _ _
AEEEMERE Other comprehensive income/
W/ () (expenses) for the year:
BEGNEB 2 Exchange differences on translation
EHERE of foreign operations - - - - - -
il =N Share of other comprehensive
Hith 2@ expenses of associates - - - - - -
REERBARZ Release of exchange fluctuation
BRELE reserve upon disposal of
& subsidiaries 38 - - - - - -
EERME Actuarial gains on a defined
fBE M= benefit plan 28 - - - - - -
AEREEA Total comprehensive income/
Was /() (expenses) for the year - - - - - -
DABR A 10 Equity-settled share option
ERERY arrangements 31 - - - 1,400 _ _
HEHBRA Disposal of subsidiaries 38 - - - - - -
=& /ﬁnﬂﬁﬁ Transfer from retained profits - - - - 889 -
HE-_Z-_|MF Final dividend
—A=Z+—HL for the year ended
FREZRERE 31 March 2024 12 - - - - - -
o AR S Interim dividend 12 - - - - - -
RZT-RF
=A=+—H At 31 March 2025 63,053 509,580* 295% 59,878*  151,591* 2,351*
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RERREHR® Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

BE-_Z-_RAF-A-+—BItFE Year ended 31 March 2025
2025
AQRAEREE AERS
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
EEER ELED FER
e i s
Asset Exchange RE%EF Non- HEZ#TH
Bzt revaluation fluctuation  Retained #3t  controlling Total
(B¥FTT) (HK$'000) Notes reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
RZZE-MEMA—H AtlApril 2024 135,315 78391 2,059,365 3,057,530 16,539 3,074,069
AEEHH/(HB) Profit/(loss) for the year - - 154,386 154,386 (381) 154,005
AFEZEMEE Other comprehensive income/
Wit/ () (expenses) for the year:
BMEGINEB L Exchange differences on translation
R AR of foreign operations - (74314) - (74314) (260)  (74,574)
i d=N] Share of other comprehensive
Hth2@E N expenses of associates - (345) - (345) - (345)
REERBARZ Release of exchange fluctuation
ERELE reserve upon disposal
B of subsidiaries 38 - (2,062) - (2,062) - (2,062)
EERME Actuarial gains on a defined
BEW R benefit plan 28 - - 462 462 - 462
AEEEEE Total comprehensive income/
Wi/ (i) (expenses) for the year - (76721) 154848 78,127 (641) 77,486
DA 5 15 9 Equity-settled share option
BRETH arrangements 31 - - 1,400 - 1,400
HEHBRA Disposal of subsidiaries 38 - - - - (9,096) (9,096)
R MR Transfer from retained profits - - (889) - - -
HE-_Z-_|WF Final dividend
—A=t-HIE for the year ended
FRZRERE 31 March 2024 2 - - (B1527)  (31,527) - (31,527
o AR S Interim dividend 12 - - (23960)  (23,960) - (23960
RZT-HF
=A=+—H At 31 March 2025 135,315% 1,670* 2,157,837* 3,081,570 6,802 3,088,372
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2025

2024
ARRAEREE AERS
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
R R EXEE
A BER it
Issued Share Capital BARE LEHE -—REE
M st share  premium redemption Capital  Statutory General
(EEFIT) (HK$000) Notes capital  account reserve reserve reserve reserve
“ZFMA—H AtlApril 2023 63,053 509,580 295 57,030 149,641 2,351
REEWH,/(BE)  Profit/loss) for the year - - - - - -
AEEEMERE Other comprehensive income/
Wegs /() - (expenses) for the year
BEGMNEB L Exchange differences on translation
EHERE of foreign operations - - - - - -
=N Share of other comprehensive
Hith 2@ expenses of associates - - - - - -
MESH 2 W E Gain on property revaluation,
MBRTIE net of tax 14 - - - - - -
EERME Actuarial gains on a defined
B8 s benefit plan 28 - - - - - -
AEREEA Total comprehensive income/
Wit/ () (expenses) for the year - - - - - -
PABR A S 151 9 Equity-settled share option
Bz arrangements 31 - - - 1,206 - -
REEFIER Transfer from retained profits - - - 242 1,061 -
BE-_Z-=F Final dividend
ZA=+—HL for the year ended
FEZRERE 31 March 2023 2 - - - - - -
FHRE Interim dividend 12 - - - - - -
R-E-MF
=A=+—H At 31 March 2024 63,053 509,580* 295* 58,478*  150,702* 2,351%

* ZERBREAREFSUBRARAZEEH 7
# A7 %3,018,517,000 T (=T = U4 : B
2,994,477,0007T) °

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$3,018,517,000 (2024: HK$2,994,477,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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RERREHR® Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

BE-_Z-_RAF-A-+—BItFE Year ended 31 March 2025
2024
AQRAEREE AERS
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
EEER ELED FER
i Rt i
Asset Exchange RE%EF Non- HEZ#TH
Bzt revaluation fluctuation  Retained #3t  controlling Total
(B¥FTT) (HK$'000) Notes reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
“ZFMA—H AtlApril2023 81,231 162,954 2,023,005 3,049,140 19,041 3,068,181
AEEHH/(HB) Profit/(loss) for the year - - 100,853 100,853 (1,994) 98,859
$¢r§ HEtz@ Other comprehensive income/
Wegs/ () (expenses) for the year:
BMEGINEB L Exchange differences on translation
fE =58 of foreign operations - (83,559) - (83,559) (508)  (84,067)
i d=N] Share of other comprehensive
EwrET expenses of associates - (1,004) - (1,004) - (1,004)
MESMH 2 W HE Gain on property revaluation,
MBRHE net of tax 14 54,084 - - 54,084 - 54,084
EERME Actuarial gains on a defined
R benefit plan 28 - - 1,755 1,755 - 1,755
AEREEA Total comprehensive income/
Yozt /(£ ) (expenses) for the year 54084  (84563) 102,608 72,129 (2,502) 69,627
DA BR 1 57 51 ) Equity-settled share option
BREL arrangements 31 - - - 1,206 - 1,206
R E i Il B Transfer from retained profits - - (1,303) - -
BHE-Z-=F Final dividend
ZRA=+—H1 for the year ended
FEZRBRS 31 March 2023 12 - - (46,029) (46,029) - (46,029)
R 2 Interim dividend 12 - - (18916)  (18916) - (18916)
RZE-M%E
=ZA=+—-H At 31 March 2024 135,315* 78,391* 2,059,365* 3,057,530 16,539 3,074,069
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Year ended 31 March 2025

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(B#FT) (HK$°000) &t Notes 2025 2024
ReEXEK CASH FLOWS FROM
BERE OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BR 5 AR A Profit before tax 189,625 125,142
FHE Adjustments for:
& A Finance costs 8 1,561 1,199
FEAG B & Blm AR E 18 Share of profits less losses of associates 19 (1,411) 52
B A Interest income 7 (28,672) (23,603)
BERAER B HA Finance lease interest income 7 (54) (225)
W - BB k& Depreciation of property, plant and
ZIE equipment 7 52,606 51,176
FREEEZITE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 7 5,152 4,971
ML EE < #H Amortization of intangible assets 7 800 812
HEWE BEERERBER Gain on disposal of items of
FREEE property, plant and equipment
W Haa and right-of-use asset, net 7 (2,157) (1,245)
RAIAX EHE W Gain on early termination of a lease 7 - 9)
HEWNB AR 2 W= F58 Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net 7 (17,886) -
EX LML Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary 7 - (83)
Y BB RRE Write-off of items of property,
s s plant and equipment 7 6,359 1,511
FERE(BHRE) Provision/(write-back of provision)
R for inventories, net 7 9,814 (1,045)
EWE 5 R FURME, Impairment/(write-back of impairment)
OR{E#R ) F58 of trade receivables, net 7 10,755 (2,956)
wWEYHE L ANFE Fair value losses on
B8 investment properties 7 22,944 10,569
VARR 4 2 19 MO BE IR i 2 1 Equity-settled share option expenses 31 1,400 1,206
250,836 167,472
BFERL,(3E0) Decrease/(increase) in inventories (120,547) 79,621
FEWE 5 R EHERR Decrease/(increase) in trade and
w1 ) bills receivables (304,096) 136,765
FE U gt & & AR 3K Decrease/(increase) in finance lease
A (g n) receivables 1,044 (1,104)
e BERER Increase in deposits, prepayments and
Eth JE SR SR8 0 other receivables (108,367) (23,682)
FERE 5 R EHEERFE M Increase in trade and bills payables 204,335 9,657
HMEMEER JEstBEN  Increase/(decrease) in other payables,
axadEEm CRd) accruals and contract liabilities 9,389 (16,953)
M T EERFEE Contributions to a defined benefit plan (29) (586)
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SABEShEaR S Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

HE_Z-_RAF=-A=+—HILFE Year ended 31 March 2025

(B Fr) (HK$°000) it Notes 2025 2024
KEEL /(R 28 & Cash generated from/(used in) operations (67,435) 351,190
BAFE Interest paid (1,561) (1,199)
PR ERERE Finance lease interest received 54 225
BENBEERNFHIA Hong Kong profits tax paid - (3,305)
REGINRIE Overseas taxes refunded 1,264 4,466
EEINIR Overseas taxes paid (31,194) (28,335)

e 7B e R A Git) Netcash flows from/(used in) operating
R activities (98,872) 323,042

REXB 2 CASH FLOWS FROM

BERE INVESTING ACTIVITIES
EBEME  BENMEE Purchases of items of property, plant and

MEREEE equipment and a right-of-use asset 33(a) (58,922) (52,807)
HEWE  BERZE Proceeds from disposal of items of

LEREEE property, plant and equipment and

TS E a right-of-use asset 2,213 1,568
&M B AR FTS FUE Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries 38 6,728 -
B U F B Interest received 28,672 23,603
BEYE BEK Increase in deposits for purchases of

BRI M items of property, plant and equipment 33(a) (12,697) (5,147)
RIEZRE SR M BB Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits with

=B A ZRITIFR original maturity of more than three

(38 n) months when acquired 8,825 (8,825)
IREE IR TR Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 447,385 70,793
FRURIRIRITIE K Placement of pledged bank deposits (538,614) (93,736)
REEB 2B RLFE Net cash flows used in investing activities (116,410) (64,551)
MEXKZ CASH FLOWS FROM

BERE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
FERITER New bank loans 101,652 -
BZIRITER Repayment of bank loans (101,652) -
ERARE Dividends paid (55,487) (64,945)
HENRZASED Principal portion of lease payments 33(c) (3,610) (3,170)
BMEXBK 2R MLFRE Net cash flows used in financing activities (59,097) (68,115)
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SABEShEaR S Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

HE-_Z-FF=-A=+-—HUILFE Year ended 31 March 2025
(BEEFoT) (HK$'000) K75+ Notes 2025 2024
ReRBREeEEBY=Z NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH

®gin/CRD) B8 AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (274,379) 190,376
FU2RE Cash and cash equivalents

FBEeEEY at beginning of year 816,952 644,662
EXEY s & Effect of foreign exchange rate

R changes, net (14,394) (18,086)
FRZ2EE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RREZEEY AT END OF YEAR 528,179 816,952
ReRBLEEY ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF

HEE2ZDMm CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Be MIETTHER Cash and bank balances 25 398,004 470,388
P15 R BB B R ER i A Bank deposits with original maturity of

PAR=MEA ZRITEFEK less than three months when acquired 25 130,175 346,564
AEREREXRMIZ Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the

ReMREEEY consolidated statement of cash flows 528,179 816,952
AT 2 BB B R H i B Bank deposits with original maturity of

FRiE =10 A 2 RITFH more than three months when acquired 25 - 8,825
RE VAR KT 2 Cash and cash equivalents as stated in

Re kRS the consolidated statement of

ZEY financial position 528,179 825,777
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Notes to Financial Statfements

31 March 2025

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Chen Hsong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The principal place
of business of the Company is located at Unit 2001, 20th Floor,
Citicorp Centre, 18 Whitfield Road, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was principally involved in the
manufacture and sale of plastic injection moulding machines
and related products.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate holding
company is Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited, a company incorporated
in the Bahamas. Chen Hsong Investments Limited (“CH
Investments”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong, is the
Company’s immediate holding company.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages 232
to 234.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRS Accounting Standards (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) as issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties
which have been measured at fair value. Defined benefit assets
are measured using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation
method as further explained in note 3 to the financial statements.
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000)
except when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

2.1

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2025. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

2.1

2.2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the
related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any non-controlling
interest and the exchange fluctuation reserve and recognizes the
fair value of any investment retained and any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognized in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to the income statement or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRS Accounting

Standards for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (the
“2020 Amendments”)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022

Amendments”)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

Supplier Finance
Arrangements
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRS Accounting
Standards are described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that
a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising
in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-
lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use it retains. Since the Group
has no sale and leaseback transactions with variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
occurring from the date of initial application of HKFRS 16,
the amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, including
what is meant by a right to defer settlement and that a
right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement. The
amendments also clarify that a liability can be settled in
its own equity instruments, and that only if a conversion
option in a convertible liability is itself accounted for as an
equity instrument would the terms of a liability not impact
its classification. The 2022 Amendments further clarify
that, among covenants of a liability arising from a loan
arrangement, only those with which an entity must comply
on or before the reporting date affect the classification of
that liability as current or non-current.
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B SRR M RE (2 Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
—ZE-_RF=A=+—H 31 March 2025

2. EIBEE) 2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

22 EHHREERBEESE(E) 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(b) (#&) (b) (continued)
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Additional disclosures are required for non-current
liabilities that are subject to the entity complying with
future covenants within 12 months after the reporting
period.

The Group has reassessed the terms and conditions of
its liabilities as at 1 April 2023 and 2024 and concluded
that the classification of its liabilities as current or non-
current remained unchanged upon initial application of the
amendments. Accordingly, the amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and
require additional disclosure of such arrangements. The
disclosure requirements in the amendments are intended
to assist users of financial statements in understanding
the effects of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s
liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk. As
the Group does not have supplier finance arrangements,
the amendments did not have any impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRS
Accounting Standards, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements. The Group intends to
apply these new and revised HKFRS Accounting Standards, if
applicable, when they become effective.
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HKFRS 18

HKFRS 19

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 21

Annual improvements to
HKFRS Accounting
Standards — Volume 11

Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements?

Subsidiaries without Public
Accountability: Disclosures?®

Amendments to the
Classification and
Measurement of Financial
Instruments?

Contracts Referencing Nature-
dependent Electricity?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Lack of Exchangeability?

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9, HKFRS
10 and HKAS 72
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B SRR M RE (2 Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
—ZE-_RF=A=+—H 31 March 2025

2. EIBEE) 2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

23 CHEABRENMNE LB BHEEA S 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRS ACCOUNTING

2R (&) STANDARDS (continued)

! R-_ZE_AF— A B UERKRZFE 1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025
AR A

2 RZZE-RNF—A—BUBRBZFE 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026
AR A3

3 RZEZEF—A—BUERBZF 3 Effective for annual/reporting periods beginning on or after 1
EVE - I January 2027

¢ iR EETE SR B B ER - B AR 4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption

AEBERERTIRENI FHET REIERT The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the

ZLEAUBREEN S EAN ZZEED impact of these new and revised HKFRS Accounting Standards

G R REEE SN RGBS upon initial application, but is not yet in a position to state

B BHREER T ER g HETBHE whether these new and revised HKFRS Accounting Standards

R B AR SRR E K2 - would have any significant impact on its financial performance

and financial position.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists
only when decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s share of the
post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures is included in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognized directly in the equity of the associate or joint
venture, the Group recognizes its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates or joint
ventures, except where unrealized losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of
the Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant
influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognizes any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of
the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence
or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognized in the income statement.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in the profit or
loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the income
statement. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognized for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognized in the income statement as a gain on bargain
purchase.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as
at 31 March. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the synergy of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized.
An impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion
of the cash-generating unit retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
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—E-_RF=A=+—H 31 March 2025
3. EXSFBER#E) 3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
AFETE(E) Fair value measurement (continued)
NRIERVBRERTEI BB CMBEEE All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
MaE NDREBEEATFEFEXREMNEE disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the
BEAZEREESBAEBIERAFEELR fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
AT level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:
F—E — ERHEREESABERERE Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
M52 ME CREFHE) markets for identical assets or liabilities
EF-E — ERYQATFEFEMEBEKR Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
ZREERE ABABR (T lowest level input that is significant to the
WmAEENKEE) ZHERD fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly
F-E — ERYEATEF=EmMEEE Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
AZEEERH AETTEH lowest level input that is significant to the fair
R"ZMERDT value measurement is unobservable
HRIREEEREERYBERERERLEE For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial
e AEBRSHRERRBBENN statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
HOE(BREYATEAEZENEBEEX transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
YEEERBAR) BEEERSERZ reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is
MEAER - significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end

of each reporting period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and investment properties), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of
the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters
building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if
it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to
the income statement in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognized impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortization) had no impairment loss been recognized for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the income statement in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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B SRR M EE () Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—TE-RF=A=+—H 31 March 2025

3. EXREFBE@E) 3.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
BEAL(E) Related parties (continued)
(b) Z—ARERE MFAFETIEM—IA (b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

g - applies:

() ZERBHAEEBR-—S$EZ (i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
KERA group;

(il ZERASEBOBZLERAIN (i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
EELE (KNS —ERBCER entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
A WBARIKRRNMEBAR) of the other entity);

(il ZEBEEERASEEHRRA-—F= (i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
HzaERE: same third party;

(V) ZERAF-FEBZAZED (iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
X MEERBAZF=-ER other entity is an associate of the third entity;
ZERENE]

() ZREBAEASEBN —KRELRE (v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
EREZEBYEENERN benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
MmARA BRI BT E related to the Group;

(vi) ZEBA@EMHRA TEH (vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
s LR H person identified in (a);

(vi) R@OIBAHATHERS (vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant

7(%%%%‘ GRS influence over the entity or is a member of the key
HERR)ETEEEAE K management personnel of the entity (or of a parent

of the entity); and

(i) ZERIEMBSE H’]T?Eﬁﬁ (viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
ERASBESIAEENT R part, provides key management personnel services
RIEEBEREABRE - to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalized in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognizes
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings in Hong Kong - Over the lease terms
Buildings outside Hong Kong - 15 to 60 years
Plant, machinery, furniture and - 2 to 15 years

other equipment

Freehold land is not depreciated.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognized
in the income statement in the year the asset is derecognized is
the difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. It is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including right-of-use assets) held to earn rental income and/
or for capital appreciation. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement in
the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognized in the income statement in
the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a
property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” for owned property and/
or accounts for such property in accordance with the policy
stated under “Right-of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-
use asset up to the date of change in use, and any difference at
that date between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
property is accounted for as movements in the asset revaluation
reserve in accordance with HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortized over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization
period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Know-how

Purchased know-how is stated at cost less any impairment losses
and is amortized on the straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of 5 years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalized and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortized cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace are recognized on the trade date,
that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to

impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in the income
statement when the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(i) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (i) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information. The Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are one year past due. The Group has
rebutted the 90 days past due presumption of default based on
reasonable and supportable information including the Group’s
credit risk control practices and the historical recovery rate of
financial assets over 90 days past due. However, the Group may
also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortized cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables and finance lease receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage1 -

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
Stage3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at
the reporting date (but that are not purchased
or originated credit-impaired) and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
and finance lease receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,

financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals and
lease liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortized cost (trade and other payables,
and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables and interest-
bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.

Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when
the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective
interest rate amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortization is included in the income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognized
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of (i) the ECL
allowance determined in accordance with the policy as set out
in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognized less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income recognized.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realizable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash on hand and at banks, and
short-term highly liquid deposits with maturity of generally within
three months that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and
held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and bank balances comprise cash on hands and at banks,
and short-term deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognized for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the income statement.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of
certain products. Provisions for these assurance-type warranties
granted by the Group are initially recognized based on sales
volume and past experience of the level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present values as appropriate. The warranty-
related cost is revised annually.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognized outside the income statement is
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilized, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognized to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognized at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant
relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
income account and is released to the income statement over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
installments.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when
control of goods is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognized under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods is
one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15. Furthermore, the Group has elected
to apply the practical expedient to recognize the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract as an expense when incurred if the
amortization period of the asset that the Group otherwise would
have recognized is one year or less.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goods.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Rental income is recognized on a time proportion basis over the
lease term.

Finance lease interest income is recognized on an accrual
basis using the effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the net investment of the finance lease or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the net investment of the finance lease.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognized when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognized as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognizes lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

(a)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognized at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Where applicable, the cost of a right-of-use asset also
includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Leasehold land
Properties

50 to 52 years
2 to 7 years

When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property, it is included in investment properties.
The corresponding right-of-use asset is initially measured
at cost, and subsequently measured at fair value, in
accordance with the Group’s policy for “Investment
properties”.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognized at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of properties (that
is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the recognition exemption
for leases of low-value assets to leases of office equipment
that is considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-

value assets are recognized as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in other
income in the income statement.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases. At the commencement date,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalized at the present value of
the lease payments and related payments (including the initial
direct costs), and presented as a receivable at an amount equal
to the net investment in the lease. The finance income on the net
investment in the lease is recognized in the income statement
so as to provide a constant periodic rate of return over the lease
terms.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalized as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalization of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalized. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognized as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements. Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s Memorandum and Association
and Bye-laws grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognized
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognized in the income statement. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or
loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in
other comprehensive income or the income statement is also
recognized in other comprehensive income or the income
statement, respectively).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. The resulting exchange differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve, except to the extent that
the differences are attributable to non-controlling interests. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount in the
reserve relating to that particular foreign operation is recognized
in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

(a)

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a certain percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the income statement as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

Prior to the MPF Scheme becoming effective, the Group
operated a defined contribution retirement benefit
scheme (the “DCRB Scheme”) for those employees who
were eligible and had elected to participate in the DCRB
Scheme. The DCRB Scheme operates in a similar way to
the MPF Scheme, except that when an employee leaves
the Group prior to his/her interest in the DCRB Scheme
vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the
Group would be reduced by the relevant amount of the
forfeited employer contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme (the “Central Scheme”) which is operated by the
local municipal government. The contributions payable by
these subsidiaries to the Central Scheme, which are based
on a certain percentage of the salaries of their employees,
are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the Central
Scheme.
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3. EXEFEEM®SE) 3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
EEERN (&) Employee benefits (continued)
(a) Rik:rE(48) (a) Pension schemes (continued)
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As required by the Taiwanese Labour Standard Law,
the Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan operate a funded
defined benefit pension scheme (the “Old Scheme”)
and make monthly contributions to the retirement fund
to meet employees’ retirement and termination benefits
entitlements. The fund is administered by the Employees’
Retirement Fund Committee (the “Committee”) and is
deposited under the Committee’s name with a government
approved financial institution, which acts as the trustee.
The cost of providing pension benefits under the defined
benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from the Old Scheme, comprising
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability) and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in
the consolidated statement of financial position with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained profits through
other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to the income
statement in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognized in the income statement
at the earlier of:

° the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

° the date that the Group recognizes restructuring-
related costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate
to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group
recognizes the following changes in the net defined
benefit obligation under “cost of sales”, “selling and
distribution expenses” and “administrative expenses” in
the consolidated income statement:
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

(b)

Pension schemes (continued)

o Service costs comprising current service costs, past-
service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
non-routine settlements; and

o Net interest expense or income

In 2005, the Taiwan government amended the related
pension scheme regulations by adding a new contributory
pension scheme (the “New Scheme”) in the Labour
Pension Act, which became effective on 1 July 2005.
According to the amended retirement regulations, the
employees can choose to either join the New Scheme or
to stay participating with the Old Scheme. The obligation
of the Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan to those employees
selecting the New Scheme is to contribute the required
portion of the monthly compensation to the government
designated account since the election, while the Group’s
subsidiaries in Taiwan are still liable under the Old Scheme
for the portion pertaining to the service years prior to 1 July
2005.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in
the form of share-based payment transactions, whereby
employees render services in exchange for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”). The cost of
equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer
using a polynomial model, further details of which are
given in note 31 to the financial statements.
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3. EXRESFHBEM#E) 3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
EEERN (&) Employee benefits (continued)
(b) BRRENZNXZ (&) (b)  Share-based payment transactions (continued)
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The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognized as at
the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognized. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognized as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognized for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognized for the award is recognized
immediately.

This includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the employee
are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new
awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25



E ST ELEEAC )

—E_RAF=A=+—H

4. ERSEHERME (&)

#

REBAKREZGTRRBRET  EEE
EFETIEMBRRAMBERSRES
REAFEZHEH (TREFRGFE)

(a) EENHME

BEEEAGHIREIBEERR
BZEAREINBFER  AEEA
h B R (B B VF b B R R AT
BOBEEHRAEFEEEEEL
ST EEEBELRTEMED
TH: QEEREESGESHER
EREREFES MAKRRASR
ERFEEREENR AL
MQmRERAREFRAMBES

ERREEACARERANREAEE
Lo RATIR o fin B IR B FTIE A DAOR TE R
BEXRFzZRR (BRERSTERDAM
AFREXIERETERR)AE Y
MERRAMRREFEENEATE -

(b) DIEREBELZHHE

AEBEREREEREBEABURGE
BERME THEBARMDIR SR
RIMBN - TN ERERFEmEL
HlE - AEBRL WERAERZ
RGN T EDIK - BB AR RIS
i o

EEEBR AR 2024/25F 5

R

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

(a) Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
Group has to exercise judgement in the area of asset
impairment, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred that may affect the asset value or such event
affecting the asset value has not been in existence; (2)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported
by the net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset or
derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using
an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management to determine the level of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions
in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.

(b)  Withholding taxes arising from the distributions of
dividends

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue for
withholding taxes arising from the distributions of dividends
from certain subsidiaries according to the relevant tax
jurisdictions is subject to judgement on the timing of the
payment of the dividend. The Group considered that if the
profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future, then
no withholding taxes should be provided.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

(c)

(d)

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by the
Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately or leased out separately
under a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the
property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
made on an individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.

Classification between finance leases and operating
leases

Leases are required to be classified as either finance
leases (which transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership, and give rise to the recognition of a
receivable by the lessor) or operating leases (which result
in the recognition of the leased asset by the lessor).

Situations that would normally lead to a lease being
classified as a finance lease include the following:

o the lease transfers ownership of the asset to the
lessee by the end of the lease term;
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4., EREFHERMAEF(E) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

¥ (&) Judgements (continued)
(d) BEHERLEHENE S (B (d) Classification between finance leases and operating
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leases (continued)

° the lessee has the option to purchase the asset at
a price which is expected to be sufficiently lower
than the fair value at the date the option becomes
exercisable and, at the inception of the lease, it is
reasonably certain that the option will be exercised;

° the lease term is for the major part of the economic
life of the asset, even if title is not transferred;

° at the inception of the lease, the present value of
the minimum lease payments amounts to at least
substantially all of the fair value of the leased asset;
or

° the leased assets are of a specialized nature such
that only the lessee can use them without major
modifications being made.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of a
contract with a renewal option

The Group has a lease contract that includes an extension
option. The Group applies judgement in evaluating
whether or not to exercise the option to renew the lease.
That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise the renewal. After the
commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term
if there is a significant event or change in circumstances
that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or
not to exercise the option to renew.

The Group includes the renewal period as part of the lease
term for a lease of its property due to the significance of
the asset to its operations. The lease has a short non-
cancellable period (i.e., five years) and there will be a
significant negative effect on operation if a replacement is
not readily available.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described as below.

(a)

Estimation regarding provision for expected credit losses
on trade receivables and finance lease receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables and finance lease receivables. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various customer segments that have similar loss patterns.
The Group takes into consideration information that is
available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions are expected to deteriorate over
the next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical default
rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analyzed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of a customer’s actual default
in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables and finance lease receivables is
disclosed in notes 21 and 23 to the financial statements,
respectively.
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4., EREFHERMAEF(E) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

T FHEBEZ (&) Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b) TFEREGZIGE (b)  Estimation regarding inventory provision
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Management of the Group reviews the inventory ageing
analysis on a periodic basis for those aged inventories.
This involves comparison of the carrying value of the aged
inventory items with the respective net realizable value.
In addition, management of the Group considers various
factors, including historical sales patterns, post year-end
usage or sales and selling prices of inventories, market
demand, technological changes and the Group’s future
plan of usage or sale to ascertain whether provision is
required to be made in the financial statements for any
obsolete and slow-moving items. Physical counts on all
inventories are carried out on a periodic basis in order to
determine whether any provision is required to be made in
respect of any obsolete and defective inventories identified.
The net carrying amount of inventories as at 31 March
2025 was HK$788,554,000 (2024: HK$694,637,000),
details of which are set out in note 20 to the financial
statements.

(c) Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to
choose a suitable discount rate and growth rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
net carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 March 2025 was
HK$51,905,000 (2024: HK$51,905,000). More details of
the impairment assessment are given in note 17.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally involved in the manufacture and sale of
plastic injection moulding machines and related products. For
management purposes, the Group is organized into business
units based on the locations of customers and has three
reportable operating segments as follows:

(i)~ Mainland China and Hong Kong;
(i) Taiwan; and
(iii)  Other overseas countries.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
before tax except that interest income, unallocated income
and gains, non-lease-related finance costs, share of profits less
losses of associates and corporate and unallocated expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude investments in associates, deferred
tax assets and cash and bank balances except pledged bank
deposits. Segment liabilities exclude tax payable and deferred
tax liabilities.

There are no significant sales between the reportable operating
segments.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

RETHER (B) 5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
TEHIWBE-_E-_FAER-_ZT_NE= The following tables present revenue, results, certain assets,

A=t BILEEAEH
$5 ETEE BERELAER -

ol Was liabilities and expenditure information for the Group’s operating

segments for the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024.

R"ENEFH
P L6
Segment revenue DEEE
from external customers Segment results
(B%Fr) (HK$°000) 2025 2024 2025 2024
HEIAERER Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,840,082 1,449,902 183,370 114,900
A Taiwan 38,616 37,815 (1,610) (3,682)
H iGN R Other overseas countries 716,037 521,828 26,825 37,497
2,594,735 2,009,545 208,585 148,715
REsMEER Reconciliation of results of operating
BRBEAT R R segments to profit before tax is
AFWT as follows:
e D IEE Operating segment results 208,585 148,715
REHWA KMz Unallocated income and gains 28,726 23,828
rERRES TN Corporate and unallocated expenses (48,500) (47,280)
MEXRA(HERE Finance costs (other than interest on
FB BN lease liabilities) (597) (69)
FERHE 2 N R)a FIR & 1B Share of profits less losses of associates 1,411 (52)
BR 0 AT A Profit before tax 189,625 125,142

EEAR AT 2024/25 F5
e
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—E-RFE=-A=+—H 31 March 2025
5. REDEER (&) 5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
STHEE AR =L
Segment assets Segment liabilities
(BETT) (HK$'000) 2025 2024 2025 2024
B RRE R EE Mainland China and Hong Kong 3,002,485 2,705,352 1,008,908 834,726
= Taiwan 58,641 62,756 14,491 13,668
Hi IR Other overseas countries 715,106 494,193 117,569 93,917
3,776,232 3,262,301 1,140,968 942 311
REZENB 2 RE Investments in associates 25,673 24,607 - -
REHBEE Unallocated assets 557,059 856,842 - -
AENBE Unallocated liabilities - - 129,624 127,370

4,358,964 4,143,750 1,270,592 1,069,681

Hith o HE R
Other segment information
HEREH HthFREX W BEREX
Depreciation and Other non-cash Capital

amortization expenses expenditure
(E¥FT) (HK$'000) 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
B RREREE Mainland China and Hong Kong 55,983 54,818 29,014 12,063 63,223 66,358
= Taiwan 524 485 106 - 442 260
Hin BN R Other overseas countries 2,051 1,656 183 8 378 766

58,558 56,959 29,303 12071 64,043 67,384
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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5. KReEDHER &) 5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
RBEE

Non-current assets
(CE®TFor) (HK$°000) 2025 2024
KB BB Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,041,094 1,069,984
= Taiwan 15,724 16,922
H M gINE R Other overseas countries 1,835 433
1,058,653 1,087,339

6. W= REVENUE
AEEREREFANMW S EIEE T # The Group’s revenue from contracts with customers is related
LEBERBER YEMABRZHNE® to the sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related
THIRERERPEER  —RARXNE products, and all the revenue is recognized at a point in time
b o when control of goods is transferred to customers generally on

delivery of the goods.

(M For) (HK$°000) 2025 2024
REBPE LR W= Revenue from contracts with customers 2,594,735 2,009,545
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The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes deferred tax assets and
financial instruments.

Information about major customers
For the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, no revenue from

transactions with a single external customer amounted to 10% or
more of the Group’s total revenue.




B SRR M EE () Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—TE-RF=A=+—H 31 March 2025
6. W= (&) 6. REVENUE (continued)
PR EER Disaggregated revenue information
(CE®TFr) (HK$°000) 2025 2024
REEEAHN Revenue from contracts with customers
Wz — HETERR — sale of plastic injection moulding
EBE® machines and related products
I E 72 T Geographical markets
B K B ] BB Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,840,082 1,449,902
= | Taiwan 38,616 37,815
i RiupisEINEE Other overseas countries 716,037 521,828
RERFELHMWE B Total revenue from contracts with customers 2,594,735 2,009,545
TREIFFARSHYE OB ET RN The following table shows the amount of revenue recognized in
HSHARRN RS - the current reporting period that was included in the contract

liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

(CB¥FT) (HK$°000) 2025 2024
ST AZREHAD Revenue recognized that was included in

ERBED contract liabilities at the beginning of

BER U the reporting period:

HE T Sale of plastic injection moulding

BHE®D machines and related products 60,300 65,620

BHREMR Performance obligations
FRALEERHETNERBYILT Information about the Group’s performance obligations is

summarized below:

HET R AE [ Em Sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related products
BHOBEERARNEREBER  MAK—K The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
PR =+ RE—EBNTRREIE - goods and payment is generally due between 30 days and 180

days from delivery.
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—E-_RF=A=+—H 31 March 2025

7. BREAISER 7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
AEEZBRHAEME MR (GEA) TF The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
FIA (crediting):
CE®TFr) (HK$°000) B #% Notes 2025 2024
EHBFERAK Cost of inventories sold 1,984,983 1,532,561
L E S Depreciation of property,

ZHTE plant and equipment 14 52,606 51,176
FREEECITE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 16(a) 5,152 4,971
B EE C#H Amortization of intangible assets 18 800 812
HEME  HEKEHE Gain on disposal of items of property,

FiEREEE plant and equipment and right-of-

Z W Es R use asset, net* (2,157) (1,245)
HEWB AR Z U FE* Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net* 38 (17,886) -
Xl NG Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary* - (83)
M - BB RFE Write-off of items of property,

Zarig* plant and equipment* 14 6,359 1,511
TEAHEEGEFTED Lease payments not included in the

HER measurement of lease liabilities 16(c) 4,475 2,959
IRATAR EHE Was * Gain on early termination of a lease* 16(c) - 9)
R L&A > Research and development costs*** 78,986 79,077
BT e B /7 Government grants*/**** (38,610) (41,822)
=B AT B & Auditor’s remuneration 2,756 2,738
BI@EANXH (ZESHE  Employee benefit expenses (excluding

BroN — K12E9) - directors’ emoluments — note 9):

T& K& Wages and salaries 367,637 322,342

VARG #E S7 FHYBE RS #ESZ Y Equity-settled share option expenses 1,248 783

IRIREETEIHE K Pension scheme contributions

(BB RET &) *rere (defined contribution scheme)***** 52,524 42 655

RIREETEIK A Pension scheme costs

(ERBENETE) (defined benefit scheme) 28 (29) 27
FEWE 5 R FURE, Impairment/(write-back of impairment)

CR{BER R ) 58 =+~ of trade receivables, net*** 21 10,755 (2,956)
TFERE(BERE) Provision/(write-back of provision)

SRR for inventories, net** 9,814 (1,045)
E 5 R~ Foreign exchange differences, net* 4,762 (201)
REWMEZ ATE Fair value losses on investment

BB properties*® 15 22,944 10,569
BERMEZHES Gross rental income on

WA fB(E owner-occupied properties* (5,829) (5,973)
o BB R YRR Less: Direct operating expenses

HeEEZ arising from rental-earning
BELERE owner-occupied properties 35 36
BERAMEZES Net rental income on
WA F 58 owner-occupied properties (5,794) (5,937)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

E ST ELEEAC )

—E_RE=A=+—H

7. BR¥BEAIER (&) 7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

AEBE2BRBADGEFE MR GEA) T3
BIR - (&)

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting): (continued)

(CE®For) (HK$°000) 2025 2024
REMECHE Gross rental income on investment
g A 42 (g * properties* (31,358) (31,319)
B EIRE W) BRER Less: Direct operating expenses
HeEEZ arising from rental-earning
HEEEERY investment properties 1,470 1,470
REMEZ Net rental income on
He WA FE investment properties (29,888) (29,849)
B WA Interest income* (28,672) (23,603)
REHERN S WA Finance lease interest income* (54) (225)

164

**

*kk

*k kK

*ok ok kK

ZEHADBERGARER Z[HMBI
AR FRR A e

ZIHEBEBENGRARERZ [HHEKE]
A o

il

ZERBCDBENGEARERZ [EME
B HFEIA -

B & E 00 o B R BE B R A 5008 8 T Uy
T8 B W B 2 IR BT B o URI B B F
B MEEMNEETARERZGHREE
A B EE B 2 AN I IC RS - IR A
RAEAMUA o fif % 82U 2 # BT 1 BY Y
UC A2 & 48 9 52 1 1) 2R B A o P BT 75 f6k £ i
RER AESEHBRARRPERTE
R BRSNS B E ISR -

R-E-_RAF=A=+—HBE_ZT_NF
ZA=+—8  KEEL & BIENRE
REBRKRS B FRAR UK -

B EEAR AR 2024/25F 4R

**

* kK

*k kK

These items are included in “Other income and gains, net” on the
face of the consolidated income statement.

This item is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the
consolidated income statement.

These items are included in “Other operating expenses, net” on
the face of the consolidated income statement.

Various government grants have been received mainly for
setting up research activities in Mainland China. Conditions or
contingencies relating to these grants are fulfilled and they are
not deducted from the related costs for which they are intended
to compensate, but recorded in other income. Government grants
received for which related expenditure has not yet been incurred
to which there were unfulfilled conditions are included in “Other
payables and accruals” on the face of the consolidated statement
of financial position.

***x% As at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the Group had no

forfeited contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
pension schemes in future years.
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i EL N EEAE ) Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—E-RF=A=+—H 31 March 2025
8. BEMAK 8. FINANCE COSTS
GE¥TT) (HK$'000) 2025 2024
RITE A E Interest on bank loans 597 69
HEAREMNE Interest on lease liabilities 964 1,130
1,561 1,199
9. EEHM 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

RIE LR AR BB R FEPIZE 383(1)()
b)  EMOEARLRR (REEENEE
FOROIFE20E  FREEFHIRENT -

Directors’ emoluments for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, are as
follows:

CE®TFoT) (HK$°000) 2025 2024
e Fees:
WITES Executive directors - -
BYIENITES Independent non-executive directors 1,187 1,209
oAb 37 B Other emoluments:
e ERREYN S Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 8,055 8,108
FIRAMNIEAT Performance related bonuses 3,747 1,536
VA IR e =2 15T #) B s e 2 Equity-settled share option expenses 152 423
RIREETEIHEER Pension scheme contributions 36 36
B R EAM AT Total fee and other emoluments 13,177 11,312

WITESREEALAEBRENRSE LE
Bt RBREBEARFGR_ZTE—EmFNLAZ-+TH
HEMZEREASIERERE #—2
HEEN AT MR E3] - 2 S ERE
HATFEERNEBHRNERGZRPER
RERARTHHAMNEBREE RTALEE
FHHmE  WER EMESHMPHE -

EEEBR AR 2024/25F 5

R

Executive directors were granted share options under the share
option scheme of the Company adopted on 24 September
2014 in respect of their services and contribution to the Group,
further details of which are set out in note 31 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such share options, which has been
recognized in the income statement over the vesting periods,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the current year is included in the
above directors’ emoluments disclosures.
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B SRR M EE () Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—TE-RF=A=+—H 31 March 2025
9. EEHM &) 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) BUFHTES (a) Independent non-executive directors

FA - INTEIFEDTEEFNRS The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

wmr during the year were as follows:

(B#Fr) (HK$'000) 2025 2024

PR B & Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN 105 258

AFEEEE Mr. Harry Chi HUI 210 153

Anish LALVANI 7 4 Mr. Anish LALVANI 266 276

RFEHRE Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE 264 264

B BB ¢ o A Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN 269 258

SRR A Mr. Clement King Man KWOK 73 -

WBEt Total 1,187 1,209

FA - W E AN T E L IEH There were no other emoluments payable to the

TEB(ZZEZMF - &) - independent non-executive directors during the year (2024:
Nil).

ERATREBYIFRITES 2 FH MR The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments

BEEARRREZCRBER - shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

RSB ERTARNGBIIFNITE Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN retired as an independent

F BT -MFENAZ T HETT non-executive director with effect from the conclusion of

ZARABIRREAFRGEREBER - the annual general meeting of the Company held on 26
August 2024.

ML EEEEARNT 2B IE Mr. Clement King Man KWOK was appointed as an

WiTESE BT WM&+ -A—H independent non-executive director of the Company with

R A2 o effect from 1 December 2024.
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i EL N EEAE ) Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—E-FAE=A=+—A 31 March 2025
9. EEFHME) 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) BITE=S (b) Executive directors
2025
¢ LU A
EHR SRy

ENFE RE BREXH Biké
Salaries,  H#TEA Equity-  sHEMER

allowances Performance settled Pension  EBf4st
¢ and benefits related share option scheme Total
(BE¥FL) (HK$000) Fees in kind bonuses  expenses contributions emoluments
BB Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG* - 6,130 3,155 116 18 9,419
EMREE" Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG* - 1,925 592 36 18 2,571
- 8,055 3,747 152 36 11,990
2024
¢ BB
b2 SZb]:s)

RENAE RE BREXH Bik&
Salaries,  HTEA Equity-  FTEIE

allowances Performance settled Pension &4zt

¥¢ and benefits related share option scheme Total

(E¥FTT) (HK$000) Fees in kind bonuses  expenses contributions emoluments
BBt Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG* - 6,183 1,536 308 18 8,045
ERREE Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG - 1,925 - 115 18 2,058
- 8,108 1,536 423 36 10,103

* FEHWIEA 2B RARREIAR * The performance related bonus was determined by
RIBEARBESTEAMETE ° reference to the Company’s performance as well as the

individual performance and contribution.
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B SRR M EE () Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—E-RFE=-A=+—H 31 March 2025
9. EEFME) 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) HITEE(E) (b) Executive directors (continued)
WITEEHMEEDT The emoluments of the executive directors fell within the

following bands:

EEAH
Number of directors
CE M) (HKS) 2025 2024
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 - 1
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 1 -
8,000,001 - 8,500,000 -
9,000,001 - 9,500,000 1 -
2 2
ERATATES 2HF MRS The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
ERARNGRAEBER 2 REEE - their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group.

ARBZz@RERANEBRKAERNAR The senior management of the Company is also the
WITES - executive directors of the Company.
HE_ZTZ-_AFk-_FT-_NNF=A There was no arrangement under which a director waived
T HIEFERUTELTHRFEES or agreed to waive any remuneration during the years
BEXREREEMFM - ended 31 March 2025 and 2024.
FA-AEBEUTEZNHFHTESENU During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
REHEFTMAREBSAERBMARE the directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the
Bz Rl kB mE (== Group, or as compensation for loss of office (2024: Nil).
Fm) o
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—E_RAF=A=+—H

10. ZEEBREFHZESR

FR IREESFMZEERRE & (=
ToME:—R)EF EHFME SN

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2024 two) directors, details of whose emoluments are set out in

AR FES © note 9 to the financial statements.

ZE(CE-NF ZR)FEEES T Details of the remuneration for the year of the three (2024: three)

EEMEARNFMFBUOT non-director highest paid employees are as follows:

CE®TFr) (HK$’000) 2025 2024

e EMREYMNE Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 3,149 3,226

FRIRBEMNIEAT Performance related bonuses 70 60

LA I 48 =2 15T # B R 2 1 Equity-settled share option expenses 134 89

RIS ETEIHER Pension scheme contributions 36 54
3,389 3,429

IEEHESTNEEFMEENT - The remuneration of the non-director highest paid employees fell
within the following bands:
EEAH
Number of employees

OB #) (HK$) 2025 2024
500,001 — 1,000,000 1 1
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 2

3 3

= B gk

FEEERFTHEELEALEEEMRY
RBEER REARANR_-_ZE-HEFEA
A=+ BB 2 BB AR 81X B A
- FHBHI NP B RKRMEIL - %F
BERENAFEEREBHALEKRERT
R BNE T AN EEEE Mt AR
FEMBHREX YERLAFEEZSH
i 12 B S Bl P 4R

EEEBR AR 2024/25F 5

R

Share options were granted under the share option scheme
of the Company adopted on 24 September 2014 to the non-
director highest paid employees in respect of their services and
contribution to the Group, further details of which are set out in
note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value of such share
options, which has been recognized in the income statement
over the vesting periods, was determined as at the date of grant
and the amount included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the above non-director highest paid
employees’ remuneration disclosures.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

11. FBEHxH 11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
AEEBFAREAREBNER  HEaR No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
AEBRZFELSBELERRE B ZER Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
BaM(ZTZma &)  Hithle 2% Kong during the year (2024: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable
FMBRIBRIRAEEKEEBMEBRK A elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in
EREE 2 RITIHEEE - the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
(BB TFT) (HK$'000) 2025 2024
BNER : Current:
REE L H Charge for the year
BE Hong Kong - -
E i@ Elsewhere 33,997 26,293
BAFE DR (ZR) BiE Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years 117 (2,621)
BIE (F17E29) Deferred (note 29) 1,506 2,611
AEFERIBXH Tax charge for the year 35,620 26,283

AERADE N ABARARR REWNE A
AER R/ REEREREK AR Z
EEREFE (REXAI5%EL40% (ZF
ZPF 15% £40% ) 2 RIA X - IR
ERMEAE BB O ZHEHOT

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rates, ranging from 15% to 40% (2024: 15% to
40%), for the countries/jurisdictions in which the Company and
its subsidiaries are domiciled and/or operate to the tax expense
at the effective tax rate is as follows:

(CB¥FoT) (HK$°000) 2025 2024
B 750 A1 ) Profit before tax 189,625 125,142
BETEMEFTE 2 HBIE Tax at the statutory tax rates 55,669 35,848
& B & 1 2t 75 A 2 Tax concessions/lower tax rates for

B E R, BIR R specific provinces and local authorities (25,365) (14,482)
Bk N B AR R A KBS 18 Profits and losses attributable to associates (353) 14
AR 2T H Expenses not deductible for tax 16,769 15,875
DAL IE 2 A Income not subject to tax (11,719) (7,009)
RER N FEBIAEE Tax losses for the year not recognized 2,350 5,094
FRARAERCBAEFE Unrecognized tax losses from prior

HIREE years utilized (5,247) (3,008)
BAEFEAEARIE Adjustments in respect of current tax

EEES of prior years 117 (2,621)
REBZWB AR D EFE Effect of withholding tax on distributable

EENHB o2 profits of the subsidiaries of the Group 3,399 (3,428)
RASEERBEGTE 2 Tax charge at the Group’s effective

MIAX tax rate 35,620 26,283
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i EL N EEAE ) Notes to Financial Statements (continued) l

—E-hRF=RA=+—H 31 March 2025

12. RE 12. DIVIDENDS
(B TFoT) (HK$'000) 2025 2024
FREMKRE : Dividends paid during the year:
HE-_ZT-_WFE=ZA=+—HIE Finalin respect of the financial year
BIIFE 2 KA — ended 31 March 2024 — HK$0.050
SRR B 0.050 7T (year ended 31 March 2023: HK$0.073)
(Hz—Z2=—=%=A=+—H per ordinary share
LIEFE - B¥0.0737L) 31,527 46,029
RHE — T EAE 00387 Interim — HK$0.038 (2024: HK$0.030)
(ZZ= -4 : #¥0.0307T) per ordinary share 23,960 18,916
55,487 64,945
EEARARE Proposed final dividend:
KE — FREBEBEH0.080  Final — HK$0.080 (2024: HK$0.050)
(ZZE @4 : B%0.0507T) per ordinary share 50,443 31,527

REFRBIARYPBEALARARABRRE
B BT 2 RRAFASGHERTAIMEE -
ZEMBRRL AR RRENS RIS

13. ARFEBHAARGERER

BRERNBMNIDRBFALRRAEDFE
A FEAE A 5 B s A1) % 154,386,000 7T (=
T M4 - B 100,853,0007T) REFAE
AT E B Z INHEF 15 81630,531,600 A% (=
T P4 - 630,531,600/%) 5T EFT1E ©

HRBE T _RAFR_FT_ME=H
=t RLEFEHRITENBRENTTE
EBRARTNFHHE Bt HZ
FRREHEREARNERENSEYL
BEEYR Wﬂ&imﬁﬁﬁﬁzﬂm
BRERENCRABELETHE -

LIS BE AR AT 2024/25 F5

R

13.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. These financial statements do not
reflect the final dividend payable.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the
Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for
the year of HK$154,386,000 (2024: HK$100,853,000) and on
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 630,531,600
(2024: 630,531,600) outstanding during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 March 2025 and
2024 in respect of a dilution as the exercise prices of the share
options of the Company outstanding during the years are higher
than the average market prices of the Company’s ordinary shares
and, accordingly, such share options held have no dilutive effect
on the basic earnings per share amounts presented.
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B SRR M EE () Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—E-_RF=A=+—H 31 March 2025
14. ¥ BRERRE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
“E-RAF=ZA=+—H 31 March 2025
BE -
HEs - BR
R E R
Plant,
Tt machinery,
kgF* HEIE furniture
Land and Construction and other st
(BETFIT) (HK$'000) buildings* in progress  equipment Total
RZZZWFMNA—H At 1 April 2024
AR Cost 637,777 3,339 1,061,573 1,702,689
ZEERAA Accumulated depreciation and impairment ~ (383,469) - (767,470)  (1,150,939)
REFE Net carrying amount 254,308 3,339 294,103 551,750
RZZ-—MFEMA—A8 - At 1 April 2024, net of accumulated
Bk ETE RAE depreciation and impairment 254,308 3,339 294,103 551,750
NE Additions 347 52,120 11,576 64,043
HE Disposals - - (56) (56)
S iH Write-offs - (64) (6,295) (6,359)
Lk Transfers - (4,801) 4801 -
REFHERE Depreciation provided during the year (26,302) - (26,304) (52,606)
PE 5 Exchange realignment (3,736) (83) (6,138) (9,957)

R-E-RF=A=+—H" At 31 March 2025, net of accumulated
Bk EFTE RAE depreciation and impairment 224,617 50,511 271,687 546,315

RZZE-RF=ZA=+—H At 31 March 2025

AR Cost 621,243 50,511 1,013,497 1,685,251
ZFMELRE Accumulated depreciation and impairment ~ (396,626) - (741,810)  (1,138,436)
REFE Net carrying amount 224617 50,511 271,687 546,815
* RZTZRAF=ZA=+—H T REF * As at 31 March 2025, included in land and buildings was a
BIE KA S B 4.496,0007T (ZF freehold land of HK$4,496,000 (2024: HK$4,694,000).

ZPY4E ;B 4,694,0007T) ©

172 BIESEBR AT 2024/25 Fik CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25



E ST ELEEAC )

—E_RAF=A=+—H

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

14. V¥ - BERRKEE) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

—E-NFE=A=1+—H 31 March 2024

R

i

BE -
Hes - BH
REMBRE
Plant,
T machinery,
REF* HEEIR furniture
Land and Construction and other it
(E%Fr) (HK$°000) buildings* in progress  equipment Total
RZEZ=FMA—H At 1 April 2023
A Cost 681,285 11,906 1,085,056 1,778,247
ZEMERRE Accumulated depreciation and impairment ~ (390,548) - (802,317)  (1,192,865)
RmFE Net carrying amount 290,737 11,906 282,739 585,382
RZZZ=FMA—A8" At 1 April 2023, net of accumulated
Bk ETERAE depreciation and impairment 290,737 11,906 282,739 585,382
NE Additions - 4,493 40,075 44,568
HE Disposals - - (323) (323)
B Write-offs - - (1,511) (1,511)
R Transfers 2,782 (12,517) 9,735 -
S E N ES Transfer to investment properties (4,356) - - (4,356)
rEEERE Depreciation provided during the year (26,427) - (24,749) (51,176)
B i 3B Exchange realignment (8,428) (543) (11,863) (20,834)
RZTEZWMFE=A=+—H " At31 March 2024, net of accumulated
Bk ETERAE depreciation and impairment 254,308 3,339 294,103 551,750
RZZEZME=A=+—H At31 March 2024
AR Cost 637,777 3,339 1,061,573 1,702,689
2HFERAE Accumulated depreciation and impairment  (383,469) - (767.470)  (1,150,939)
FHFE Net carrying amount 254,308 3,339 294,103 551,750
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

14. M%  BERRHE (&) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
HE_Z2_NF=ZA=+—HIFER" During the year ended 31 March 2024, one of the Group’s
REEy —FEHREEFEBEEREYE ([ leasehold buildings was transferred to investment properties (the
BEREME] - ZHEEEFRER 2 H “Transfer to Investment Properties”). That leasehold building
RERAKARERNEGREE  EATEAE was revalued individually at the date of the transfer by Cushman
st BB 76,468,000 7T (HTFE15) » B8 & Wakefield Limited, an independent firm of professionally
Y REEERGEEMANEERITERA qualified valuers, at an aggregate fair value of HK$76,468,000
AIEME - REU EHEZE®HEF B (note 15) based on its existing use. A total revaluation surplus
RS #72,112,0007T » & R AE R 2 EER of HK$72,112,000, resulting from the above valuation, had
TH B &8 118,028,000 7T (M 5£29) B 5t A been credited to other comprehensive income, together with the
Hih 2 EKaE - hEE - FTFBEHIR related deferred tax liability of HK$18,028,000 (note 29). Further
BRI s 15 o details of the valuation were set out in note 15 to the financial

statements.

15. REYHE 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CB¥FT) (HK$°000) 2025 2024
REHREE Carrying amount at beginning of year 388,071 332,866
BT EYE The Transfer to Investment Properties - 76,468
R ERER A FE Fair value changes recognized in

BH) (Mit7) the income statement (note 7) (22,944) (10,569)
PE 5 F & Exchange realignment (6,780) (10,694)
RERMEKREE Carrying amount at end of year 358,347 388,071

AEEREMERBESEWEZEE - &
BREBRY ABURPBRARENTEDE-
Br T AREE MR E Y E B 76,468,000 7T
CEBEREMEZANEGRE —PHF
BEIATBREMF 1450 AEEH
EMEXRBEBERTERRARIMEME -
R-_EBE-_hE=BA=+—HB2EHEHE
576 ¥ 358,347,000 (ZF — M F : B
388,071,0007T) - AEEEEEFF IR
EZEIIEBHEMBEREE Y 2 N
HE - KRZBEREMBNH 28
BUYMAREEARGEERE - AEH
EEESF - ARFEYBHREETMHAE
B E R R EA R (L EREI T o

REMEDRELZHERATE="F

PR 2 — B BN M SRR 16

AEBREMRE—FHBHNFE 2368 °

174 EHEEAFR AT 2024/25 F5H

The investment properties of the Group were determined
as industrial properties in Mainland China, based on the
nature, characteristics and risks of each property. Apart
from the revaluation of the Group’s investment properties of
HK$76,468,000 during the date of the Transfer to Investment
Properties as detailed in note 14 to the financial statements, the
investment properties of the Group were revalued on 31 March
2025 based on valuations performed by Cushman & Wakefield
Limited, at HK$358,347,000 (2024: HK$388,071,000). Each
year, the Group’s management decides to appoint which
external valuer to be responsible for the external valuations of the
Group’s properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained. The Group’s management has discussions with
the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation results
once a year when the valuation is performed for annual financial
reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included

in note 16 to the financial statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are
included on page 236.
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—E-hRF=RA=+—H 31 March 2025

15. REWE (&) 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
AFEER Fair value hierarchy
TRINTAEEREYFE 2 A EFEER The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

R-ZZEZAF=ZA=+t-BNAVEFERA

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2025 using
RNERTS BEXABE EBEATUHE
ZHE WARE WAHE
(5—F8) (=) (B=FE)
Quoted Significant Significant

prices in observable  unobservable
active markets inputs inputs HEt
(BEETFr) (HK$'000) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ARIEE 2820 Recurring fair value
NEEFE measurement for:
TEYE Industrial properties - - 358,347 358,347
R-B-MF=A=+-ANAFEFERA
Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2024 using
RERMIE EATEHE EBEATTHE
ZHRE WARE WABE
(B—18) (B=18) (=)
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable  unobservable
active markets inputs inputs wEr
(B%FT) (HK$'000) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
IATIEE 2881 Recurring fair value
NEEEFE measurement for:
TEWE Industrial properties - - 388,071 388,071
FR - FEBHF-_EsHAUTELHAF During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
B8 TEYE-EEANED (= measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
T PO f|) o into or out of Level 3 (2024: Nil).
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B SRR M EE () Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—E-_RF=A=+—H 31 March 2025
15. REWX (&) 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
DAREEBHR(E) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
LWTREEMEMBEMAGEREREE Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key
BABBCHME - inputs to the valuation of investment properties:
BERFTAEE
B ABE
HE R % Significant gE MEFIHE
Valuation unobservable Range/weighted average
technique inputs 2025 2024
T wE R FHIfH& B%2,268,000t 51 2838,0007C
Industrial properties Investment method (R) HK$2,268,000 HK$2,838,000
Term rent

(per month)

FHI R & 6.5%-7% 6.5%-7%
Term yield

BEEfHE #B¥%2,403,000T #%2,608,0007T

(BR) HK$2,403,000 HK$2,608,000
Reversionary rent
(per month)

NG 6.5%-7% 6.5%-7%
Reversionary yield

AEBITEMEZ AN FEDEREERZE The fair value of the Group’s industrial properties is determined
DIRBHEAONBES WA Wt RMESNT using the investment method, by capitalizing the rental
ERBEELER L  ATFEFEEFH income derived from the existing tenancy with due allowance
HekEFHS2EEEBEERNRETH for the reversionary potential of the property. The fair value
WREREFRUREXE28HEBEERE - measurement is positively correlated to the term rent and

reversionary rent and negatively correlated to term yield and
reversionary yield.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

E ST ELEEAC )

—E_RAF=A=+—H

l16. HE 16. LEASES

AEBEREEA

AREBREEPFEANETYWEREL
ERETAEHEAR  — X ENRE®
RATEL  AMEZTRERE L B
AAtER+ZF(ZTE-_WF A +E
A+=F) BREZSLWHAEER B
TeZHE—FPHRBE - BHE_E-_RF=
BA=+—HIEFERN WEBREHER
R—BNF—ZEtF(ZE_WF: NF—

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for certain of its properties and
office equipment used in its operations. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners
with lease periods of 50 to 52 years (2024: 50 to 52 years) and
no ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these
land leases. During the year ended 31 March 2025, leases of
properties generally have lease terms between 1 and 7 years
(2024: between 1 and 7 years). Office equipment is individually

ELF) MAEREERNBEREE - of low value.
() FHEEE (@) Right-of-use assets

RERALAEEEREEENRRER

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets

BT and the movements during the year are as follows:

HELT

Leasehold Y3 #at
CEMFor) (HK$'000) land  Properties Total
RZZE-_=FWAF—H At 1 April 2023 20,289 20,073 40,362
VIN=Y Additions 22,816 1,045 23,861
IR Early termination - (457) (457)
e Depreciation charge (985) (3,986) (4,971)
b 3 Exchange realignment (684) 9 (675)
RZE-_WNFE=ZA=+—HK At 31 March 2024 and

—E-NFMA—H 1 April 2024 41,436 16,684 58,120

NE Additions - 4,316 4,316
WESZE Depreciation charge (1,125) (4,027) (5,152)
P& 5 58 & Exchange realignment (694) (479) (1,173)
RZZE-_AF=A=+—H At 31 March 2025 39,617 16,494 56,111

EEEBR AR 2024/25F 5
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B SRR M EE () Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—E-_RF=A=+—H 31 March 2025
16. HE (&) 16. LEASES (continued)
AEBEREBEA (F) The Group as a lessee (continued)
(by HEEE (b)  Lease liabilities
FAHEEENFERBELESHNT - The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

during the year are as follows:

(BEFr) (HK$°000) 2025 2024
ROA—BZRHE Carrying amount at 1 April 17,339 19,926
WHE New leases 4,316 1,045
REMmBREE Early termination of a lease - (466)
FAEHER Accretion of interest recognized
2 during the year 964 1,130
3% Payments (4,574) (4,300)
P 5 58 & Exchange realignment (509) 4
R=ZA=+—HZKRHAEE Carrying amount at 31 March 17,536 17,339
R iw= Analyzed into:
mENER Current portion 4,274 3,429
JERENE Non-current portion 13,262 13,910
DT Analyzed into:
—FR Within one year 4,274 3,429
EF In the second year 3,797 3,564
E-RZERF In the third to fifth years,
(BEMFBIEEN) inclusive 9,465 7,830
hFE Beyond five years - 2,516
17,536 17,339
HESEMNIHEIMIFEBERY I HRE The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note
B FE40 - 40 to the financial statements.
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i EL N EEAE ) Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—E-RF=A=+—H 31 March 2025
16. #HE (&) 16. LEASES (continued)
REBERZRBA (F) The Group as a lessee (continued)
() RUmERBERHBEEMEBEZTIERAT (c) The amounts recognized in the income statement in

relation to leases are as follows:

(B Fr) (HK$°000) 2025 2024
HEBENE Interest on lease liabilities 9264 1,130
FREEENELH Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 5,152 4,971
HZHAERBENSTH Expense relating to short-term leases

(REASHEKA - (included in cost of sales,

HE R HS selling and distribution expenses and

PARATERZ ) administrative expenses) 4,387 2,864
HEEEEEHERHN Expense relating to leases of low-value assets

S (RRAITHEE L) (included in administrative expenses) 88 95
RAKEHEE W= Gain on early termination of a lease - 9)
R R IER W Total amount recognized in the income

HIBHEEE statement 10,591 9,051

(d) HEMReRDBBEERATB (d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 33(c)
H]ERMIFEI3(C) ° to the financial statements.
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B SRR M EE () Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—TE-RF=A=+—H 31 March 2025
16. HE (&) 16. LEASES (continued)
AEBEERAHAA The Group as a lessor
AEEREBEERELTHRPEARKLM The Group leases certain parts of its owner-occupied properties
(B HESE T ERAYERIRE and investment properties (notes 14 and 15) consisting of
WA (142 15) - BT EMEARK - A industrial properties in the People’s Republic of China (the
f%fk WERKABAZFRES AL “PRC”) under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the
TJ%‘E BTSSRI THAZERS FR K leases generally require the tenants to pay security deposits
SEME ERME S KA RBEE37,187,000 and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the
T (ZE W EF - B #37,292,0007T) * 7F then prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognized
EEAR I IRERMFET - by the Group during the year was HK$37,187,000 (2024:

HK$37,292,000), details of which are included in note 7 to the
financial statements.

RZE_RF=A=+—H8 ~A&E£EIEE At 31 March 2025, the undiscounted lease payments receivable
BFAE AFT B PP RSEE L E 2 R 2K by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating
MM RTIREREEZTIERAT leases with its tenants are as follows:
(CB¥FoT) (HK$°000) 2025 2024
—F R Within one year 45,492 47,475
—FUEERFEUA After one year but within two years 16,887 39,972
MFEREB=FUA After two years but within three years 17,244 12,997
—FUEENFUR After three years but within four years 14,744 8,503
MEFBERFENUR After four years but within five years 12,952 7,412
B iR A F After five years 11,057 16,174
118,376 132,533
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17. &

;4

GE¥TT)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

17.

GOODWILL

(HK$'000)

RZZEZ=FMA—H "
—E-_NF=A=+—8"
—EoNFEMA—BK
—E-hAF=-HA=+—H

At 1 April 2023,
31 March 2024,
1 April 2024 and
31 March 2025

AR Cost 94,923

ZETRE Accumulated impairment (43,018)
REFE Net carrying amount 51,905
EERENR Impairment testing of goodwill

BEBaHELECBEDE TAEERAF
llHﬁ%Z*ZHW% Al HAMRFPEX
PR BB RELEN I 2 REEEE
HERERHEFTEUEAHEER  %ZF
MEBARzAWESENRECAEELZ
FEETE CHEMAMNBEESREEANNR
FHBRBEAER - WEREETENE
EHREEFEEAEEERFTEE - ak
EJZKZ*;*@JE@E%IE%&W%&%W%*
KRB zTEH FHRBENSHER®RT E
FRBEFENHRR URBERMNTER-
ReREeETEFANNRETEARSS (ZF
ZPOEE 2 10%) (BiAD) - ARBAERM E A
Al R R B ﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ézfﬁ‘i\ﬁ%ﬁzi
EER2%(ZE-NF : 2%)HE

LIS BE AR AT 2024/25 F5

R

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated
to a group of subsidiaries in Shunde, the PRC, which is a
cash-generating unit under the reportable operating segment
in Mainland China and Hong Kong and engaged in the
manufacture and sale of plastic injection moulding machines
and related products. The recoverable amount of the subsidiaries
has been determined based on a value in use calculation using
cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
a five-year period. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculation include the expected growth rate and discount
rate. Changes in revenue and costs are based on management
experience and expectations of future changes in the market.
The financial budgets are prepared reflecting current and prior
years performance and development expectations. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 8% (2024: 10%)
which is before tax and reflects specific risks relating to the
relevant subsidiaries. The cash flows beyond the 5-year period
are extrapolated using a growth rate of 2% (2024: 2%).
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18. B EE

—E-hRF=A=1+—8H

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

31 March 2025

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31 March 2025

i Aif

(BB FoT) (HK$'000) Know-how
RZZEZMFMNH—HAERAE - Cost at 1 April 2024, net of accumulated

2B Rt E s RORAE amortization and impairment 2,648
REFEHERAE Amortization provided during the year (800)
PE H F8 % Exchange realignment (40)
R-E-_RF=A=+—BZHEm%EE Net carrying amount at 31 March 2025 1,808
RZEBE-AF=A=+—H At 31 March 2025

B AR Cost 3,969

RETEE NORE Accumulated amortization and impairment (2,161)

BRTADF(E Net carrying amount 1,808
—E-NF=A=+—H 31 March 2024

B AiE

(BETFT) (HK$'000) Know-how
R -_=ZFMA—BHHKA Cost at 1 April 2023, net of accumulated

BNk 25T RRE amortization and impairment 3,579
IS S SR Amortization provided during the year (812)
PE 5 8% Exchange realignment (119)
R-ZZE-—MFE=A=+—HZEEFE Net carrying amount at 31 March 2024 2,648
RZEBEZMFE=A=+—H At 31 March 2024

BN Cost 4,040

ST MO E Accumulated amortization and impairment (1,392)

BRTANF(E Net carrying amount 2,648
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CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25



i EL N EEAE ) Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—ZE-_RF=A=+—H 31 March 2025
19. RBEEQRIZRE 19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CB#For) (HK$°000) 2025 2024
E(hEEFE Share of net assets 25,673 24,607
ENEE AR ZERGTBLEZFER & The balances due to the associates are trade related, unsecured,
B RER—BR=TRAZN - it - interest-free and are normally settled on a term of 30 days.
R_ZE_RF=ZA=+—H8 ENBEELEQ Accordingly, as at 31 March 2025, the amounts due to
AIER B ¥ 407,000 (ZZE Z O F : B associates of HK$407,000 (2024: HK$13,322,000) are included
13,322,000 T) E R AR B 5 M ZIRER R in the trade and bills payables, as disclosed in note 26 to the
AN RET SRR sE 26 8 71 - financial statements.
FrEASEZBE NGB AR FPEFME All of the Group’s associates are corporate entities registered in
MBI RELE ZRFEEA - the PRC and operating in Mainland China.
BN R 2 EERT Particulars of the associates are as follows:
AEBEEG
EEED
Percentage of
BEWEMER ownership interest FEEK
£ Paid-up attributable Principal
Name registered capital to the Group activities
BT EHBERER AR OO 1,520,000 7T 25 fERIEE
Foshan Fu Xiong Foundry Co., Ltd. @ US$1,520,000 KEBEBEHESD
Manufacture and sale
of iron casting products
FILTIRER SRR ERR QGO @ 800,000 7T 25 AR E
Foshan Shunde Fu Xiong Machinery US$800,000 Dormant
Company, Limited @@
Hiat Notes:
(1) FGHHMRARNUN=ZA=+—HAHEREHE" (1)  The above companies use 31 March as their reporting date to
AFaHZERAR ZHRERR - conform with their holding company’s reporting date.
(2) HEXRARBBEMELR - (2)  The English company names are translated for identification
purposes only.
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B SRR M EE () Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—E-_RF=A=+—H 31 March 2025
19. REEERRZ2RE (&) 19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
TRIRASEE R I FEE KX Z R A The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
KIS B A4 R - of the Group’s associates that are not individually material:
(CE®For) (HK$°000) 2025 2024
IHEE N B FEE R, (Ei8) Share of the associates’ profit/(loss) for the year 1,411 (52)
o /NE Share of the associates’ other
HEf2mEE M comprehensive expenses (345) (1,004)
/NS Share of the associates’ total
waEmmlkss () comprehensive income/(expenses) 1,066 (1,056)
AEEREE QT Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
HEARABELRE investments in the associates 25,673 24,607
20. & 20. INVENTORIES
(CB#FoT) (HK$°000) 2025 2024
R Raw materials 262,323 259,413
ER M Work in progress 219,391 193,168
2UAK M Finished goods 306,840 242,056
788,554 694,637
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—E-FAE=A=+—A 31 March 2025

21. EREGREEERN 21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(BE#For) (HK$'000) 2025 2024
JEUNE 5 BR R Trade receivables 1,222,387 1,098,568
HE Impairment (91,633) (86,938)
JEUE 5 R FUFEE Trade receivables, net 1,130,754 1,011,630
JEUL IR ER X Bills receivable 443,044 306,674
JEUE 5 M ERIE R Aa Total trade and bills receivables 1,573,798 1,318,304
oD AEIERENEF S Portion classified as non-current portion (109,824) (86,214)
mENE S Current portion 1,463,974 1,232,090

BEEFZEZBRF—RB/EERS  RITE
BERERANE AKRERERENEFP A
XENRGEEBRTEFPEER FEH—
BMR=ZTRE-—AN\TX - AEBERNEK
1R R AR HE B R R MR 3% SR AE
ERBEERE -

AERNERMNBHRASENRKRES LR
BERTABREDREFPAAN  BREE
RHEREERR - NEBY ERZFE
ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂiﬁi\ﬂﬂﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁz*«@)uu °
B FE M B 2 BR 3B #60,681,0007C (—F
Z P - B 93,126,0007T) JAF 15 A X
6.3% (ZZTZMNF : 6.2%) st EREEH—
R+ BRAE=1+EA(ZT_MF:
T/ EAZ=FXEA) N Ferz BKE
2 REERRIL NS -

LIS BE AR AT 2024/25 F5

R

Trading terms with customers are either cash on delivery, bank
bills or on credit. The Group grants credit to customers based on
their respective business strength and creditability, with credit
periods of 30 days to 180 days in general. The Group adopts
strict control policies over credit terms and receivables that serve
to minimize credit risk.

In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s
trade and bills receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances. Except for the trade
receivables of HK$60,681,000 (2024: HK$93,126,000) which
are interest-bearing at an average interest rate of 6.3% (2024:
6.2%) per annum and with credit periods of 18 months to
36 months (2024: 18 months to 36 months) in general, the
remaining trade and bills receivables are non-interest-bearing.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25 185



E ST ELEEAC )

—E_RE=A=+—H

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

21. EWESREBRR(E) 21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
R-E_RFE=A=+—H AEEZE As at 31 March 2025, the Group has pledged bills receivable
1 U 2215 BR FOB 149,475,000 (Z & of HK$149,475,000 (2024: HK$73,307,000) to secure the
Z P4 ;B #73,307,0007T) AR H issuance of bank acceptance notes, included in the trade and
LTHEMNRITERLES  ZSEED bills payables, to suppliers.

AEBRE S REERRFRA -
RBEPRRZERESRETIZEHEZEAHRL The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
N EERETE CREDTOT : the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:
(BE#Fr) (HK$°000) 2025 2024
A+RA Within 90 days 651,126 471,634
n+—z2—8\aN+X 91 to 180 days 173,251 151,274
—EBNt—ZE=ZFATEKX 181 to 365 days 160,584 176,240
FEA —F Over 1 year 145,793 212,482
1,130,754 1,011,630
FEUWE SRS EREE ST The movements in the loss allowance for trade receivables are as
follows:
(BE#Fr) (HK$°000) 2025 2024
REF At beginning of year 86,938 92,297
BRI RN AR EE S, Impairment losses charged/(write-back of
(BT ARBEREED) M impairment losses credited) to
FEE (ML) the income statement, net (note 7) 10,755 (2,956)
TR E M R Amounts written off as uncollectible (1,966) (202)
P& H 2 Exchange realignment (4,094) (2,201)
RER At end of year 91,633 86,938

RZZE_AF=RA=+—H EEEHSE
mAhErEmRafEe—BaNTRREZ
EHREHREEEEREMMS -

RZZE_WNF=A=+—H EBEZEHA
PHEERARBREE-—BN\TRALZ
BBNBEREEBRRTREMR -

186 EMEEAR AT 2024/25 F5H

As at 31 March 2025, the increase in the loss allowance was
mainly due to the increase in expected credit loss rate of
balances past due over 180 days.

As at 31 March 2024, the decrease in the loss allowance was

mainly due to the decrease in expected credit loss rate of
balances past due over 180 days.
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2l. EREZREBRR(E)

R

i

R34 B SRR R B IR T RE AT
DEEEMEEAE - BEEDERAS
FUBRERNS BES S BARNHES
ABERE - R ERBRRARNERR -
EHBERNREENTENERBEE
AR B R A R A A T
RATSEER -

T 051 P 9 4 AR 4 7 o L
HSERNEERREHR -

R-E-_RAF=A=+—8H

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

21.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is available
at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

At 31 March 2025

popi
Past due
ht—% k)
PRATR —BNA+R —BNATX
EN#  Less than 91 to Over @et
Current 90 days 180 days 180 days Total
BHEEFHEX Expected credit loss rate 0% 3% 5% 63% 7%
REBERE(EETT) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 894,481 141,206 51,732 134968 1,222,387
TBHEERIB OB For)  Expected credit losses (HK$000) 390 3,865 2,544 84,834 91,633
RZE-_NF=H=+—H At 31 March 2024
popi
Past due
ht—% k)
PRATER —BNTXR —BNATX
EN#  Less than 91 to Over @at
Current 90 days 180 days 180 days Total
BHEEHEX Expected credit loss rate 0% 2% 3% 53% 8%
EEERE (%) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 750,068 127,502 66,081 154,917 1,098,568
TBHEE BB OB Fr)  Expected credit losses (HK$000) 1,193 2,365 1,874 81,506 86,938
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

21. BRESREBRA(E) 21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

RBEPRZEREERRZE BB M

The maturity dates of the bills receivable as at the end of the

wnR reporting period are analyzed as follows:

(BE#For) (HK$'000) 2025 2024

N+XA Within 90 days 176,684 139,352

nh+—=—8N+X 91 to 180 days 246,442 129,552

—BNT—E=ZAA~TEKX 181 to 365 days 18,296 18,226

thiE —F Over 1 year 1,622 19,544
443,044 306,674

R-ZT-_RAFEF=A=+—H EBERKEEE
R EH I RE (T —ME : #) o +
MEgEBRTPHEREERES EPEOL
PR BRI 2 FEWER R - TEERE B 1B
DE2EXREBEBRETEBEBRISEABEEER)
et o IR XA ER B AR E AR
UK A TRAE AR SR TR o 7K £ B I 4 4R
EEEE DEREBREMA N -2 -H
F=ZA=t+-BR-_ZE-_NMF=A=+—
HHEBEEEBE AR/ °

As at 31 March 2025, none of the bills receivable was either
past due or impaired (2024: Nil). The financial assets included
in the above balances relate to receivables for which there was
no recent history of default and past due amounts. The ECLs are
estimated by applying a loss rate approach with reference to the
historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to
reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. No loss allowance was provided
because management estimated that the ECLs as at 31 March
2025 and 31 March 2024 were minimal.

22. 7% ENRERHEMMERERR 22. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(E#TFor) (HK$°000) 2025 2024
HESSENNE Deposits and prepayments 195,151 102,036
H b e I BR 3K Other receivables 47,889 41,732
B ORE Less: Impairment (12,345) (15,443)
JE s # T8 Tax recoverable 11,421 8,794

242,116 137,119
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

22. ;1€ FEANREREMEWRERR(E) 22. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

&1 BT A AR R DA B A Uit B O (B

The movements in impairment allowance for deposits and

BEESIT prepayments and other receivables are as follows:

(E#For) (HK$°000) 2025 2024
RE ) At beginning of year 15,443 16,947
RN E ok Amounts written off as uncollectible (2,837) (946)
PE 5 & Exchange realignment (261) (558)
RER At end of year 12,345 15,443

R

i

—BmME AEBEFEESEREMERK
B+ AR B EEEENEBRE -
A EET2EEBAGEERRETME -
B 8 UK BR BB 85 12,345,000 7T (=&
ZPOEE - 15,443,000 7T) S 0 &5 &R T EY
©EE EBLE Y KT E 950 8% s B R
HZBERER RZE_AF=-A=+—
AR—ZE-ME=A=+—HB80F 44
MEHEEBEWTE AR -

ErEMmBERERBERES 2E
B 1E B B R (B H b e R KBRS
¥ 12,345,000 (Z 2 Z M F : B #
15,443,0007T) - HRXBERICEEE A
12,655,000 (Z 2 Z M4 : B
15,656,000 7T) °

EEAR AT 2024/25 F5

Generally, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12-
month ECLs of other receivables. The recoverability was assessed
with reference to the credit status of the debtors. Except for other
receivables of HK$12,345,000 (2024: HK$15,443,000), the
financial assets included in these balances relate to receivables
for which there was no recent history of default and past due
amounts. The ECLs of the remaining balances as at 31 March
2025 and 31 March 2024 were assessed to be minimal.

Included in the above impairment allowance for other
receivables is an allowance for individually impaired other
receivables of HK$12,345,000 (2024: HK$15,443,000) with a
gross carrying amount before provision of HK$12,555,000 (2024-
HK$15,656,000).
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E ST ELEEAC )

—E_RE=A=+—H

23. EWmEHEERMN 23. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

AEBHEHEETIZHRTREP, - %5H
ENHAREMERN _T-_AF=A
=t+—H - ERSBEME G (T 1F:
—EAZ+@EA) FEFPRBEREHEB=
B BBECHEE T -

The Group leases certain of its injection moulding machines to
its customers. These leases are classified as finance leases and
have no remaining lease terms as at 31 March 2025 (2024:
1 month to 10 months). The customers shall purchase the
leased injection moulding machines at the end of the lease terms
of the finance leases.

(E#For) (HK$’000) 2025 2024
U R E BRI Finance lease receivables 4,258 5,944
B Impairment (4,258) (4,334)
R EHERFFEE Finance lease receivables, net - 1,610

RBEERRZBERERENRKRDE
WHEFERBERFESFREDHMOT

The total future minimum lease receivables under finance leases
and their present values as at the end of the reporting period are
analyzed as follows:

ROBRBHEERENRE

BRAEWHERE Present value of
Minimum lease receivables minimum lease receivables

(B%For) (HK$'000) 2025 2024 2025 2024
FEU R Amounts receivable:

—F R Within one year - 1,665 - 1,610
=LOREKHE Total minimum finance

THEFRIE B lease receivables - 1,665 - 1,610
P BN TN Unearned finance income - (55)
R ERERIEA Total net finance lease

SFREMAET receivables - 1,610

BHE-_ZE-_AF=A=1t—RHIEERI
ERRWAGER (S - UFE - &) -

190 EMEEARATF 2024/25 F5H

No contingent income was recognized during the year ended 31
March 2025 (2024: Nil).
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EUEREHERABEBEEBEESHNT

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

23. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for finance lease
receivables are as follows:

(CE®TFor) (HK$°000) 2025 2024
REH] At beginning of year 4,334 4,488
M 5 B Exchange realignment (76) (154)
RER At end of year 4,258 4,334

RERE B RRABEREETREDN
UrtERHEERE - BEXNERES
BUBBREANZEE P 2 AR fE s
FEETE At ERRERENELER
ERREANRERHASNERETES
TR B BRI BOR SRA B IR S TER B & 3R
KAl SEEHYL o

TREYIEREBEREFEOREEEW
REHEERNEERRER

RZE-_RF=A=+—H

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is available
at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group’s finance lease receivables using a provision matrix:

At 31 March 2025

st
Past due

ht-—-% Bk

PRATR —BN+XR —BNATX
BN Less than 91 to Over #et
Current 90 days 180 days 180 days Total
BHEEEIAE Expected credit loss rate 0% 0% 0% 100% 100%
BREERE (%) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) - - - 4,258 4,258
BB (B Tr) Expected credit losses (HK$'000) - - - 4,258 4,258

EEEBR AR 2024/25F 5
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B SRR M EE () Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—TE-RF=A=+—H 31 March 2025
23. BUBEHEERNK (&) 23. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued)
RZZE_MFE=A=+—H At 31 March 2024
popi
Past due
At+—-% BB
PRATR —BNATXR —BNATX
BN Less than 91 to Over #Et
Current 90 days 180 days 180 days Total
BHEEEEE Expected credit loss rate 0% 0% 0% 100% 73%
SREEARE (%) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 1,530 80 - 4334 5,944
BHEEEE(EETT) Expected credit losses (HK$'000) - - - 4334 4334
24, EHRITEXK 24. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS
(CE®For) (HK$°000) 2025 2024
EARRITIFR - mBNE D Pledged bank deposits, current portion 138,784 47,899
EFEeRAETWEBRARMBEE 2EMIR Balances included pledged bank deposits of certain subsidiaries
1117 3% A % % 138,784,000 T (=& = in the amount of HK$138,784,000 (2024: HK$45,141,000)
F 45 141,0007T) AIEERE LA for securing the issuance of bank acceptance notes which are
THEBMBETEALES  ZFEELA included in the trade and bills payables, to suppliers. As at 31
ENEZREBRRA - R_T_MF= March 2024, a pledged bank deposit of a subsidiary in the
A=+—8B —HWBRAMZEABE amount of HK$2,758,000 was secured for a bank loan granted
2,758,000 7T 2 H IR R1TF KA E R A by bank in Mainland China to customers to purchase the Group’s
BARERITATEFEBREAEBEERSN products.
RITER
BIHRRITERGERN T ETBREOLHE The pledged bank deposits are deposited with creditworthy
BEERIT - banks with no recent history of default.
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—E-_RF=A=+—H 31 March 2025
25. RERBITER 25. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(CB#For) (HK$°000) 2025 2024
Be RIRTET Cash and bank balances 398,004 470,388
FATF R 2B B R HR v B Bank deposits with original maturity of
TNR={ERA ZIRITFE less than three months when acquired 130,175 346,564
FAF 5K B BB B TR AR B Bank deposits with original maturity of
BB =1{E A 2 BITIFR more than three months when acquired - 8,825
WIRe MIRTTHET Total cash and bank balances 528,179 825,777

RZE_RF=ZA=+—HB FXTEEMU
ARBFEZRASEBRTEFROE
#212,830,000c (ZZ M4 : B
345,405,0007C) - ARETEEEREBE
Hib G - MR E T Bk HME & 32 (R Bl
NigE SEMNEEERE  AEEA
BREEREINERHE 2 RITHARERL
BMRHEMER -

RITERARITE B ETF EF R BEREUR
BT AEEBREMNER MELAM
EHEANBEA(CE-_MNE: +t RXRENH
A)TMENERGFR TASENEHRT
KEEREF B - RITHETFT T RN EiI
HENLHE s BEERIT RTAF
—A=+t—H BekRITEFEEEH
173078 ¥ 26,625,000 (ZZ —PU4F : B
238,987,0007T) ° % & B F sRAT L A —F
EWMFETENFH - IREILZEBEX
WEIBXRY -ZEBTRFECEN
ThFE(H R HA IR € G -

EEEBR AR 2024/25F 5

R

As at 31 March 2025, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to approximately
HK$212,830,000 (2024: HK$345,405,000). RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies. However, under the
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, and Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorized to conduct foreign
exchange business.

The cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The time deposits are made for varying
periods of between 2 weeks and 6 months (2024: 7 days and
6 months) depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default. As at 31 March 2025,
included in the cash and bank balances were demand deposits
of HK$26,625,000 (2024: HK$238,987,000). The demand
deposits were made for varying periods of between 1 year and 2
years. There was no penalty for or restriction on early withdrawal
of the demand deposits. The demand deposits were held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.
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—E-_RF=A=+—H 31 March 2025

26. ENEZREBERN 26. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
RBEPRZENESREERFTIZRE The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end
BHAE 2R DTIOT ¢ of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
(CE®For) (HK$°000) 2025 2024
N+XA Within 90 days 410,742 408,225
Nt+—=2—8BN+X 91 to 180 days 214,285 128,443
—BNt+t—EZ=Fa~TEX 181 to 365 days 160,306 73,350
il —F Over 1 year 31,014 13,092

816,347 623,110

EBRNESZEREERERLTHAER—K= The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are
BAZNEARNGES - BHNESLREEKE normally settled on terms of 3 months to 6 months. Included in
RE P BEEENEE QA FIEBE 407,000 the trade and bills payables are trade payables of HK$407,000
T (ZZ 4 : #B#13,322,0007T) * & (2024: HK$13,322,000) due to associates which are repayable
NRIERE=Z T KRR - within 30 days.

27. HibENERR BitEBRANAE 27. OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES
(B8 TFr) (HK$'000) Bt 7t Notes 2025 2024
EHaE Contract liabilities (a) 67,817 88,649
EmEMBRANESTAE  Other payables and accruals (b) 239,268 213,213

HibEERFR - JEETEE  Total other payables, accruals

ke aE@s and contract liabilities 307,085 301,862
iAol Portion classified as non-current
RIEREE S portion (4,431) (11,195)

mENE D Current portion 302,654 290,667

Kat - Notes:

(a) AHNEBEBEBREXINEMOBERZK K= (a)  Contract liabilities include advances received to deliver goods. The
T FNMA—HNANAEAAEE contract liabilities as at 1 April 2023 amounted to HK$83,390,000.
83,390,000 - AW B BER _ZE_RERH The decrease (2024: increase) in contract liabilities in 2025 was
D(ZEZMF - M) EZHRRFHER mainly due to the decrease (2024: increase) in advances received
HEEMMRAEFPKRIERZTR LD (= from customers in relation to the sale of goods at the end of the
TP - HEh) - year.

(b) RAEMENERREFEBENERAR (b)  The financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
A FE, o are non-interest-bearing.
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E ST ELEEAC )
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28. EEBAGE 28. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

R

AEBEEGBZMEARRILENS 12
HR_ZZRAF LA - BB TRKRSED
ERACEREZHBRRERZBAE
DRE-RIFEEE REEEEFRR
RAEHFARNKREN R EHTIER
BFEHUET HEZRIBH -BEEL+EE
ANTRRZERFERE R RFTERRN
RIENEABFHRFHE -

Eff8IZRAKEEARZENREFSH
R REREBEHEZESERE IUE
BEgZAEF A HEBRFHEREET
AZTREE ZEEREBERARA &
AEENEEEB )M ZEQRE®ETE
A% RT BIH) IR B SRS o

Eff3IZA AR RREXBANTH
SR - RATISRARREERBHTZE

MHZ B EERERRMNAMERER
HlE NTHEEREZERAZAER
EEMEREEERERBROBRAFTR
—E-RE=ZAZ=1T—B#17 JIATEE
BUESRBEMKELTE -

RBERRZETERERRWOT -

The Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan operate the Old Scheme,
covering substantially all of its employees who were recruited
by the Taiwanese subsidiaries before the implementation of
the Labour Act on 1 July 2005. Under the Old Scheme, the
employees are entitled to retirement benefits annually based on
an accumulated base point, which is determined based on their
years of service, with a maximum of 45 points multiplied by the
average monthly salary for the final six months of employment on
attainment of a retirement age ranging from 55 to 65.

The Old Scheme requires the Group to make monthly
contributions to the retirement fund. The fund is administered
by the Committee and is deposited under the Committee’s name
with a government approved financial institution, which acts
as the trustee. The assets held by the trustee are separated
from those of the Group. The Committee is responsible for the
determination of the investment strategy of the scheme.

The Old Scheme is exposed to interest rate risk, the risk of
changes in the life expectancy for pensioners, equity market risk
and credit risk.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the plan assets and the
present value of the defined benefit obligations were carried out
on 31 March 2025 by Greatfine Wealth Management Consulting
Inc., a qualified actuary recognized by the Actuarial Institute
in Taiwan, using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation
method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

2025 2024
= Discount rate 1.4% 1.3%
TEHF g RE Expected rate of salary increase 1.0% 1.0%

BRERERTFIEENTERB
11,779,000 (Z T M : B
11,6450007T) * BB EEMBEEEEN
BEBHRFBE T ENRENA175% (ZF
PO 1 169%) © & ER A E 5,041,000 7T
I FEEAR RISR AR TS A + = 5 0H0% -

FEBEABR AT 2024/25 Fif
R IIIIIIhhh____—_—_—eS ,ss5Sss5s,s,s,s,e=;s;,s,,;,m;—,;—;_m_—_—~=.

The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan
assets was HK$11,779,000 (2024: HK$11,645,000) and that
the actuarial value of these assets represented 175% (2024:
169%) of the benefits that had accrued to qualifying employees.
The surplus of HK$5,041,000 is expected to be cleared over the
remaining service period of 13 years.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

28. EE®AGE (&) 28. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN (continued)

TRRBREMRAEANEABRNEE

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as

BURMES T at the end of the reporting period is shown below:
2025
EFEER EEER
E 1 hn EERL
Lt = 12 0 Increase of [ 29> Decrease of
Increase defined Decrease defined
in rate benefit in rate benefit
(E#For) (HK$'000) % obligations % obligations
PR & Discount rate 0.5 30 (0.5) (31)
FRFHoBR Future salary increase 0.5 3 (0.5) (3)
2024
EHEENEME EEENEME
i GRd) #hn, CGRd)
Increase/ Increase/
Lt = 32 0 (decrease) of Lt BE A (decrease) of
Increase defined Decrease defined
in rate benefit in rate benefit
(BT or) (HK$’000) % obligations % obligations
PrIR K Discount rate 0.5 (122) (0.5) 133
RERFHoBR Future salary increase 0.5 133 (0.5) (123)

LA gEEDN - DREERBREERS
Hﬂﬂﬁ%%’*i/\i@%@bﬂ HBEBBMNEMTH
FENELE BRED T IRBEEARR
g ARNAERMRIEFTEMEE -
HRMEDT AL TRREBBNEEZ
ERES IF%TE“”TﬁT e A E A
(E”*“ij,%

196 EMHEEAR AT 2024/25 F5

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based
on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit
obligations as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period. The sensitivity
analysis is based on a change in a significant assumption,
keeping all other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis
may not be representative of an actual change in the defined
benefit obligations as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25



i EL N EEAE ) Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—E-RF=A=+—H 31 March 2025
28. EHRBEAE (B 28. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN (continued)
ERelsXPHIANEBTEEZRS The total expenses/income recognized in the consolidated
WABEEIT income statement in respect of the scheme are as follows:
(CE®TFor) (HK$°000) 2025 2024
B AR TS A AR Current service cost 33 56
FB K A F 58 Interest cost, net (62) (29)
FRAER(WA) Net benefit expenses/(income) (29) 27
FREENEARTEEENAFTECE The movements in the defined benefit obligations and the fair
PO value of plan assets are as follows:
2025
REBZHBRNERAA HARRERENESHEESE/ (5F)
Pension cost charged to the Remeasurement losses/(gains) in other
income statement comprehensive income
Angst 4
BRgt  BREL
el 3l HARf
588 REEE 2EHE
)3 A Actuarial ~ Actuarial Nt R
—EopE 8 FE  WERM changes changes Subtotal kS
mA-B  HRERE  EREE Subtotal arising from ~ arising from included ZB=t-B
M Current Net includedin  BREA  changesin  changesin  ERER inother  EfiF EXHE M
1 April service interest ~ the income Benefit  demographic financial ~ Experience comprehensive  Contribution Exchange 31 March
(B¥F1) (HK$000) 2024 cost expense  statement paid  assumptions  assumptions adjustments income by employer  realignment 2025
TEENER Defined benefit obligations 6,881 3 %0 13 (320) - (11) 358 347 - (293) 6,738
SEBEATE  Fairvalue of plan assets (11,645) (152) (152) 30 - - (809) (809) - 507 (11,779)
EHEE Benefit assets (4764) B (62) (29) - - (11) (451) (462) - A4 (5,041)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

28. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN (continued)

2024
REBZHBRNERAA FARM2ERENERTREA
Pension cost charged to the Remeasurement gains in other
income statement comprehensive income
AR#E 8%
BREt  BREL
i i HALf
RERE  RERD ENE
)3 A Actuarial Actuarial Nt ®
St 2 1 FE  WERM changes changes Subtotal —EopE
MA-B  HEBHEA  BRFE Subtotal arising from ~ arising from included Zh=1-A
At Current Net includedin  BHEH  changesin  changesin  BBEE inother  EXHE  EXEE At
1 April service interest ~ the income Benefit ~ demographic financial ~ Experience comprehensive  Contribution Exchange 31 March
(B%F1) (HK$000) 2023 cost expense statement paid assumptions  assumptions  adjustments income by employer  realignment 2024
TERNER Defined beneft obligations 11,361 5% 124 180 (3515) - (53) (583) (636) - (509) 6,881
SEEENTE  Fairvalue of plan assets (13972) - (153) (153) 3515 - - (1,119 (1,119 (613) 697 (11,645)
EHEE Benefit assets (2611) 5% (29) 27 - - (53) (1,702) (1,759) (613) 188 (4,764)

AEEABEERBR I ATEIZNRNT

The major categories of the fair value of the total plan assets of
the Group are as follows:

2025 2024
ReMREEFEED Cash and cash equivalents 14% 15%
fRART A Equity instruments 72% 72%
BT HE Debt instruments 14% 13%
100% 100%
BE_ZE-_HAEkR_ZT-_mME=A=+— During the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, the Group

BIEFER  AEEEHN TEYBFE
P TE &R AR A A BN E H SER o

RBEEHR TRENEEZFEBER
BR=F(ZT_WmF : OF) -

— =

198 EMEEAR AT 2024/25 F5H

did not expect to make a contribution to the defined benefit plan
during the next financial year.

The average duration of the defined benefit obligations at the
end of the reporting period is 3 years (2024: 4 years).
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RER BRERBEENEEZSHUT

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

29. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the
year are as follows:

EEHRESE Deferred tax liabilities
BERESB
HEITEN
FERBE
Provisions and
depreciation
allowance in
MEE excess of MEB
Revaluation related  Withholding wE
(B¥TFor) (HK$°000) of properties  depreciation tax Total
RZE-=FMNA—H At 1 April 2023 50,098 13,896 13,186 77,180
AEERRERIG Deferred tax charged/(credited) to
(Rt A\) 2 IRIERIIA the income statement
FEE (ARt during the year, net (note 11) (2,509) 3,839 (3,428) (2,098)
REEREMEENE Deferred tax charged to the statement
Mk 2 EERIE of comprehensive income during
the year 18,028 - - 18,028
(ERTIECE Exchange realignment (1,543) (471) (472) (2,486)
RZZEZWF=A=+—H At31 March 2024 and
k=ZF-_mFEA—H 1 April 2024 64,074 17,264 9,286 90,624
REERRERIG Deferred tax charged/(credited) to
(FTA) ZIBIEF IR the income statement
EEB(MaE11) during the year, net (note 11) (5,868) 2,370 3,399 (99)
fE R Exchange realignment (1,116) (305) (164) (1,585)
MZZ-RHF=A=1+—H Netdeferred tax liabilities recognized
ZHERNRAEBAREZ  inthe consolidated statement of
BEHIEGEFE financial position at 31 March 2025 57,090 19,329 12,521 88,940
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B SRR M EE () Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—E-_RF=A=+—H 31 March 2025
29. EEBIE (&) 29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
EEHIEEE Deferred tax assets
IEFE W
BE HEEE Deferred #at

(B#For) (HK$000) Provisions Tax losses revenue Total
RZEZ=FMNA—H At 1 April 2023 36,822 - 192 37,014
KEEREER NG Deferred tax charged to

ZIEERIA the income statement

SEE(MaF11) during the year, net (note 11) (4,680) - (29) (4,709)
fE R Exchange realignment (1,233) - 7) (1,240)
RZZZWNF=A=+—H At31 March 2024 and

M= -ERPA—H 1 April 2024 30,909 - 156 31,065
KEERKERA Deferred tax credited/(charged) to

(k) 2 RIEFIE the income statement

SFEE (KAt 11) during the year, net (note 11) (2,830) 1,230 (5) (1,605)
[ 5 A Exchange realignment (578) - 2 (580)
M-ZZE-RF=A=+—H Netdeferred tax assets recognized

ZHERNRA BB E in the consolidated statement of

RIERIBEEESFE financial position at 31 March 2025 27,501 1,230 149 28,880
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29. EZERIE (&) 29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

R

EEBREE ()

RAEBEBZHEBEBERERED - F
KEERN & D B AB 242,736,000 7T
(ZZ -5 : B ¥257,254,0007T) -
& # 28,354,000 (ZE - 4F : B
22 .544,00070) K 7B # 45,920,000 T (=&
Z P04 B #54,997,0007T) ¢ A {1 § 4%
BZEBEBZ AT BB ZERTEFR - AR
ZERRBHGEIE —BRERE WEBEE
JE FR TR R P A] RS ARk AT 3K N FR TE &S 18
MERZEEERRECHEEE  HR
—E_RAF=A=t+—BEBEAZRE
B 18 B 7, 454,00070 (= T — PO 4F : 4#)
BRON(ThEERERZEATRE R R ERS &
o ATAMIRINZARBARIEEE) - &
RIERHIBEIE S - 81574 ¥ 28,354,000
T (ZZE U4 @ B %22 544,000T) &
B #45 920,000 (ZEZMF B
54,997,0007C) K E 1B 5 BB R BB E £
AFRTFREER - Eith B8 7] LAER

BB EEMSHE NP BEAREKIE
SNELERIEREESTREEEHH
0% M@K 8 -_TTNF-A—HELE
MELBEBRAR—_FFTELFT_A=1+—H%
FRERE) )58 A o fisd o B B2 1B % B 3 P AE )
AR AT B WIS IRA - B R AEE A B K
BB E - NREBRFANERARER
5% 5% 10% °

AN RBE R EMEATARE - MIEAME
REREIRZ BB #EE21% (ZF =M
F21%) B - Bt AEEEARRE
T8 X S ) 7% S BT B X B EE AR O A BT R 2
Z BB AR

LB BR AR 2024/25 %3
R IIIIIIhhh____—_—_—eS ,ss5Sss5s,s,s,s,e=;s;,s,,;,m;—,;—;_m_—_—~=.

Deferred tax assets (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong, Mainland China
and Taiwan of HK$242,736,000 (2024: HK$257,254,000),
HK$28,354,000 (2024: HK$22,544,000) and HK$45,920,000
(2024: HK$54,997,000), respectively, that are available for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognized in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
those companies that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilized in the
foreseeable future, except for tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$7,454,000 (2024: Nil) as at 31 March 2025 to the extent
that it was probable that future taxable profit would be available
against which the unused tax losses could be utilised. Included
in unrecognized tax losses are losses of HK$28,354,000 (2024:
HK$22,544,000) and HK$45,920,000 (2024: HK$54,997,000)
that will expire within five years and ten years, respectively, from
the date the losses arose. Other losses can be carried forward
indefinitely.

Pursuant to the New Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement was effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the Group, the applicable rate during the year was 5% or 10%.

In addition, pursuant to Taiwan withholding tax regulations, a
21% (2024: 21%) withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to non-resident shareholders. Therefore, the Group is liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Taiwan in respect of earnings generated.
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29. EEEBIE (&) 29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

EEBREE ()

R-_ZE-_RARF=ZF=+—H A&EBH
T AR B K BE R S BB B R B R B R BE
HRAMOEMNINARERELERE  H
EEAZEEBNTEE=Z2BEA LY
7 #81,827,617,0007C (ZF — PO 4F : B
1,674,711,00070) - EERE - ZEMB A
AN KRAERAARKSERZZEZNEF
—A—BEBEIZEH -

R-ZE_RF=ZA=+—8 " WEHRAN
BHEEZNEEXIIHNBARIER
BNt =R REmMERNELHRES
fEA 4B 144,270,000 7T (= Z PO 4F -
46,216,000 7T) ©

R A A BUOR K 3% 2 B S EAE A PR IS
M2 -

Deferred tax assets (continued)

As at 31 March 2025, no deferred tax has been recognized
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries established in
Mainland China, of which the aggregate amount of temporary
differences has not been recognized totalled approximately
HK$1,827,617,000 (2024: HK$1,674,711,000). In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will
distribute their earnings accrued after 1 January 2008 in the
foreseeable future.

As at 31 March 2025, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with the investments in subsidiaries
established in Taiwan for which deferred tax liabilities arising
from withholding tax have not been recognized totalled
approximately HK$44,270,000 (2024: HK$46,216,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

30. A& 30. SHARE CAPITAL
(BEFoT) (HK$'000) 2025 2024
VETE ¢ Authorized:
1,000,000,000 A& & 38 A% 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
FRE®0.10T HK$0.10 each 100,000 100,000
BEETREHAR Issued and fully paid:
630,531,600 i% 630,531,600
(ZZ P4 : 630,531,600 %) (2024: 630,531,600)
LR FRE0.10 T ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 63,053 63,053
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31. B 31. SHARE OPTIONS

R

i

ARBEHRMERRRARRE—F—0O
FAR-THA (HRBAH) BITZRR
BFERE it E 2 BRERT 8 ([ st
gl BEMBEBES ST F - BRE
AEER-_F-_MFAA-—t=BER"
THREROCMERNRLBREZELN I
RIEBRETEE R LA R RTENBR
R EEER LRI RBBRER B8R A
ZRRET A HEAETTIE -

RIBBERESE ARRESTHBERSR
EA2EAZMBRENZBELARRETH
BRREBE  EAEXE AT G
RS o IRIBRBRAE R BIR H 2 B
TETFHAARBBEESIRNBERAE LR
K2R -

R B 2 BEIIN T

(@@ B#

HABRZ2EARANREFELEH
AR B BT T A SR E Sk B

(b) BEA
(i) AEBEEMKE AEMZERRK

RREBREFIH ZER) X
AR AR B R Bl 2 (B AR

(@) FMEE(TwWEHRTH
T BREEME I
WITES) REE (TmE
PREGRE) - X

(b) HEHBAIEMA K

EEAR AT 2024/25 F5

The Company had adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) approved by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 24 September 2014
(the “Adoption Date”) with a term of 10 years from the Adoption
Date. The Share Option Scheme expired on 23 September 2024,
under which no further grant of share options shall be offered.
The outstanding share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company
may, at their discretion, invite any participants to take up
share options to subscribe for fully paid ordinary shares in the
Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.
Share options under the Share Option Scheme do not confer
rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’
meetings.

The particulars of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

(a) Purpose

As rewards or incentives for the contribution or potential
contribution to the Group from the eligible participants.

(b) Participants
(i) (@) any director (whether executive or non-
executive, including any independent non-

executive director) and employee (whether full
time or part time) of, or

(b) any individual for the time being seconded to
work for,

any member or any controlling shareholder (as
defined under the Share Option Scheme) of the
Group or any company controlled by a controlling
shareholder; or

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25 203
R IIIIIIhhh____—_—_—eS ,ss5Sss5s,s,s,s,e=;s;,s,,;,m;—,;—;_m_—_—~=.



B SRR M EE () Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—TE-RF=A=+—H 31 March 2025
31. BR#E#E) 31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
(b) BEAE) (b) Participants (continued)
(i) ANEBEEM KB 3 E [ 1% KA (i) any holder of any securities issued by any member
Rk IERREES 2 ERAD or any controlling shareholder of the Group or any
RIS T2 ERES2FEA company controlled by a controlling shareholder; or
59
(i) ANEBEERK S s E R IE KR (i) (a) any business or joint venture partner,
RSCHRIERREZES 2 AT franchisee, contractor or distributor of,

() ERXBHRAIERH F
MREETEAN AEH

(b) FEfAT A I3k R 88 18 4 o (b) any person or entity that provides research,
BRI AMBMEZE development or other technological support or
SEMA - B B any advisory, consultancy, professional or other
NAEMBEEBEEERA services in respect of business operations to,
AR5
() Ema R 2 E e (c) any supplier of goods or services to, or
7k
(d) ERSRBZEMEEE - (d) any customer of goods or services of,
any member or any controlling shareholder of the
Group or a company controlled by a controlling
shareholder.
TERETEME  2EABEHR— For the purposes of the Share Option Scheme, the
sk %1588 A BT 48 R £ 8 A B participants shall include any company controlled by one
bk sl s CINEIIE or more persons belonging to any of the above classes of
participants.

() WFRITEERHFE LR () Maximum number of ordinary shares available for issue
REBRETSER 2B x%iE A total of 63,053,160 ordinary shares are available for
63,053,160 LB (FHER AT issue, which represent 10% of the issued share capital of
BEITAR A 10%) A] 217 o the Company as at the date of expiry of the Share Option

Scheme.
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31. BR#E#E)

(d)

(e)
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(g)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of ordinary shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company to any participant (including cancelled,
exercised and outstanding share options) in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the
ordinary shares in issue unless otherwise approved in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

Period within which the ordinary shares must be taken
up under a share option

Within ten years from the date of grant of the share option
or such shorter period as the board of directors of the
Company determines at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which a share option must
be held before it can be exercised

At the time of granting a share option, the board of
directors of the Company will determine the minimum
period(s), if any, for which a share option must be held
before it can be exercised.

Amount payable upon acceptance of a share option and
the period within which the payment must be made

An offer for the grant of a share option must be accepted
within forty-five days inclusive of the day on which the offer
was made. The amount payable on acceptance of the offer
for an option is HK$1.00.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(h)

Basis of determining the exercise price of a share option

The exercise price per share payable on the exercise of a
share option shall be determined by the board of directors
of the Company and shall be no less than the highest of:

(i)

(ii)

the closing price of the ordinary shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet
issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of
grant, which must be a business day;

the average of the closing prices of the ordinary
shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for

BRI TR BEE &

the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer of grant; and

(i) ARFR LB R EE - (i) the nominal value of an ordinary share of the
Company.
(i) BRESTEZEMMN (i)  Life of the Share Option Scheme

B Z 2 AN FH R EM B S
SAABHTERER-E_NENA
—t+t=HEW-

The Share Option Scheme had a life of ten years
commencing on the Adoption Date and expired on 23
September 2024.

ERNARAER-ZE-_MEALA+NE
([ZZ-—maF B ) BREERERTS
M2 H A% H A 3,350,000 B8 I #E T AN
EEFTRE BERH 2EREZHB LA
ARRARZEZNFHE T AR ET T @R
Z#30.53%

During the year, the Company had granted a total of 3,350,000
share options on 16 September 2024 (the “2024 Grant Date”)
to participants under the Share Option Scheme, which were
granted to selected employees of the Group. The number of
share options granted represented approximately 0.53% of the
Company’s ordinary shares in issue as at 2024 Grant Date.

TEBRESATXNZERRHITEE
REWLAMT - ARAEBRREE T
TMEREBEH I ZE_OFAAT=
B)zWmEREE14T -

The exercise price per share payable on the exercise of a share
option is HK$1.44. The closing price of the ordinary shares of
the Company immediately before the 2024 Grant Date (i.e., as of
13 September 2024) was HK$1.44.
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31. EBWEE) 31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

R

HE-_Z_NF=A=+—HLFR"
$“TE%_7:—¢+_EAEU_
—CEREBHDBEBEREASEM
2 ,\/\?% 4 $£6,290,000 8% i #E - E &
830,000 R T AR AIMITES (K
—fRMAEZRRE) - &5460,000H i% #
RYAE@ETRES -

TEBRERATINZERBRGBITERE
AEE1436T c ARRIERBRNEE-F
T CZFEREBH(BIZE_=ZF+-AF
)zl mEAEEE141T -

@i_;::¢5ﬂ5+*5¢¢W'$
AREIER-_TE-_—_F—A=-+—H(U=
T _FRHEBHD REERESE R
28 A H A 6,130,000 K% - H b
2,500,000 IR R T ARARNITES (K
P AEBEMRE) - 3,630,000 &
ERTAERRTES -

TEBRERAETINZERBRGITERE
BABME2A9TL s ARNBEBBRANEE —F
T oFRHBSBI =T F—A =+
H) 2B A B 2447T -

ﬁE*%*fﬁiﬂ:+—H¢¢W ¥iN
ARIER-Z-_ZTF+—A=-++tB (=
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During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company had
granted a total of 6,290,000 share options on 6 December
2023 (the “2023 Grant Date”) to participants under the Share
Option Scheme, amongst which 830,000 share options were
granted to executive directors (one of whom is also a substantial
shareholder) of the Company and 5,460,000 share options were
granted to selected employees of the Group.

The exercise price per share payable on the exercise of a share
option is HK$1.436. The closing price of the ordinary shares of
the Company immediately before the 2023 Grant Date (i.e., as of
5 December 2023) was HK$1.41.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has
granted a total of 6,130,000 share options on 21 January
2022 (the “2022 Grant Date”) to participants under the Share
Option Scheme, amongst which 2,500,000 share options were
granted to executive directors (one of whom is also a substantial
shareholder) of the Company and 3,630,000 share options were
granted to selected employees of the Group.

The exercise price per share payable on the exercise of a share
option is HK$2.49. The closing price of the ordinary shares of
the Company immediately before the 2022 Grant Date (i.e., as of
20 January 2022) was HK$2.44.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company had
granted a total of 11,520,000 share options on 27 November
2020 (the “2020 Grant Date”) to participants under the Share
Option Scheme, amongst which 3,400,000 share options were
granted to executive directors (one of whom is also a substantial
shareholder) of the Company and 8,120,000 share options were
granted to selected employees of the Group.
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—E-_RF=A=+—H 31 March 2025
31. R (&) 31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
ITHEERERAETIN SRR ITEE The exercise price per share payable on the exercise of a share
BABEB220 T ARNBEBRNEEZ T option is HK$2.20. The closing price of the ordinary shares of
—EERYBHEI(AI -2 F+— A the Company immediately before the 2020 Grant Date (i.e., as of
ZHRNB) 2K TERBEE222TT - 26 November 2020) was HK$2.22.
B EXHEEERN REE_F_A1F Save as disclosed above, no share options were granted, granted
ZAZt+ " BHLEFEMEREERETZ for adjustment, exercised or cancelled under the Share Option
EREERL  BARmERY BT Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2025. As at 31
FWHAH R-ZE-_RAF=A=+—8" March 2025, no ordinary shares (2024: Nil) were issued by the
AARBE(ZE-NF &) BT ERE Company as a result of the exercise of share options granted
BRERTEIE B AREM ST TR - under the Share Option Scheme.
FRIBIEERESE A THOBEREN The following share options were outstanding under the Share
RITHE Option Scheme during the year:
2025 2024
MEFHITEE MEFHTEE
(BREBREE) (R EBREE)
Weighted average Weighted average
exercise price BREHA exercise price EREHE
(HKS$ per Number of (HKS$ per Number of
ordinary share) share options ordinary share) share options
NEA At beginning of year 2.02 18,460,000 2.31 14,090,000
RERRKH Granted during the year 1.44 3,350,000 1436 6,290,000
RERER Lapsed during the year 1.84 (1,600,000 221 (1,920,000)
RMER Atend of year 1.94 20,210,000 2.02 18,460,000
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

BB (E) 31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
RBMEHR MARTEZBRENITFES The exercise periods and exercise prices of the share options
RATEEWT - outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
R-E-HF=A=+-—H
At 31 March 2025
TEE*
(G % & i 75 1)
Exercise price* BREYE
(HK$ per Number of
1TEH Exercise period ordinary share) share options
—EF+—A=+tA=E 27 November 2022 to
—E=ZEF+—A=+H 26 November 2030 2.20 2,462,000
—EZ=F+—H=Zt+tH=ZE 27 November 2023 to
—E=EF+—HAZ+"H 26 November 2030 2.20 387,000
—E2-mMFE+—A=Z++tHZE 27 November 2024 to
—E=FF+—A=+"H 26 November 2030 2.20 2,462,000
ZE-RFt+—A=Zt+tEAZE 27 November 2025 to
—E=FTF+—A-+XH 26 November 2030 2.20 387,000
—EZRXFT—HZt+tHZE 27 November 2026 to
—E=FF+—A=+"H 26 November 2030 2.20 1,016,000
2o+ +—A=Z+tHZE 27 November 2027 to
—E=FF+—A=+"H 26 November 2030 2.20 516,000
—E-MF—-—A=-+—H=ZE 21 January 2024 to
—E=Z_#—A=+H 20 January 2032 2.49 1,502,000
—E-hAF—H=-+—H=ZE 21 January 2025 to
—E==F—H=+H 20 January 2032 2.49 324,000
—FERE-A=Z+—H=Z 21 January 2026 to
—E=F—HA=+H 20 January 2032 2.49 1,502,000
—E-t+F—A=-+—H=ZE 21 January 2027 to
—E=Z_F#—A=+H 20 January 2032 2.49 324,000
2N \F—H=Z+—H=Z 21 January 2028 to
—E=—"F—H=-+H 20 January 2032 2.49 336,000
2 hNF—A=Z+—H=ZE 21 January 2029 to
—E=F—HA=+H 20 January 2032 2.49 432,000
ZE-RF+ZARNAERE 6 December 2025 to
—E==%+_-HAH 5 December 2033 1.436 1,087,000
—E-RF+ZAABRZE 6 December 2026 to
—E==%+=RAAA 5 December 2033 1.436 672,000
—E-+F+ZANAE 6 December 2027 to
—E==F+-HAH 5 December 2033 1.436 1,087,000

LIS BE AR AT 2024/25 F5
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

31 March 2025

fBIRAE(E) 31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
R-ZB-HF=RA=+-—H
At 31 March 2025
TEE*
(FF I &3 IR B )
Exercise price* BRERE
(HK$ per Number of
TEH Exercise period ordinary share) share options
2 N\F+ZARAE 6 December 2028 to
—E==+=-AAA 5 December 2033 1.436 672,000
ZENF+ZASNAEZE 6 December 2029 to
—E=-=%+—-HAFAH 5 December 2033 1.436 896,000
ZE=TF+ZARHEHE 6 December 2030 to
—E==F+-"HAH 5 December 2033 1.436 896,000
_?_/\iﬂﬂJr/\Eli 16 September 2026 to
—E=MFNATHA 15 September 2034 1.44 333,000
b W= e A= 16 September 2027 to
—ZE=WENA+ARAE 15 September 2034 1.44 642,000
_7_)\¢hﬂ +XB=Z 16 September 2028 to
—E=NFNA+HRA 15 September 2034 1.44 333,000
_?_ﬂiﬂﬂ +XBE 16 September 2029 to
—E=MFNATHA 15 September 2034 1.44 642,000
ZE=ZFNA+BE 16 September 2030 to
—ZE=WENA+AAE 15 September 2034 1.44 444,000
—EBE=—FNA+EZE 16 September 2031 to
—E=NFNA+HRA 15 September 2034 1.44 856,000
20,210,000

B EEAR AR 2024/25F 4R
S
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i EL N EEAE ) Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—E-RF=A=+—H 31 March 2025
BB (E) 31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
R-ZB-NFE=RA=+—8H
At 31 March 2024
TEE"
(FF R &3 IR B )
Exercise price* BRERE
(HK$ per Number of
TER Exercise period ordinary share) share options
—EoF+—HAZt+tERZE 27 November 2022 to
—E=FF+—A=+"H 26 November 2030 2.20 2,492,000
:%:Ei‘?’—ﬂ_‘f—tﬁi 27 November 2023 to
—E=ZEF+—A=+H 26 November 2030 2.20 567,000
“E-MF+—A=Z+tHZE 27 November 2024 to
—E=FF+—-H=+"H 26 November 2030 2.20 2,492,000
—E2-hAFt+—AZ+tHZE 27 November 2025 to
—E=F+—A=+"H 26 November 2030 2.20 567,000
:;:/_\i‘?’—ﬂ_‘f—tﬁi 27 November 2026 to
ET_FF+—HF=-1+~H 26 November 2030 2.20 1,056,000
_7_t¢+ A-t+tH=Z= 27 November 2027 to
—E=FF+—-H=+"H 26 November 2030 2.20 756,000
—FEoNFE—-AZ+—HZE 21 January 2024 to
—E=—"%—HA=-+H 20 January 2032 2.49 1,502,000
—E-AF—A=+—H=Z 21 January 2025 to
—E=Z—_9—HF=-+H 20 January 2032 2.49 354,000
—EBE-RXF—-A=-+—H=ZE 21 January 2026 to
—E=—"%—H=-+H 20 January 2032 2.49 1,502,000
—FHF—-AZ+—HZE 21 January 2027 to
—E=—F—HA=-+H 20 January 2032 2.49 354,000
2 N\F—A=+—H=Z 21 January 2028 to
—E=Z_F#—A=+H 20 January 2032 2.49 336,000
“E-NF—A=+—H=ZE 21 January 2029 to
—E=—"%—H=-+H 20 January 2032 2.49 472,000
e T o g A= ) 6 December 2025 to
—E==F+=-AFAA 5 December 2033 1.436 1,096,000
ZEZRF+ZARAEZE 6 December 2026 to
—E=Z=+_-AFAH 5 December 2033 1.436 873,000
EHEBBR AT 2024/25 Ff CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25 211



B SRR M EE () Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—TE-RF=A=+—H 31 March 2025
31. BR#E#E) 31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
R-EBE-NFE=A=+—H
At 31 March 2024
TREE*
(28 &3 IR B )
Exercise price* BRERE
(HK$ per Number of
TEH Exercise period ordinary share) share options
—EEF+ZARAE 6 December 2027 to
—E==+=-AAA 5 December 2033 1.436 1,096,000
—E-N\E+ZARHEZE 6 December 2028 to
—E==%+=ZAAA 5 December 2033 1.436 873,000
ZE-AF+ZAAHE 6 December 2029 to
—E==%+=ZHAA 5 December 2033 1.436 908,000
ZE=TF+ARAZE 6 December 2030 to
—E==%+ZHAA 5 December 2033 1.436 1,164,000
18,460,000
* MAQNR B EITRALIBE\  BRET * The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
FEBEERE - in the event of any variation in the issued share capital of the
Company.
HE " E-HAFE=-A=+—HIFERXNE The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended
7 R E Y A FE A E 867,000 T (& 31 March 2025 was HK$867,000 (HK$0.25 to HK$0.27 each).
A0 O L BB Q27 L) B E - The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended
—ME=ZA=+ -\ ItEERNEY B 31 March 2024 was HK$1,068,000 (HK$0.16 to HK$0.18
B #EE > A Tl A B 1 068,000 7T (& 5% each). The fair value of the share options granted during the
016 B #0.18TT) B E T~ — year ended 31 March 2022 was HK$1,993,000 (HK$0.30 to
EZA=+ B EERABE EREY HK$0.34 each). The fair value of the share options granted
ANFAE B 1,993,000 7T (& 55 ¥0.30 during the year ended 31 March 2021 was HK$4,657,000
TEBHO34TT) cBE-_E - —F=A (HK$0.39 to HK$0.42 each). During the year ended 31
T+ —BIFERAEEERE ATEE March 2025, the Group recognized a share option expense of
B4 657 0007 (& A K039TLE HK$1,400,000 (2024: HK$1,206,000) in the income statement.
¥0427T) BHE_T_RF=A=1—H
EFER AEBRKERERERES
&8 % 1,400,000 (ZZ M4 : B
1,206,0007T) °
212 BHESEBR QT 2024/25F R CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

E ST ELEEAC )

—E_RAF=A=+—H

31. EBWEE) 31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

BHE_T-_RF —T-_WF —T=-=
FR-BE-Z—F=ZA=+—HIEFEAM
BERzUABRESN2BREZAFEE T
REEBHERZEXERELGE &

The fair values of equity-settled share options granted during
the years ended 31 March 2025, 2024, 2022 and 2021 were
estimated as at the dates of grant, using a polynomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the

R

SRR ERE R RGESE  TRES options were granted. The following table lists the major inputs to
FrARA = E2 A SR the model used:
2025 2024 2022 2021
2 M A 2 (%) Dividend yield (%) 5.56 8.37 6.7 4.1
T8 AR 18 (%) Expected volatility (%) 29.8 29.8 29.6 29.7
JE& 5282 18 (%) History volatility (%) 29.8 29.8 29.6 29.7
[ B2 1) 2 (%) Risk-free interest rate (%) 2.6 3.6 15 0.5
AR ETE AR A () Expected life of option (year) 10 10 10 10
nkEFHRRE Weighted average share price
(BB (HK$ per share) 1.44 1.436 2.49 2.20

EREBEMFEHARALRRAEHIRE 2ITE
(LR %EH;@&%&H%FEE&VPET?EH_'ER%
BBEZRE  ETRURKRERER

AEATERYEZEMREBREZE
I

W-B-_AE=A=+—H AQF
BHEBEREFE S ATENERES
20,210,000 ' R AR AR ZBEETE B
B2 #93.21% - MAR R 7 B ATHI B RN
T y’%(ﬂ1§r‘]ﬂiﬂﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁéﬂﬁ BUR
N & B 77 20,210,000 AL 48 4D % @ AR - I 8%
S EBHMIS AN 2,021,000 7T R IR 1D % B 8
%37,196,0007z(§’§ﬂ§ztﬂm>

LB BR AR 2024/25 %3
R IIIIIIhhh____—_—_—eS ,ss5Sss5s,s,s,s,e=;s;,s,,;,m;—,;—;_m_—_—~=.

The expected life of the share options is not necessarily
indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected
volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is
indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the
actual outcome.

No other feature of the share options granted was incorporated
into the measurement of fair value.

As at 31 March 2025, the Company had 20,210,000 share
options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme, which
represented approximately 3.21% of the Company’s ordinary
shares in issue as at that date. The exercise in full of the
outstanding share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 20,210,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$2,021,000 and share premium of HK$37,196,000
(before issue expenses).
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31. BR#E#E)

FA - R 819X H 79 1,600,000 8
Mt (ZF — U4 : 1,920,000 % ik 42) B %<
Mo EXFBREEIN RBEE-F_-4

PAEBMERL - DITERKEH -

REBEE-_ZTZ_AF=FA=+—RHILZ2EE
BHEZUBRERELNBEE - BIEERES
B HABEREYSH RN R BHRE
FH A AR RRIREREST S M RTT
16 19 BE A% 4 /520,210,000 - 15 4" & B 3%
HEZTEMARZ43.21% -

32. &

AEEARFERBEFENRBRLEE
R BBRERAZGEEREHRT 2T -

RIBGERANE TEEBRBRODBRAA
K BREMBAR D AR QB AR —HBOHR
BEMNEBHEE—TARBEZEARRHBED -
HEZEARBEIZ QA ER0%H
ARELBBEER MZENFEFHIRA
BERF X IR SHE 18

RETEHEIEBECLERTIAGELE
TEZEP ARBRPEREZHERQ
BIZREE R R EMERERHE (RK
REIERZFE)  EEZRFEEREER
EEHFEMEARS0R °
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

31.

32.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

1,600,000 share options (2024: 1,920,000 share options)
granted under the Share Option Scheme were lapsed during
the year. Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted,
granted for adjustment, exercised or cancelled during the year
ended 31 March 2025.

Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2025 and up to the
date of the approval of the financial statements, no share options
granted under the Share Option Scheme were lapsed. As at
the date of approval of the financial statements, the Company
had 20,210,000 share options outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme, which represented approximately 3.21% of the
Company’s ordinary shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

In accordance with the Company Law of Taiwan, Asian Plastic
Machinery Company, Limited and Chen Hsong Machinery
Taiwan Company, Limited are required to transfer a portion
of their profit after tax to a capital reserve, which is non-
distributable. When the capital reserve has accumulated to
50% of their capital, up to 50% of the capital reserve may be
capitalized. The capital reserve may be utilized at anytime to
offset any deficit.

In accordance with the Law of the PRC on Sole Foreign
Investment Enterprises and Sino-foreign equity joint venture
enterprises, the Company’s Mainland China subsidiaries
are required to transfer a portion of their profit after tax to
the statutory reserve, which is restricted as to use, until the
accumulated total reaches 50% of their registered capital.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

33. HEBERERHET 33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
(@ EEFBREXRS (@) Major non-cash transactions
) REAN BEWE BERK (i)  During the year, non-current deposits for purchases

REBEBZERBITEABE
5,121,000 7C (ZZF — U4 : B
14,577,00070) E & =¥ ¥ - &K

of items of property, plant and equipment of
HK$5,121,000 (2024: HK$14,577,000) were
transferred to property, plant and equipment.

B R %A e
(i RERN AEEFEYME(ZE (i) During the year, the Group had non-cash

—E YR HELTHNER
REENEERABNIIRAESRA

additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

E DR RE¥4316,0007T (=
T A - % 1,045,0007T) &

of HK$4,316,000 (2024: HK$1,045,000) and
HK$4,316,000 (2024: HK$1,045,000), respectively,
in respect of lease arrangements for properties (2024

B#4,316,000 7T (ZF Z U4 - properties).
75 1,045,0007T) °
(b) BEEBSIERNEEED (b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

HEERE TERITER
Lease Interest-bearing
(BB Fr) (HK$'000) liabilities bank borrowings
RZZE-_=FMH—H At 1 April 2023 19,926 -
BERGREE Changes from financing cash flows (3,170) -
EE New leases 1,045 -
REMmBRHEE Early termination of a lease (466) -
B & R A Finance costs 1,130 -

NEAKEREMREL Interest paid classified as operating
BB cash flows (1,130) -
HNEE & “@J Foreign exchange movement 4 -

RZZFE-_WF=A=+—HK At31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024
—E-NFMNA—H 17,339 -
BEReREY Changes from financing cash flows (3,610) -
FHE New leases 4,316 -
BhE AR Finance costs 964 597

NEAKEREMREL Interest paid classified as operating
ERHE cash flows (964) (597)
HNEE & z@) Foreign exchange movement (509) -
R-_ZE_AF=A=+—H At 31 March 2025 17,536 -

R

R RE AR AT 2024/25 FH
R IIIIIIhhh____—_—_—eS ,ss5Sss5s,s,s,s,e=;s;,s,,;,m;—,;—;_m_—_—~=.
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33. ZEBRERERMT (&) 33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) HERERHEEHE (c) Total cash outflow for leases
AR eRERNEER SR B The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement
wmr of cash flows is as follows:
(CE®FoT) (HK$'000) 2025 2024
LEEEN Within operating activities 5,439 4,089
mﬂﬁé@]?ﬁ Within financing activities 3,610 3,170
9,049 7,259
34, EiE 34. COMMITMENTS
AREFBNRHEBHRNERAELDT : The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of
the reporting period:
RZEBE-RAF=ZA=+—8 BERAEE As at 31 March 2025, the Group had capital commitments,
R AEZ EERBEZEBHNNET which were contracted but not provided for, in respect of
B UEBEMREBMNAEE EHFHEX the construction and upgrading of industrial facilities in
B 2 BEARES LH B 17,177,000 7T Mainland China, as well as purchase of the warehouse in
ZZEZO4F B 1,074,0007T) © Europe amounting to approximately HK$17,177,000 (2024
HK$1,074,000).
RZE_RARF=A=+—H BRA%E As at 31 March 2025, the Group had capital commitments,
Iﬁﬁ/ﬁ"ﬁf] BIRBEZYZE - BEREE - which were contracted but not provided for, in respect of
EENERBECERAESG HNOAEE the purchase of property, plant and equipment in Mainland
4,401,0007T (ZF =1 4 : % % 5,404,000 China amounting to approximately HK$4,401,000 (2024:
JL) ° HK$5,404,000).
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35. BEALRS

R

i

FAAKEBEATHBREALRS

(a)

(b)

N B LA 44,564,000 (=&
Z P4 - B #48,102,000 7T) A — B
ENRNE S HENESERETIER
=R e

BE T -_=F=A=+—BHIt#F
ER AEEREBBERAR (AR
RIZ IR REHERENNE QA
HAVME APRAF -AEEARE
EERBIMNEY - FAEMHEER
BUERRBEZEBET - Bt %
K& 7 % B #E & = 75 ¥ 10,490,000
T (=T P4 - H112,624,0007T)
MTEE B EB11,239,0005T (ZF
Z PO B 12,9780007) R F
THEZA=+—HORAMERR
FANER -NFER - FREEEZWT
EBM2134,000C (Z T ZM4F : 5
#2,133,000T) M EEEF B H
648,000 7T (—F — P04 : B
747,000 7T) iR A W RN -

ANEEZEBERARGHEMNEBEEAL
RHBREERLS  NRATE IR
REMRAUE VAT ETHRERTE -

EEAR AT 2024/25 F5

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following related party transactions during
the year:

(a)

(b)

The Group purchased raw materials amounting to
HK$44,564,000 (2024: HK$48,102,000) from an
associate at prices and on terms mutually agreed by the
Group and the associate.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
leased a property from Desko Limited, a subsidiary of CH
Investments, the controlling shareholder of the Company,
for a term of five years. The Group has an option to renew
the lease for a further term of two years. The monthly
lease payable was determined on a basis mutually
agreed by both parties. Accordingly, a right-of-use asset
of HK$10,490,000 (2024: HK$12,624,000) and a lease
liability of HK$11,239,000 (2024: HK$12,978,000) in
respect of the lease were recognized in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2025.
During the year, depreciation of the right-of-use asset of
HK$2,134,000 (2024: HK$2,133,000) and the interest
expense on the lease liability of HK$648,000 (2024:
HK$747,000) were charged to the consolidated income
statement.

The related party transaction in respect of Desko Limited
above constituted a connected transaction for which the
Company had complied with the disclosure requirements
of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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—E-_RF=A=+—H 31 March 2025
35. BEALRE (&) 35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
() AEEXTEEEABFHH (c)  Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:
(B TFoT) (HK$'000) 2025 2024
HHESEF Short-term employee benefits 11,802 9,644
ZIREET Post-employment benefits 36 36
LA % 4 =2 155 1 B P <2 1 Equity-settled share option expenses 152 423
IRNEFEERAE Total compensation paid to key
E A management personnel 11,990 10,103
FEEBABHMIHILRBARKIANU The compensation of key management personnel was
ERBEARREASTEIMEE - determined by reference to the Company’s performance as

well as individual performance and contribution.

218 EHEEBR AR 2024/25F % CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25
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36. 2RI ESE

RBEHR TRBNESRT AR ZREE

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

31 March 2025

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

wn instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
SREE Financial assets
DS ENRATEZ
SREE
Financial assets at
amortized cost
(CE®TFor) (HK$°000) 2025 2024
EWE 5 N EERR Trade and bills receivables 1,573,798 1,318,304
AR ENFRER Financial assets included in deposits,

HEaEWERN SR EE prepayments and other receivables 41,865 32,606
JE U B & & BR X Finance lease receivables - 1,610
WHIRITER Pledged bank deposits 138,784 47,899
He MIBTTHET Cash and bank balances 528,179 825,777

2,282,626 2,226,196
sREE Financial liabilities

DB NRATEZ

SEAaE
Financial liabilities at
amortized cost

(CE®TFr) (HK$°000) 2025 2024
B8 5 R EERR Trade and bills payables 816,347 623,110
a0 A EL b JE < AR 3 % Financial liabilities included in

ERtBENEREE other payables and accruals 167,121 152,253
HEAE Lease liabilities 17,536 17,339

1,001,004 792,702

EEEBR AR 2024/25F 5

R
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37. ERMIANLAFERAFERER 37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

BEEMARERRITEST  BWRTHF
Rz  BUEZERLEREE
HMERRZRBE D  BEREERR &L
AR & - B FRIA Rt WA Y £ Al
BE BNESREERF  LAHEME
NERFAREFABENEREBEZRE
DHAVFEEEKEEMES  TEEHR
%EF T AREMAE R -

EWE ZRRA L EW B ERERNI IR
B BWRTHERZFERBED - 2
AEENEREEHEENERAEZ
FRBEOMHERBENRFEDERE
BEUG - EERRESRTIHAZT
HBER ARG ZMENBFHRKR SR
EMHE  EAFEEAEREERS

AEBEzZHGEFARETERTARYF
BFfENBRRMEEF REHREEH M
BEBSMERTANEEEIRETEH
BEEANEIEHARE HELEMLHA
EEHE -

220 EIEEEABR AT 2024/25FH

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
bank balances, the current portion of pledged bank deposits,
the current portion of trade receivables and finance lease
receivables, bills receivable, financial assets included in deposits,
prepayments and other receivables, trade and bills payables and
current portion of financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely due
to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the non-current portion of trade receivables
and finance lease receivables, the non-current portion of pledged
bank deposits, the non-current portion of financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals and lease liabilities are
estimated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities and approximate to their carrying
amounts.

The Group’s finance team is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement of
financial instruments. At each reporting date, it analyzes the
movements in the values of the financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and reported to directors.
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38. HEHEAR 38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
RZE_RF=ZA AEERBIYIE=ZH In March 2025, the Group disposed of equity interests in several
HEAETHBRARNKRE REAARK subsidiaries to an independent third party for a consideration
6,200,000 7C (HHE 1A 78 #6,728,0007T) ° of RMB6,200,000 (equivalent to HK$6,728,000). Subsequent
HEEZ  ZEBEETHEREAEENMBAR to the disposal, these entities are no longer subsidiaries of the

Group.

HERHMNEERAEMNEREENT The carrying values of the assets and liabilities on the date of

disposal were as follows:

(CE®TFor) (HK$°000) 2025
EHEEEFE Net assets disposed of:

IEEAR S Non-controlling interests (9,096)
E RSB G Exchange fluctuation reserve (2,062)
HEME QR 2 Wt F5E Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net 17,886
BRE Total consideration 6,728
TRAER: Satisfied by:

Re Cash 6,728
EHLENRENRSEBYRAFEN An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
ST : respect of the disposal is as follows:

(BB For) (HK$000) 2025

FRALENBRRIZRE R Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
REEEBYRNFRE in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries 6,728

LB BR AR 2024/25 %3 CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25 221
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39. ERETREE

(@) FMERLALBEINCEHISHMEE

RigF EZRZFBEEE

TREANES CERSREETH
ARIEER TR ENERE RS

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

39. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

(@) Transferred financial assets that are not derecognized in
their entirety

Bills endorsement under the Law of Negotiable
Instruments of the PRC

The following table provides a summary of bills receivable
that have been transferred in such a way that part of the

LIEBEE - transferred financial assets do not qualify for derecognition,
together with the associated liabilities:
CEMFor) (HK$'000) 2025 2024
SEREREE Carrying amount of assets that continued to
BREE be recognized 52,710 68,006
e EREE Carrying amount of associated liabilities 52,710 68,006

R-E-_RAF=A=+—H K£&H
MEETHERSEDEETHEY
BEHRITEINETEREE((BE
ZED S ERNUHEHERE
NEZEN - AREEREEZEXNER
e BESEZEMNENRR
it BB ERRESEZEBNMER
HELEENEEEENESERER -
BE% AEBHEEZBRFERATE
AAER siERTAEME=FH
B EERIERSERER-

222 EIEEBEABR AT 2024/25F%H

As at 31 March 2025, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by certain local banks in the PRC
(the “Endorsed Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in order
to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers. Since
the Group has retained the substantial risks and rewards,
which include default risk relating to the Endorsed Bills,
it continued to recognize the full carrying amounts of the
Endorsed Bills and the associated trade payables settled.
Subsequent to the endorsement, the Group does not retain
any rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills, including sales,
transfer or pledge of the Endorsed Bills to any other third
parties.
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30. HESREE (B 39. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

(b) FERALBIANCEHESREE (b) Transferred financial assets that are derecognized in

R

RigF EZR %5 FREE

R-CE-_RAF=RA=+—H K&H
MESTHERSSFGEREAS
#195,643,0007T (=& — 4 : B
100,867,0007C) B EETHRHAEE
RRITEXZE TERKEE ([& -
REEZR]) UEBREMNILEHE
FAHENEZERER - KIBREEE
BERmEBRFSIBEAE—ERE
NEA(ZEZ@EF: —@AERNE
R) c REFBEEEE - MIRTTREK
AR EERBEEBFAEABERR
EBRER((BEL2H]) -AAEEE
EEHEIERAEEZEEENEXR
o R REHR - Bt R
RIERSEZENMEERERELE
HAENE SRR - AEERSES N
BIEREERENEBRZ SR
REEEBENRNRBSRENTKA
EERRBESENERTE Bt - &
SENBFESEKIIBEREERED
NFEELTREK »

RER AEEREERIBRAEE
SR B B R T A W e S BT IR ©
I ek sk B RN FF A s REHRERR B
FE2HE - ZBEENEFFHEL -

FEBEABR AT 2024/25 Fif
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their entirety

Bills endorsement under the Law of Negotiable
Instruments of the PRC

As at 31 March 2025, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by certain reputable banks in the
PRC (the “Derecognized Endorsed Bills”) to certain of its
suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due to such
suppliers with a remaining carrying amount in aggregate
of HK$195,643,000 (2024: HK$100,867,000). The
Derecognized Endorsed Bills have a remaining maturity
of 1 month to 6 months at the end of the reporting period
(2024: 1 month to 6 months). In accordance with the
Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of
the Derecognized Endorsed Bills have a right of recourse
against the Group if the banks default (the “Continuing
Involvement”). Since the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards relating to the
Derecognized Endorsed Bills, it has derecognized the full
carrying amounts of the Derecognized Endorsed Bills and
the associated trade payables. The maximum exposure
to loss from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the
Derecognized Endorsed Bills and the undiscounted cash
flows to repurchase these Derecognized Endorsed Bills is
equal to their carrying amounts. Thus, the fair values of
the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognized
Endorsed Bills are not significant.

During the year, the Group has not recognized any
gain or loss on the date of transfer of the Derecognized
Endorsed Bills. No gains or losses were recognized from
the Continuing Involvement, both during the year or
cumulatively. The endorsement has been made evenly
throughout the year.
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40. EREKREEEERBER 40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

AEETZCRTABRERRE RRITER
ERBTHER BRBZRZRER &
WREBRERR EMEEERR  ENE
HREBEER  HEMEMER B AEE
ARGt BRITER

HASESRTAMEENEIZRARSF
LR SNERR  FERRERADES
R - AEZEe® T ANRRMREZ
FRBOBRENTX BEEREEENE
RuFRE AR MNA R ETTE
BRI -

AR EE

AEEFEENT SN EES R T 2R
AEENFIERTEREH AEKEED
ERAEMNERER EAEAMNEERE
G E ERIUE AR KA RBRER o

SRR

AEEMIINERBREREXERS  CHER
MEERBE UWERFBEKRE 54
EEMAEEHRNFRE

AEEBEIEXZRAE  ZFERBRRRA
SENRHBOHERRERS - BRAXT
AR -HERFEERRZEE -

EREENBLUET  ARK AR
A% AR HEENTHREENHEX
EAE EEREMZINERR: ME
BE BEEUPEAINEAR -
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POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash
and bank balances, pledged bank deposits, trade and bills
receivables, finance lease receivables, other receivables, trade
and bills payables, other payables, accruals and interest-bearing
bank borrowings.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and effective
manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank loans carrying floating
interest rates. The Group monitors its interest rate exposure
closely and considers to take measures to reduce significant
interest rate exposure, if any.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s foreign exchange risk arises from commercial
transactions, recognized assets and liabilities and net
investments in operations in Mainland China, Taiwan, Brazil and
the Netherlands.

The Group has transactional currency risk exposures. Such
risk exposures arise from a substantial portion of the Group’s
sales and purchases transactions denominated in United States
dollars (“US$”), RMB, JPY and New Taiwanese dollars (“NTD").

Management closely monitors foreign exchange exposure in
transactions denominated in US$, RMB, JPY and NTD and
its investments in Mainland China, Taiwan, Brazil and the
Netherlands and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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31 March 2025

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

40. TRIAMBEERBEREE (&)

SRR ()

Foreign currency risk (continued)

R

TRIIRA S ERR B A A RS R (
PrAEMERRFTIENBERT) HET
AR BTEHaBEXNGEA R
BNSBRE (AREEEERAGBNAFE

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in US$, RMB,
Euro and NTD exchange rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the

HE)) o fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

ShEEE = RR B A0 28

#Bhn, OR2) #m, CRA)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)

in foreign in profit
CE#%TFor) (HK$'000) currency rate before tax
2025
fig AR EEETTHE If RMB strengthens against HK$ 5% (14,862)
i A RSB TTE B If RMB weakens against HK$ (5%) 14,862
W ARBEHETHE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5% (9,880)
M AREEETEE If RMB weakens against US$ (5%) 9,880
fisi X T 4 B T AHE If Euro strengthens against HK$ 5% (82)
i BR T ¥ B TRz (B If Euro weakens against HK$ (5%) 82
M B EHETAE If NTD strengthens against US$ 5% (922)
i & B EETEE If NTD weakens against US$ (5%) 922
WAREEHEAETRAE If RMB strengthens against Brazilian Real (“‘R$”) 5% (1,570)
MARBEEAETREE If RMB weakens against R$ (5%) 1,570
METHERE LB AE If US$ strengthens against R$ 5% (7,795)
WETHERERRRZE If US$ weakens against R$ (5%) 7,795
2024
i AR E BT E If RMB strengthens against HK$ 5% 4,765
i AREEETEE If RMB weakens against HK$ (5%) (4,765)
i AREEETHE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5% (7,787)
MAREEETRE If RMB weakens against US$ (5%) 7,787
i@ T 8B T AHE If Euro strengthens against HK$ 5% 290
fim B T A T2 E If Euro weakens against HK$ (5%) (290)
W3 & B EHETHE If NTD strengthens against US$ 5% (2,733)
¥ ey ETEE If NTD weakens against US$ (5%) 2,733
MARBEHERE B AE If RMB strengthens against R$ 5% (2,168)
MARBEHERETREE If RMB weakens against R$ (5%) 2,168
fimETHEmMEERAE If US$ strengthens against R$ 5% (5,003)
METHERE TBEE If US$ weakens against R$ (5%) 5,003

EEEBR AR 2024/25F 5
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B SRR M RE () Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
—ZE-_RF=HA=1t—H 31 March 2025

40. ¢REREEEEREE (&) 40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

EERE Credit risk

A B B 2 KR B Maximum exposure and year-end staging
TERBEAEBNEERR (BRIEFHE The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
BRNBERASBENMEBESHER  TA exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
FTEERBABBHERAERR=A=+—H is mainly based on past due information unless other information
WERBESR)IEHEERRBHNEEER is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
LEXEERK ERSBLASHEED classification as at 31 March. The amounts presented are gross
IRAEAELINBEREAAEMNEERR carrying amounts for financial assets and the exposure to credit

risk for the financial guarantee contracts.

RZE-_RF=HA=+—H At 31 March 2025
T=@A
B
FEER
12-month 2HEHEERFR
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
AR
E-EER H-RER HE=KBR Simplified @zt
(BETor) (HK$°000) Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FEWE BB Trade receivables* - - - 1,222,387 1,222,387
EREEER Bills receivable
— E®* — Normal** 443,044 - - - 443044
AR ®  EARER Financial assets included in
HoAth & I BR 5K deposits, prepayments and
NeREE other receivables
— EE* — Normal** 41,655 - - - 41,655
— RE — Doubtful** - - 12,555 - 12,555
R E SR Finance lease receivables* - - - 4,258 4,258
HIRRITER Pledged bank deposits
— KRB — Not yet past due 138,784 - - - 138784
Re RBTHET Cash and bank balances
— KA H — Not yet past due 528,179 - - - 528179
1,151,662 - 12,555 1,226,645 2,390,862
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

E ST ELEEAC )

—E_RAF=A=+—H

40. ¢REREEEEREE (&) 40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

FERRE (E)

Credit risk (continued)

RABE G R FRER (E)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

RZE-_WNF=ZA=+—H

At 31 March 2024

+=fEA
TaH
FEEE
12-month 2HEHEEEFR
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
AR
E-RE SRR E=MKBE Simplified @t
(B#For) (HK$°000) Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
EUWE ZERH* Trade receivables* - - - 1098568 1,098,568
EREEER Bills receivable
— EF** — Normal** 306,674 - - - 306,674
LA BRNFIER Financial assets included in
H 4 U BR 5K deposits, prepayments and
NeREE other receivables
— EF** — Normal** 32,393 - - - 32,393
— RE — Doubtful** - - 15,656 - 15,656
U ERSERR" Finance lease receivables* - - - 5,944 5944
EHRITERK Pledged bank deposits
— R — Not yet past due 47,899 - - - 47,899
Re MRITER Cash and bank balances
— KRB — Not yet past due 825,777 - - - 825,777
RIEARIRITAER - &K Guarantee given to a bank, at
HEE o AIEERGAT the maximum, for a bank
EFEBEASEER loan granted to a customer to
RIRITER purchase the Group's products
— R — Not yet past due 1,307 - - - 1,307
1,214,050 - 15656 1,104,512 2,334,218
* MASEHERARERESCTXNERE * For trade receivables and finance lease receivables to which

ZEFREEBRERERAM S - ENE
BRMENER RSB RENF21 k235

the Group applies the simplified approach for provision for
impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed

B in notes 21 and 23 to the financial statements.
= ERKEBREFTUAREARE  BNAFEIE **  The credit quality of the bills receivable and the financial assets

REMERERERN S REEL R - A
LEENKXAZESRMEEAVRERER
EERBRBRERM NEEEHERRER
[EF] B EREENEELRER

RIRE] -

R

EEEBR AR 2024/25F 5

included in deposits, prepayments and other receivables is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due and
there is no information indicating that the financial assets had
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is considered
to be “doubtful”.
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B SRR M RE () Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
—ZE-_RF=HA=1t—H 31 March 2025

40. ¢REREEEEREE (&) 40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

REBESRER Liquidity risk
REBERABRASESFEITE  UE The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
REZRBMNER ZITAZEISH recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
TEAWM EBNESEREERER) e E of both its financial instruments (e.g., trade and bills payables)
BN EURE S NREEETUANLEKRE and financial assets (e.g., trade and bills receivables and finance
HERFOMEHBHARBEALERESRE - lease receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.
rEENeRBEBE(BEIABE RS The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities (including
HIR GRE TR RN REE) WEIE A contingent liabilities) as at the end of the reporting period, based
DT - on the contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:
2025
ZEANLR
Z@AR t+=@AR
FEER More than
Less than 3 months and BBLE
3 months or less than —-Z0F Over @t
(BEFL) (HK$'000) on demand 12 months 1 to 5 years 5 years Total
ENESREBER Trade and bills payables 602,882 213,465 - - 816,347
AEAEL B BR T K% Financial liabilities included in
EiEERNERARE other payables and accruals 164,774 - 2,347 - 167,121
HEEE Lease liabilities 1,367 3,844 14,710 - 19,921
769,023 217300 17057 ~ 1,003,389
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—E_RAF=A=+—H

40. TRIAMBEERBEREE (&)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2025

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

REBESEE(Z) Liquidity risk (continued)
2024
“EANLER
=@AR t=@AR
RREX More than
Less than 3 months and BBLE
3 months or less than -ZRE Over @t
(B¥Fr) (HK$'000) on demand 12 months 1 to 5 years 5 years Total
ENESHLEREREX Trade and bills payables 566,700 56,410 - - 623,110
LAEMER R R Financial liabilities included in
EiEaENERERE other payables and accruals 143910 - 8,343 - 152,253
%ﬁ‘%iét\ Lease liabilities 1,144 3,187 13,051 2,578 19,960
RELBITHER - Guarantee given to a bank, at the
Eik%ﬂ(%ﬁ CBIEERGT  maximum, for a bank loan granted
EEEBEREEERM  toacustomer to purchase the
RITER Group’s products 1,307 - - - 1,307
713,061 59,597 21,394 2,578 796,630

EXRER Capital management

AEBEEARAEENTIZRABEREERNKE
FEKENENRRFEENEANL X
AR E R LR AR E RSB RAE o

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximize shareholders’ value.

AREBRBLENRN LB M EIE N AR
HEARE RRFHAABEARE K
SEFSHBIRTRRNEE  ARRE
BEAABTHR - BHE-_FT_HF=H
=t-HBR-ZT_HWOE=A=t—HILF
ER ZFEAEEZBER BREIERF
I AT 2B

The Group manages its capital structure and make adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

Eté’l\ZlK’EITﬁL FRBEEMREE
B #1,997,648,0007C (ZEZU4F : B

In addition, the Group monitors capital using the position
of net current assets of HK$1,997,648,000 (2024:
1 ,985,180,0000 7T ) (BN 427 &) & BE B 42 7% HK$1,985,180,000), which is total current assets minus total
FEE)BEEER AEBEIBURBHERF current liabilities. The Group’s policy is to maintain net current
MBNEEE © assets position.

LIS BE AR AT 2024/25 F5
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B SRR M EE () Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—E-RFE=-A=+—H 31 March 2025
41. XD E B BARR T 41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY
ARBPRMEARNIEARARER T Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

(BE#TFr) (HK$'000) 2025 2024

kRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS

KRB AR ZEE Investments in subsidiaries 644,440 536,286

REBEE CURRENT ASSETS

A1 N CHE b R AR R Deposits and other receivables 735 1,434

Re RIRTTHER Cash and bank balances 5,854 105,210

MENVE ELRT Total current assets 6,589 106,644

REBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES

HEMENERREEE Other payables and accruals 12,103 8,128

mEN B EEET Total current liabilities 12,103 8,128

REBEE(8E8) FE NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (5,514) 98,516

EEHBERABERE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 638,926 634,802

ERBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

HMENERRESEE Other payables and accruals 432 661

EEFE NET ASSETS 638,494 634,141

E= EQUITY

BT Issued share capital 63,053 63,053

w1 () Reserves (note) 575,441 571,088

BT TOTAL EQUITY 638,494 634,141
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B SRR M RE (2 Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
—ZE-_RF=A=+—H 31 March 2025

41. RQATMBARRE (&) 41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Bat - Note:
KRR ZHEHRERT - A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
R EAREE
BER 1]
Share Capital ERGE REER
premium  redemption Capital Retained Foy

(BB Fr) (HK$000) account reserve reserve profits Total
RZE-_=FMNA—H At 1 April 2023 509,580 295 3,256 110,164 623,295
REF R R Profit for the year and total

REZRE2ENE comprehensive income for the year - - 11,532 11,532
DA RS 8 2151 0 B s v e B Equity-settled share option arrangements - 1,206 - 1,206
HE-_FT-=F=HA=1+—H Final dividend for the year ended

IFFEZREBE (Ff7F12) 31 March 2023 (note 12) - - - (46,029) (46,029)
HERRR B (M3F12) Interim dividend (note 12) - - - (18,916) (18,916)
RZZE-_M&E=A=+—8BK At31 March 2024 and

—E-EWNA—H 1 April 2024 509,580 295 4,462 56,751 571,088
REE R K& Profit for the year and total

REZRE2ENEE comprehensive income for the year - - 58,440 58,440
VA RS 48 3 1+ 0 B A A 22 HE Equity-settled share option arrangements - 1,400 - 1,400
HEZZ-_WF=HA=+—H Finaldividend for the year ended

IFFEZREBEE (Ff7F12) 31 March 2024 (note 12) - - - (31,527) (31,527)
HERR B (MiF12) Interim dividend (note 12) - - - (23,960) (23,960)
RZZE-_A%=A=+—H At 31 March 2025 509,580 295 5,862 59,704 575,441
ERFEBERBRER OB R RITERNERE The capital reserve comprises the fair value of share options
ZAFE W IEHRE M 5T 3 M E R I RE granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in
MNENRGZEAREE—FPRE-ZS the accounting policy for share-based payment transactions in
RN B EREETFEFEEERD R note 3 to the financial statements. The amount will either be
B AR - o pAE 28 B AR RE T i ok 108 LR 4 transferred to share premium account when the related share
EEREBET - options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits when

the related share options expire or are forfeited.
42. BEIRKEFH 42. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WM BRERER T _AFAAZTHK The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue
EERBMURTETE - by the board of directors on 20 June 2025.
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FE Bﬁ% NE] Principal Subsidiaries

NZZE_RF= As at 31 March 2025

TERAENZARAEERBYEREEEMEEE  The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the

BEAFERERAEBEEFEEEZD 2HE  opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or

NAl-BFXURE  JHESRKNB AR ZF1E#H  formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give

BRILEK details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

KARHE
=i} EzEoH
k& E Percentage
Place of BRITRAE of equity
incorporation/ BERER attributable
ATETE registration Issued share/ to the FEEK
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BEER
Held indirectly
DM ARNBR AR =) & 100 SHE T B
Asian Plastic Machinery Taiwan Ordinary Sale of
Company, Limited® 74 # 50,000,000 7T plastic injection
NTD50,000,000 moulding machines
EHEIZER CORY) BRARD R/ 3,000,000 % 7T 100 BEME
Chen Hsong Industrial Park B K US$3,000,000 Property holding
(Shenzhen) Company Limited® PRC/
Mainland China
EEEERERA BE TRRBEE 2T 100 SHE T B
Chen Hsong Machmery Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Sale of
Company, Limited B ERERE R - plastic injection
7 150,000,000 7T moulding machines
Non-voting deferred @
HK$50,000,000
Chen Hsong Machinery (India) ENE L i 100 SHE FEBIK
Private Limited India Ordinary Sale of
E1fZ & tt, 25,000,000 plastic injection
Rs.25,000,000 moulding machines
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FEREB LT (&)

WZZE-_hF=A=+—H

As at 31 March 2025

Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

KARBRE
AL EZEIH
RR&EHE Percentage
Place of BRITRAE of equity
incorporation/ BERER attributable
IR registration Issued share/ to the FTEEK
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
MERsHE (&)
Held indirectly (continued)
R (ER) ARAROO R/ 8,010,000 7T 100 SUENHE T
Chen Hsong Machinery (Ningbo) 1PN US$8,010,000 Manufacture and sale
Company, Limited® ® PRC/ of plastic injection
Mainland China moulding machines
B ORY) BRAF OO R/ 17,130,000 7T 100 B R IHE T
Chen Hsong Machinery (Shenzhen) EEipN 3 US$17,130,000 Manufacture and sale
Company Limited® ® PRC/ of plastic injection
Mainland China moulding machines
BRI AR AR A F)© aE EE 100 BUE R IHE T
Chen Hsong Machinery Taiwan Taiwan Ordinary Manufacture and sale
Company, Limited® #14 # 165,000,000 7T of plastic injection
NTD165,000,000 moulding machines
BHEEKERECRIDBERAFVO B/ 78 24,000,000 7T 100 & R HE AT
Chen Hsong Mechanical and Gy NG HK$24,000,000 Manufacture and
Electrical Equipment PRC/ sale of tie bars
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.®® Mainland China
EHEEORY) BRAG OO R/ 751 10,000,000 7T 100 SHE B
Chen Hsong Sales & Marketing B K HK$10,000,000 Sale of
(Shenzhen) Company, PRC/ plastic injection
Limited® ® Mainland China moulding machines
Chen Hsong South America B BEFEEERHS5721,000 100 SHE T B
Importacéo, Exportacéo e Brazil R$5,721,000 Sale of

R

i

Comeércio de Equipamentos Ltda.

EEAR AT 2024/25 F5
e
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FEREB LT (&2

WZZE-hF=A=+—H

Principal Subsidiaries (continuead)

As at 31 March 2025

RARHE
AL EZEIH
RE&EHE Percentage
Place of BRITRE of equity
incorporation/ BERER attributable
AEER registration Issued share/ to the FTEER
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BERHE (8)
Held indirectly (continued)
LT IEE R R R B R A R/ 7,300,000 7T 100 BUE R IHE T
BRAR®O e N US$7,300,000 Manufacture and sale
Foshan Shunde Chen De Plastics PRC/ of plastic injection
Machinery Company Limited® ©® Mainland China moulding machines
BILTIEE R B ERE T W R/ 7,900,000 % 7T 100 SIS N IHE T B
BRAR®O EEipN 3 US$7,900,000 Manufacture and sale
Foshan Shunde Chen De Precision PRC/ of plastic injection
Machinery Co., Limited® ® Mainland China moulding machines
I TIEE R BRE e/ 3,000,000 7T 100 HERHERESE
BRAFDO EEipN 3 US$3,000,000 Manufacture and sale
Intra-ltalia Hydraulics PRC/ of hydraulic motors
(Foshan Shunde) Co., Ltd.(0® Mainland China
AN BHBERBARAF OO B/ 12,000,000 2 7T 100 SENRHERMT
Shenzhen Chen Hsong Precision B A BE US$12,000,000 Manufacture and sale
Equipment Limited®® PRC/ of casting parts

iz -
L) UBATRNEBECE -
@ WATRPNERGECE

(3) WEARABINEEREDRE -

Mainland China

Notes:

(N

)

(3)

(4) EBREREERMNEXBEENEERERS  E& @
ERRRE ERE KRG RS 705 86 YR

BWERERRZ B -

(5) EXARBWEHBR -

B EEAR AR 2024/25F 4R

These companies are wholly foreign-owned enterprises.

This company is a Sino-foreign equity joint venture.

These companies are foreign invested enterprises.

The non-voting deferred shares carry limited rights to dividends, no rights
to vote at general meetings and limited rights to receive any surplus in a
return of capital in a winding-up.

English company names are translated for identification purposes only.
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EFEBERE

Five-Year Financial Summary l

AT RESFarEEeERETRFRED 2R
REZZUBRERNES  BE AENFER

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,

g o as extracted from the published audited financial statements, is set out
below.
E3 RESULTS

BEZHA=+—HIFFE Year ended 31 March

(B¥Fr) (HK$'000) 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
g Revenue 2,594,735 2,009,545 2,312,584 2,728,763 2,360,553
el Profit from operating activities 189,775 126,393 161,012 239,097 270,013
BERA Finance costs (1,561) (1,199) (1,157) (1,306) (1,948)
[N Share of profits less losses of

B AR E R associates 1,411 (52) (914) 777 2,737
BB AR Profit before tax 189,625 125,142 158,941 238,568 270,802
Frsfi= Income tax expense (35,620) (26,283) (30,156) (24,574) (65,977)
KEE R Profit for the year 154,005 98,859 128,785 213,994 204,825
RN Attributable to:

AREERFEA Equity holders of the Company 154,386 100,853 130,289 213,309 203,021

R S Non-controlling interests (381) (1,994) (1,504) 685 1,804

154,005 98,859 128,785 213,994 204,825

EE BERFERES ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

R=HA=+—H As at 31 March

(E¥For) (HK$°000) 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021

BEBE Total assets 4,358,964 4,143,750 4,149,309 4,429,327 4378438

BE®E Total liabilities (1,270,592)  (1,069,681)  (1,081,128)  (1,200,865)  (1,365,392)

FEPERR A Non-controlling interests (6,802) (16,539) (19,041) (19,413) (16,514)
3,081,570 3,057,530 3,049,140 3,209,049 2,996,532
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REMFFE

WZZE_RF=A=+—H

Particulars of Investment Properties

As at 31 March 2025

rEH HEEEE
FEfL R (FFFHK)
Attributable Gross
ih 24 REEAZR HAPER interest of floor area
Location Existing use Type of lease the Group (sq. m.)
H T & HA 100% #972,000
BERE RIT Industrial Medium Approximately
L & 72,000
IR EZEIp
AR 177 5%
EHTX®E
12-Bf + 13-BiE R B& R E K&
Block 12-B, Block 13-B and
canteen building in District B
Chen Hsong Industrial Park
177 Renmin West Road
Kengzi Sub-District
Pingshan District
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
The PRC
H T A 100% #915,000
AL & ERT Industrial Medium Approximately
& 15,000
riRE
L E& 2855%

30E 15% ) 618 15%
No. 1 of Buildings 3 & 6,
28 Yongjiang Road
Xingi Sub-District
Beilun District
Ningbo, Zhejiang Province
The PRC
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BEEMERAT
Chen Hsong Holdings Limited

HERIAFRE1SEEREE R 020182001E
Unit 2001, 20th Floor, Citicorp Centre, 18 Whitfield Road, Hong Kong

% / Tel : (852) 2665 3222

{EE / Fax: (852) 2664 8202

#B1It / Website: www.chenhsong.com
E8Hf / E-mail: comm@chenhsong.com
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